F 1k

Annual Report

@ ¥ ) 4 £5(mm) AR AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED



2019 £
Annual Report 2019

@ ¥ & 4L £5(E ) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED



@ ¥ 8 4 fr(mm)amAd

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

= T % CONTENTS PAGE
EHAWRE 1 Report of the Directors 4
AFRE 7 Corporate Governance 24
PR EEUTR 42 Independent Auditor’s Report 45
LZEWEER 50 Consolidated Income Statement 50
SEEmMKER 51 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 51
Income
SERTRER 53 Consolidated Balance Sheet 53
LFENREZR 55 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55
SEVERER 57 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 57
Wt S5 4R R MV 58 Notes to the Financial Statements 58
RETIZ AR EBR 294 Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information 294
MR —ARITZHEAT 303 Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank 303

F>3%8 306 Definitions 308



@ ¥ & 4L £5 (mm)HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

HESWRE

RS FEMC IR R AR 2019 4F 12 H 31 HibZ HHLME LA H T La W 55k

FEWE
AT MR B CHUATALAR ) 0T BT SRR A7 . AT 2 5 B 55 R G RAT B e R 25 A T A
ol 55 4RI EAR BB S AR T I 45 4RI 43,

W5t K 53 i
ARSI AR B 2 SR T 56 50 T2 i .

T 2019 4 8 H 30 H, #HEHSHIRFIIK SR EBET 0.131 78, SHL T 56.39 1270, HET 20194 9 H 24 H3UAT.

T 20194F 12 A 23 H, EHEHLEIRD RS GREERHEET 0.235 Jo, SALA#T 101151458, HOT 20194912 H 24 HX
fe

HHEBAIRK 2019 FEAR MK .

EiEE0
ARSI TAF 19 2 3635 SO ABIRAR R BT R T 8 T 7

TE: SLIRFORA AR [ ES RS CFAR e ] D mANHMEN MR, [3E ] RAEFBBMIMLLEA, ARG (BRI
FIBLI BN -



@ ¥ & 4L £5 (mm)HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

HESRE (8D
HE
TR R A WL, AR R4 T

BEK XIS A (H20194E7 H5 HE BT AT KD
R DU " (H20194E4 H 28 HiZH#HT)

BlEHK Fir# (F20204E3 H 20 0 #dkBAT)

¥ Mot
vt (1202043 H 20 H AT
HE TG A
S TR
e
D (E20194E3 A 13 H BT
ARy
YN (H20194:3 H 15 H&#HT)

F AR
AT E S

RAE AR BN 875, mliRSel . st d: K B S S B T & TR HOT I R 4R R 2 bl . TR KR FE R
TR H TR AR R LRGSR, PSRN S5 % FINHUE, PFEFLBEME TN T TR AR BT @A 4
Kexfmith, WA FiZAKamigET. ik, mEH 41202043 H 20 H ZAT 10 104 KPS e A AR T 0K 3 T (R AR 4E K 2
EJmi, IR,

BE 20194123 31 H1LAR B ARAT 2 MR 2 R #9542 03 4 B CARAE T A AT A/ F Ak

EHTRS KHREAHZME
TAEREY, RRUT JEIRAT . SRR 2 7 5% 7 AR MR 2 5 R A S MY ST STARRT K T4 T3 A e
BRI ERUE A . SR,

BHEHA
FAGEREN, AT I A MO AT 7 KAl 25 00 P AT T AR T BAE A AT 2 4

BRI
TAAEREN KRGS H ABATIEINT S BAFEAE (R A DL

RAEVFHIIREERL
HRARL AR, 44 T TR (AR o XEHT 31 B0 S TUESRAKRAT DI R A TR . AHUT COAFE G I
SR, DMETE 0 TUTHR A UT 7T & v S B



@ ¥ &) L £r(mm) A mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

HERE (8D
fra (BT (B8R H)
HLERAES GRATIARB TR CRATIE B JI) 24 %R,

BB
2019 4R 2 M AR T KR TR E, HI6T 2020 SRR FIE K& LIRAT, JFRon Bk EL .

TRE S

e
>

'/WLJ“@

HHK
XA

e, 202043 H 27 H



@ ¥ &4 trmn)amaa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the
provision of banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments is set
out in Note 43 to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 50.

On 30 August 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.131 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$5,639
million, which was paid on 24 September 2019.

On 23 December 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.235 per ordinary share amounting to approximately
HK$10,115 million, which was paid on 24 December 2019.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year 2019.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$80 million.

Note: These donations do not include the donations and sponsorships made by BOCHK Charitable Foundation (“the Foundation”). The Foundation is a
separate legal entity established in Hong Kong and is a charitable institution exempt from tax under the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Chairman LIU Liange# (appointment as Chairman effective from 5 July 2019)
CHEN Siging* (resignation effective from 28 April 2019)
Vice Chairmen WANG Jiang* (appointment effective from 20 March 2020)
GAO Yingxin
Directors LIN Jingzhen*
SUN Yu* (appointment effective from 20 March 2020)
CHENG Eva*

CHOI Koon Shum*

KOH Beng Seng*

LAW Yee Kwan Quinn* (appointment effective from 13 March 2019)
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok*

LI Jiuzhong (resignation effective from 15 March 2019)

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the terms of office of Mr GAO Yingxin, Mr KOH Beng Seng and Mr TUNG Savio
Wai-Hok will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting, and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, the terms of office of Mr WANG Jiang and Mr SUN Yu, who were appointed on 20
March 2020, will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A full list of the names of the directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019 is kept at the Bank’s
registered office.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were
entered into or existed during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Bank during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liabilities incurred by
him/her to the extent permitted by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of the
Directors against liability which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This Annual Report complies with the applicable requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2019 have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2020 annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

"Muﬁ

LIU Liange
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Corporate Governance

The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards of corporate governance in order to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees. It abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, and observes the rules
and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities including the HKMA and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. The Bank
has followed the guidelines as set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

To further enhance corporate governance standard, the Bank will revamp its corporate governance system and strengthen relevant
measures by referencing to market trend as well as guidelines and requirements issued by regulatory authorities.

Corporate Governance Policy

The Bank recognises the importance of high standards of corporate governance and maintains an effective corporate governance
framework which delivers long-term success of the Group. The Bank is also strongly committed to embracing and enhancing sound
corporate governance principles and practices. The established well-structured corporate governance framework directs and
regulates the business ethical conduct of the Bank, thereby protects and upholds the interests of shareholders and stakeholders as a
whole in a sustainable manner.

Corporate Governance Framework

Responsibilities of the Board and the Management

The Board is at the core of the Bank’s corporate governance framework and there is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the Management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the Management. It
operates under the well-defined Board’s Mandate which sets out matters specifically reserved for its deliberation. Generally, the
Board is responsible for:

» formulating the Group’s mid and long-term strategies and monitoring the implementation thereof;
* reviewing and approving the annual business plans and financial budgets;

* approving the annual results and interim results;

» reviewing and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control;

» ensuring good corporate governance of the Group and effective compliance; and

* monitoring the performance of the Management.

Five physical Board meetings were held during the year. Major agenda items reviewed and approved included important matters
such as the Group’s strategies, business plans, financial budget, disclosure of financial results, risk management and internal
controls, as well as the establishment of the Sustainability Committee. Besides physical meetings, the Board also approved written
resolutions on certain matters, including changes of directors and senior management, and relevant matters regarding the
establishment of virtual bank. Supporting explanatory materials accompanying the written resolutions were sent to Directors to
facilitate their understanding of the matters and assist them to make informed decisions.

During the year, the Board reviewed and approved amendments made to various corporate governance related policies and
procedures so as to align with the latest changes in regulatory requirements.

Directors are entitled to seek, at the Group’s expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary for discharging their
duties as Directors. The Company Secretary will make necessary arrangements when the Directors wish to seek such independent
professional advice.

The Board authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by the Board. The Management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. For this purpose, the Board has formulated clear written guidelines
which stipulate the circumstances where the Management should report to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will conduct regular review on these authorisation and
guidelines.

24



@ ¥ 8 4 £7 (5 ) A B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Corporate Governance (continued)

Corporate Governance Framework (continued)

Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

To avoid concentration of power in any single individual, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Bank are held
by two different individuals. Their roles are distinct, clearly established and stipulated in the Board’s Mandate.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, as the Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on all issues currently on hand, and that all Directors receive adequate, accurate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

The Chief Executive is responsible for providing leadership for the whole management and implementing important policies and
development strategies as adopted by the Board. Led by the Chief Executive, the Management Committee fulfils responsibilities
including management of the Group’s routine operation, implementation of business development strategies and realisation of the
Group’s long-term targets and strategies.

Board Committees

Taking into consideration the latest regulatory requirements, guidelines as well as market practices and international best practices,
the Board has established five standing Board Committees to assist in performing its responsibilities, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Committee, the Strategy and Budget Committee and the Sustainability
Committee.

Each of the Board Committees has a well-defined Mandate and makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters within its
scope of responsibilities or makes decisions under appropriate circumstances in accordance with the power delegated by the Board.
All Board Committees are assigned a professional secretarial department which ensures that the Board Committees have adequate
resources to perform their duties effectively and properly. All Board Committees adopt the same governance process as the Board as
far as possible and report regularly to the Board on their decisions and their recommendations. The Board and Board Committees will
participate in the annual performance appraisal of those professional secretarial departments to warrant and enhance the services
provided and ensure that adequate and efficient supports are provided to the Board and Board Committees. In addition, according to
their respective Mandates, the Board and each of the Board Committees will evaluate and review their work process and
effectiveness annually, with a view to identifying areas for further improvements.

The following chart sets out the Bank’s corporate governance framework:

The Board of

Directors

Audit Nomination and Risk Strgtueoslgge?nd Sustainability
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

Details including the Bank’s corporate governance principles and framework adopted by the Board, the composition of the Board and
each of the Board Committees and their respective Mandates, Corporate Governance Policy and Information Disclosure Policy are
available under the sub-section “Corporate Governance” of the section headed “About Us” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board of Directors

Composition and Terms of Office of the Board

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board is composed of 10 Directors, of whom one is Executive Director, four are
Non-executive Directors and five are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board maintains an appropriate level of checks and
balances to ensure independence and objectivity of the decisions of the Board, as well as the impartial oversight of the Management.
The Board acts honestly and in good faith so that decisions are made objectively and in the best interests of the Group with a view to
delivering long-term and maximum shareholder value and fulfilling its corporate responsibility to other stakeholders of the Group.

Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Risk Committee with effect from 13 March 2019. Mr LI Jiuzhong resigned as Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer with effect
from 15 March 2019. Mr CHEN Siqing resigned as Chairman of the Board, Non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee with effect from 28 April 2019. Mr LIU Liange was appointed as Chairman of the Board with effect from
5 July 2019. Dr CHOI Koon Shum was appointed as a member of the Strategy and Budget Committee and ceased to be a member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 30 October 2019. The Board newly established the Sustainability Committee on 23 December
2019 and appointed Mdm CHENG Eva as Chairman of the Sustainability Committee, while other members are Mr GAO Yingxin, Dr
CHOI Koon Shum, Mr KOH Beng Seng, Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn and Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok. Mr WANG Jiang was appointed as
Vice Chairman, Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Strategy and
Budget Committee with effect from 20 March 2020. Mr SUN Yu was appointed as Non-executive Director and a member of the Risk
Committee with effect from 20 March 2020. Save as disclosed above, there are no other changes to the composition of the Board and
Board Committees during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank have been appointed for a fixed term of
approximately three years, with formal letters of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. In
accordance with Article 87 of the articles of association of the Bank (the “Articles of Association”), the terms of office of Mr GAO
Yingxin, Mr KOH Beng Seng and Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Further, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting of the Bank, and shall then
be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, the terms of office of Mr WANG Jiang and Mr SUN Yu, who were appointed on
20 March 2020, will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Further details regarding the proposed re-election of Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors”. In addition,
the Bank has also established a written and formal process for the appointment of the Independent Non-executive Directors to
ensure that the appointment procedures are standardised, thorough and transparent.

Selection and Nomination of Board Members

The Bank has in place relevant policies on the nomination of Board members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
take into account the existing composition of the Board and the business requirements of the Group, follow the board diversity,
independence of directors and other relevant supervisory and policy requirements and be responsible for the identification, selection
and nomination of Board members.

The Bank recognises the importance and benefits of board diversity. In order to promote the Board’s effectiveness and standards of
corporate governance, the Bank has adopted the “Board Diversity Policy” which will be considered in identifying suitable and qualified
candidates to be a Board member. The said policy provides that in designing the Board’s composition, board diversity should be
considered in a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
geographical location, professional experience, skills, knowledge and track records, etc., to ensure an appropriate diversity of skills,
backgrounds and viewpoints. At the same time, all Board nominations and appointments are made on merit, in the context of the
skills and experience the Board as a whole required. The various perspectives of Board diversity elements as mentioned above shall
also be adequately considered during the selection process of new Board members.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Potential candidates of Executive Directors could be sourced and selected amongst the senior management. Potential candidates of
Independent Non-executive Directors could be recruited through global selection. Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of
Association and relevant regulations, shareholders could also nominate a person other than a retiring Director for election as a
Director (including Non-executive Director) at a general meeting. Where necessary, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
may appoint external advisors to assist in recruiting appropriate individuals. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
consider various factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for appointment as Board member, which include:

» Board diversity;

» Reputation of candidate;

* Professional knowledge and industrial experience of candidate;

» Commitment of candidate to devote sufficient time to discharge duties as a Board member; and

« Satisfaction of independence requirements of the “Policy on Independence of Directors” of the Bank in the case of a candidate for
Independent Non-executive Director.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall assess the candidates pursuant to the selection criteria, hold meetings to
discuss and arrange interviews with the candidates where necessary, and make recommendation to the Board. The appointment of
Directors shall be eventually approved by the Board and/or shareholders at general meetings.

For the Board member of the Bank who was newly appointed in 2019 and the retiring Board members standing for re-election at 2019
annual general meeting of the Bank, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed their biographical details against the
selection criteria set out in the Bank’s nomination policies of Board members and considered they have the required character,
integrity and professional knowledge and experience to continue fulfilling their role and contributing to the Bank and the diversity of
the Board.

Under the current board membership, all Directors possess extensive experience in banking and/or management. In addition, over
one-third of them are Independent Non-executive Directors, who possess experience in banking and financial industry as well as
expertise in strategic development and risk management. The Bank has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence by reference to the “Policy on Independence of Directors” of the Bank.
Based on the information available to the Bank, it considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
Moreover, all Directors have disclosed to the Bank their significant commitments and have undertaken and confirmed that they are
able to devote sufficient time to the affairs of the Bank. Biographical details of the professional experience, skills and knowledge of
the Board members are available under the sub-section “Organisation” of the section headed “About Us” on the Bank’s website at
www.bochk.com.

27



@ ¥ 8 4 fr(mm)amAd

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Corporate Governance (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

An analysis of the Board’s composition as at the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

Number of Directors

10 Female United States
° Over 65 Singapore Over 6 years
8 Independent
7 Non-executive Below 90%
Director
e China
5 Male 56 - 65 1-6 years
4
Non-executive
3 Director 1287
2 Hong Kong
Less than
1 Executive s 1 year
Director
Gender Designation Age Group Geographical Directorship Attendance
location with the rate at Board
Bank meetings in
(Number of 2019*
years)

*

Mr WANG Jiang and Mr SUN Yu were appointed as Non-executive Directors with effect from 20 March 2020. Accordingly, attendance rate at Board
meetings in 2019 is not applicable to them.

Mr LIU Liange, Mr WANG Jiang and Mr LIN Jingzhen are Executive Directors of BOC, and Mr SUN Yu is Executive Vice President of
BOC. Save as disclosed above, there are no other relationships between the Board members, including financial, business, family or
other material relationships.

In addition, it is expressly provided in the Board’s Mandate that, unless the applicable laws or regulations allow otherwise, if a
substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in the matter to be considered by the Board, a Board meeting must be
convened and attended by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material interest and give professional advice to
the subject matter for further consideration and approval.

Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy

During the year, the Bank has arranged for appropriate cover on Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities arising from the corporate activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed annually by the
Bank.

Self-evaluation of the Board

During the year, the Board conducted annual self-evaluation pursuant to the “Regulations on Self-Evaluation of the Board and
Individual Evaluation of the Directors”. With the endorsement of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the annual
self-evaluation questionnaire was distributed to Directors for completion. Based on the completed questionnaire, the Bank analysed
the results and a report delineated the results and recommendation has been submitted to the Board for review and consideration.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Review of Effectiveness of the Individual Directors

During the year, the Bank has also engaged an external professional consultant to conduct independent review of the effectiveness of
the individual Directors. A questionnaire was distributed to all Directors for their completion and included Directors’ self-assessment in
areas such as their time commitment and participation, interaction and communication with senior management, as well as evaluation
of other members of the Board and Board Committees, and other factors that impact director effectiveness. Based on the completed
guestionnaire and other available information, the external consultant assessed the effectiveness of individual Directors and prepared
a report setting out its observations and recommendations, which has been submitted to the Board for review and follow-up.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

To ensure the newly appointed Directors have adequate understanding of the Bank’s business operations and to enable all Directors
to update their knowledge regularly so as to provide informed recommendation and advice and make contribution to the Bank, the
Board has established a set of written policies specifying guidelines on Directors’ induction upon appointment and continuous
training.

The Bank arranges appropriate Directors’ induction through the use of induction handbook, face-to-face meetings and other means,
and in accordance with the needs of individual Directors. Topics include but not limited to:

- governance structure;

- standing agenda of the Board;

- regulatory requirements on corporate governance;

- focus of concern of regulators; and

- business operation, development plan and focus of internal control.

The Bank also provides regular updates to Board members on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Group on a timely basis; and the Bank arranges regular meetings with the Management to facilitate the
understanding of its latest business development. In addition, Board members are encouraged to participate actively in continuous
training programmes. The Bank also arranges relevant professional training programmes for Board members at the expense of
BOCHK (Holdings).

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. In 2019, the Bank invited expert to conduct seminar to the Directors and the senior management with regard to data driven
business in Southeast Asia.

Furthermore, each of the Directors has received a series of training locally or overseas as he/she thought fit. During the year, they
attended briefings, meetings, seminars, forums and conferences organised by the Bank or regulatory authorities, including relevant
training for directors provided by the HKMA which covered climate risk and climate finance, management of talent risk, as well as
analysis of global economic and financial situation. Other areas of training received by the Directors included:

- risk management and internal control;

- business conduct, anti-corruption and ethical standards;
- anti-money laundering;

- corporate governance;

- developments of technology;

- regulatory updates;

- banking industry development trend; and

- economic developments in the Greater Bay Area, etc.
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The Directors’ records of annual training information have been entered in the register of directors’ training records maintained and

updated by the Bank from time to time. As at year end, the participation of all Directors in continuous professional development is
summarised as follows:

Corporate Risk
Governance/ Management Banking Industry
Regulatory and Internal Development
Directors " Updates Control Trend
Non-executive Directors
Mr LIU Liange v 4 v
Mr LIN Jingzhen v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mdm CHENG Eva 4 v/ 4
Dr CHOI Koon Shum 4 4 4
Mr KOH Beng Seng v v v
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn (appointed with effect from 13 March
2019) v v v
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 4 4 4
Executive Director
Mr GAO Yingxin v/ 4 v/

Note: The training records for those Directors who resigned during the year and were appointed after year end are not included herein. Please refer to
the section headed “Composition and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

Five Board meetings were held during 2019 with an average attendance rate of 93%. Regular meeting schedule for the year was
prepared and approved by the Board in the preceding year. Formal notices of regular Board meetings were sent to all Directors at
least 14 days before the date of the scheduled meetings, and Board agenda and meeting materials of sufficient quality were
despatched to all Board members for review at least seven days prior to the scheduled meetings. Board agenda of each meeting was
approved by the Chairman following consultation with other Board members and the senior management. Draft and final versions of
Board minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record respectively within a reasonable period after the meetings
were held.

The Board also received monthly reports with information on the Group’s latest financial and operating performance. Accordingly,
Directors can have a balanced assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects throughout the year.

In addition, in order to facilitate open discussion with all the Independent Non-executive Directors, the Chairman met with all the

Independent Non-executive Directors in the absence of other Directors and the senior management. Relevant practice has been
incorporated in the Working Rules of the Board.
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Details of respective Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings in 2019 are set out as follows:

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings convened during Directors’ term of office

Board Committees '

Nomination and Strategy
Audit Remuneration Risk and Budget
Directors 2 Board Committee Committee Committee Committee

Number of meetings held during the

year 5 5 2 4 4

Non-executive Directors

Mr LIU Liange (Chairman) 4/5 _ _ _ 2/4
(appointed as Chairman with effect
from 5 July 2019)
Mr LIN Jingzhen 5/5 - - - 4/4
Mr CHEN Siqing 1/2 _ 11 _ _
(resigned with effect from
28 April 2019)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mdm CHENG Eva 5/5 5/5 - - 4/4
Dr CHOI Koon Shum® 4/5 3/4 2/2 - 11
Mr KOH Beng Seng 5/5 5/5 2/2 4/4 -
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn 5/5 5/5 _ 4/4 _
(appointed with effect from
13 March 2019)
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 5/5 5/5 2/2 4/4 4/4
Executive Directors
Mr GAO Yingxin (Vice Chairman and 5/5 _ _ _ 4/4
Chief Executive)
Mr LI Jiuzhong 4 N/A _ _ —_ _
(resigned with effect from
15 March 2019)
Average Attendance Rate 93% 96% 100% 100% 90%

Notes:

1. The Sustainability Committee was established on 23 December 2019, and no meeting was held from the date of establishment to the year-end
date.

2. The attendance records for Directors who were appointed after year end are not included herein. Please refer to the section headed “Composition
and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual
Report.

3. Dr CHOI Koon Shum was appointed as a member of the Strategy and Budget Committee and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 30 October 2019.

4. During the period from 1 January 2019 to 15 March 2019, no Board meeting was held and Mr LI Jiuzhong was not a member of any Board
Committees.

Apart from formal Board meetings, the Bank has set up a system of pre-communication meeting for the Independent Non-executive
Directors, where major agenda items have been presented to the Independent Non-executive Directors before each Board meeting,
and their comments have been timely conveyed to the Management for follow up actions so as to enhance the effectiveness of
deliberation at Board meetings.

Moreover, the Bank has arranged, on a regular basis, other informal events for the Board members and the senior management to
facilitate their communication and interactions. For example, the Bank has organised working meals from time to time, and Board
members and the senior management have been invited to join and share insights on the Bank’s business and strategic issues.
Further, a board retreat to Jakarta has also been held during the year to enhance communication between the Board and the senior
management.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised four members at the end of the year, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. lts
composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok (Chairman) + integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process

Mdm CHENG Eva * monitoring of risk management and internal control systems

Mr KOH Beng Seng « effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the General
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn Manager of Group Audit

« appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification, independence
and performance and, with authorisation of the Board and shareholders at general
meeting, determination of its remuneration

» periodic review and annual audit of the Bank’s and the Group’s financial statements

« compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and regulatory
requirements on financial disclosures

« corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof

Major works performed during the year (included the review and, where

applicable, approval of)

« the Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 that were
recommended to the Board for approval

» the Bank’s interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2019 that
were recommended to the Board for approval

« the audit reports and report on internal control recommendations submitted by
external auditor, the audit reports submitted by internal audit, and the on-site
examination reports issued by regulators

« the proposed appointment of external auditor, the fees payable to external auditor for
the annual audit, interim review and other non-audit services

+ the Group’s audit plan for next year and key areas identified

« the organisation structure, deployment of human resources and pay level of the
Internal Audit, its budget for next year

» annual review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function

« the 2018 performance appraisal and next year's key performance indicators for the
General Manager of Group Audit and the Group Audit

« the annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk control and internal control
systems

« annual review of the “Policy on External Auditor Management”, the “Policy on Staff
Reporting of Irregularities” and the “Internal Audit Charter”
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised three members at the end of the year, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Its composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Dr CHOI Koon Shum (Chairman) * review of overall human resources strategies of the Group

Mr KOH Beng Seng + selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and Senior
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok Management

* regular monitoring and review of structure, size and composition (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical
location, professional experience, skills, knowledge and track records, etc.) of the
Board and Board Committees

» review of the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees

* ensuring the participation in training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management

* review and recommendation of remuneration strategy and incentive framework of
the Group

+ setting of the remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior
Management and Key Personnel

« regular review of code of conduct applicable to employees

Major works performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board)

+ consideration of the matters relating to changes of Directors and Board Committee
members

» consideration of the matters relating to the appointment, removal and remuneration
of Senior Management

» performance appraisal result of the Executive Director and Senior Management for
year 2018

» proposal on staff bonus for year 2018 and salary adjustment for year 2019 for the
Group, including Senior Management

» key performance indicators of the Group and the Senior Management for year 2020

+ proposal on human resources budget of the Group for year 2020

+ coordination and oversight of the annual self-evaluation of the Board and individual
evaluation of the Directors

» implementation of the HKMA bank culture reform

+ formulation, review and amendment on the major human resources and
remuneration policies

» annual review of the “Policy on Independence of Directors”, the “Policy on Directors’
Remuneration” and the “Staff Code of Conduct”
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprised three members at the end of the year, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. Its
composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mr KOH Beng Seng (Chairman) » formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group and
Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn determination of the Group’s risk profile

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok » identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by various

business units of the Group

+ review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management policies, systems and internal controls

» review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management

» review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet

» review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with risk management policies,
systems and internal controls, including the Group’s compliance with prudential, legal
and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Group

» review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group

» review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions

+ review of key reports, including risk exposure reports, model development and
validation reports, and credit risk model performance reports

Major tasks performed during the year

» review and approval of key risk management policies of the Group, including the risk
appetite, the “Operating Principles”, the “Risk Management Policy Statement”, the
“Capital Management Policy”, the “Financial Instruments Valuation Policy”, the “Risk
Data Aggregation and Risk Reporting Policy”, the “Policy for Validating Internal
Rating Systems”, the “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Policy”, the “Product Development and Risk Monitoring Management Policy”, the
“Connected Transactions Management Policy”, the “Sharing and Use of Credit Data
Management Policy”, the “Data Management Policy”, the “Stress Test Policy” and
stress test scenarios, and a range of risk management policies covering credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational risk, legal, compliance and
reputation risk, strategic risk, etc.

» review and approval of the proposal for the annual review of the Group’s recovery
plan, the risk adjustment method for group bonus funding mechanics, the results of
risk adjustment of the Group for 2018, the proposal for the implementation of new
regulatory guideline for interest rate risk in banking book and the recalibration of
Middle Market Probability of Default model

» review and approval of the Group’s operating plans, including the Group’s target
balance sheets, the investment plans and portfolio key risk indicators, as well as risk
management limits

» review of various risk management reports, including the Group’s risk management
report, the report on regulatory requirements for Cyber Security and our initiatives,
the 2018 institutional money laundering risk assessment report, the report on the
Group's business continuity management, the report on loss-absorbing capacity
regulatory requirement and preparation work progress, credit risk and market risk
model validation reports, credit risk model performance reports, etc.

» monitoring and review of all measures taken by the Management against the possible
impact of the social unrest on the Group
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Strategy and Budget Committee

The Strategy and Budget Committee comprised six members at the end of the year, including two Non-executive Directors, three
Independent Non-executive Directors as well as the Executive Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. Its composition, main duties
and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties
Mr LIU Liange' (Chairman) » review of the Group’s medium to long-term strategic plan for Board’s approval
Mr GAO Yingxin® * monitoring of the Group’s implementation of medium to long-term strategy, providing
Mr LIN Jingzhen' guidance on strategy direction for the management
Mdm CHENG Eva® + review of major investments, capital expenditure and strategic commitments of the
Dr CHOI Koon Shum* Group, and making recommendations to the Board
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok® + review and monitoring of the Group’s regular/periodic (including annual) business
plan
+ review of budget for Board’s approval and monitoring of performance against
budgeted targets

Major works performed during the year

* review of the Group’s medium and long-term development strategy plan and IT
three-year planning for Board’s approval

* review of the Group’s capital injection to Southeast Asian entities and other
subsidiaries for Board’s approval

* review of the Group’s sustainability strategy plan for Board’s approval

* receipt of and discussion on the Group's plan on the reform of interest rate
benchmark

+ receipt of and discussion on the progress update of the subsidiaries, and the
situation of development, opportunities and challenges of fintech

* review and monitoring of the implementation of 2019 Financial Budget and Business
Plan of the Group, and also review and endorsement of the Financial Budget and
Business Plan of the Group submitted by the Management for the year 2020 and
recommendation of the same to the Board

Notes:

1. Non-executive Director

2. Executive Director

3. Independent Non-executive Director

4. Independent Non-executive Director and appointed as member of the Strategy and Budget Committee with effect from 30 October 2019

35



@ ¥ 8 4 fr(mm)amAd

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Corporate Governance (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Sustainability Committee

The Sustainability Committee was established on 23 December 2019 and comprised six members, including five Independent
Non-executive Directors as well as the Executive Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. The Committee did not hold any meeting
from the date of establishment to the year-end date. The composition and main duties of the Committee are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mdm CHENG Eva' (Chairman) » review of the Group’s sustainability strategies, goals and priorities as well as material
Mr GAO Yingxin® sustainability related policies

Dr CHOI Koon Shum' + review of environmental, social and governance issues which are material to the
Mr KOH Beng Seng' Group and the related measures

Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn' » oversight of the Group’s sustainability performance

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok' » oversight of corporate culture of the Group

* review on the assessment and feedback mechanisms to foster and maintain sound
corporate culture

+ review on the effectiveness of the overall enhancement initiatives pursued by the
Group, including code of conduct applicable to employees

Notes:
1. Independent Non-executive Director
2. Executive Director
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

BOCHK (Holdings) has established and implemented the “Code for Securities Transactions by Directors” to govern the Directors’
dealings in securities transactions of BOC, BOC Aviation Limited (BOC’s subsidiary), BOC International (China) Co, Ltd (BOC'’s
associate) and BOCHK (Holdings). Upon specific enquiry by BOCHK (Holdings), all Directors confirmed that they had strictly
complied with the provisions as set out in both the said Code and the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the year 2019.

Directors’ Remuneration

Pursuant to the “Policy on Directors’ Remuneration” adopted by the Bank, when recommendation of the remuneration of Directors is
made, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee should benchmark against companies of comparable business type or scale,
the role (chairmanship or membership) they played, job nature and workload at both the Board and Board Committee levels
(including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate Directors fairly. The remuneration of Directors
is subject to regular review based on market practices, regulatory requirements and inflation, etc. No individual Director is allowed to
participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual remuneration package. The remuneration of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is not linked with the performance of the Bank. Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for
2019 is set out in Note 19 to the Financial Statements. Director’s fees, including additional fees for membership of Board Committees,
paid to or receivable by the Directors in respect of their services rendered in year 2019 for the Bank are given below:

Board of Directors:
All Directors HK$400,000 p.a.
Board Committees:
Chairman HK$100,000 p.a.
Other Committee members HK$50,000 p.a.

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2019, all Non-executive Directors (excluding Independent Non-executive Directors) and Executive Directors
have not received their Directors’ fees as mentioned above.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also has the delegated responsibility from the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and the Senior Management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, early payout of deferred
remuneration), as well as the performance-based remuneration. Moreover, it will recommend to the Board on their remuneration
package upon joining, sign-on bonus and contract guaranteed bonus, etc.

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance
their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA'’s “Guideline on

a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries (including the branches and entities in and out
of Hong Kong).
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“Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group defines “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as follows:

» “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

» “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major
subsidiaries, senior executives of Southeast Asian entities, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, the Remuneration Policy of the Group is initiated by Human Resources Department with consultation of the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. After the proposed Remuneration Policy is cleared by the
Management Committee, it will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the
Board for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board will seek opinions from other Board Committees
(e.g. Risk Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the circumstances.

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

. Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the performance management at the levels of
the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down under the framework of balanced
scorecard whereby the performance of the “Senior Management” and different units (including business units, risk control units
and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer, building blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk
management and compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be tied to their job
requirements through the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their
achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance of their units, fulfilment of risk management duties and
compliance and adherence to the Group’s corporate culture, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but also
the values-based behaviours and sufficient risk management during the course of work, ensuring prudent operation and
sustainable development of the Group.

Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method”, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the Group. Credit risk,
market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and reputation risk form the framework of
“The Risk Adjustment Method”. The size of the bonus pool of the Group is calculated according to the risk adjusted performance
results approved by the Board and is subject to the Board’s discretion. This method ensures the Group to fix the Group’s bonus
pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk management through the remuneration
mechanism.

Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that balance
has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the
responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of
the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria
include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

According to the “BOCHK Group Bonus Funding Policy”, the size of the bonus pool of the Group is determined by the Board on the
basis of the financial performance of the Group and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the
long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination process. The
size of the bonus pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board can make discretionary adjustment to
it if deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the
threshold performance level), no bonus will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board reserves the rights to exercise its
discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of which
should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are determined by the
achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a
cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of performance-based
remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and the individual staff, the
higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff. The allocation of variable remuneration to staff should also consider
individual behaviour comprehensively. For behaviour which is positive and adhering to the Group’s corporate culture, the variable
remuneration should be tilted forward; for misconduct or behaviour which is negative and not adhering to the Group’s corporate
culture, the variable remuneration should be forfeited or reduced.

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the Group
To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be
deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral.
The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff and the higher amount of the variable remuneration, the
higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for three years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions
are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group in the next three years and the individual behaviour of the staff
concerned. When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration would be
vested following the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial
factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse than
originally understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour/management style poses negative impacts to the business unit
and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, significant incident and economic loss
incurred by improper management, etc., the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be
forfeited.

* Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review with reference to changes in external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management requirements, etc. Due to changes in organisational structure
and job establishment, the Group reviewed the position lists of “Senior Management”, “Key Personnel” etc. as delineated in the
“BOCHK Group Remuneration and Incentive Policy”.

¢ External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and incentive mechanism, the Group appointed
Willis Towers Watson and McLagan for independent consultation in areas of pay management and market remuneration data of
the Senior Management and key positions, etc.

* Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the
HKMA to disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.
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External Auditor

Pursuant to the “Policy on External Auditor Management” adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee reviewed and monitored and
was satisfied with the independence and objectivity of Ernst & Young, the Group’s external auditor, and the effectiveness of its audit
procedures, based on the principles and standards set out in the said Policy that were in line with international best practices. Upon
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board will propose that Ernst & Young be re-appointed as auditor of the Group at
the Bank’s 2020 annual general meeting. Subject to shareholders’ authorisation, the Board will authorise the Audit Committee to
determine the remuneration of Ernst & Young. For 2019, the fee paid or payable by the Group to Ernst & Young was HK$39 million
(2018: HK$49 million), of which HK$27 million (2018: HK$27 million) related to audit services and HK$12 million (2018: HK$22 million)
related to other services (mainly including tax-related and advisory services). The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit
services in 2019 did not affect the independence of Ernst & Young.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board oversees the Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. According to the Board’s scope of delegation, the Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and risk management, and the Management needs to provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss; to manage
the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it
also ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Group conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk management. The review is conducted by reference
to the guidelines and definitions given by the regulatory and professional bodies for the purpose of assessing five different internal
control elements, namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and
monitoring. The assessment covers all the major internal controls and measures, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The review also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience and training of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions. The review is coordinated by the
Group’s internal audit which, after the Management and various business departments have performed their self-assessment and the
Management has confirmed the effectiveness of the relevant systems, carries out an independent examination and other
post-assessment work on the review process and results. The results of the 2019 review, which have been reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board, revealed that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and adequate.

In addition, the key procedures that the Group has essentially established and implemented to provide internal controls are
summarised as follows:

« arational organisational structure with appropriate personnel is developed and whose responsibility, authority, and accountability
are clearly delineated. The Group has formulated policies and procedures to ensure reasonable checks and balances for all the
operating units, reasonable safeguard for the Group’s assets and adherence to relevant laws and regulations and risk
management in its operations;

» the Management draws up and continuously monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategies, business plans and financial
budgets. The accounting and management systems that are in place provide the basis for evaluating financial and operational
performance;

« the Group has various risk management and human resources policies. There are specific units and personnel that are
responsible for handling reputation, strategic, legal, compliance, credit, market, operational, liquidity and interest rate risks. There
are also procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group has set up
mechanisms to identify, evaluate and manage all the major risks, and has established corresponding internal control procedures
as well as processes for resolving internal control defects. (Details about the Group’s risk management are provided on pages 294
to 302 of this Annual Report);
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

« the Group has established an information technology governance structure that produces a range of reports on information
systems and management, including information on the monitoring of various business units, financial information and operating
performance. Such information facilitates the Management, business units and the regulatory bodies in assessing and monitoring
the Group’s operation and performance. Proper communication channels and reporting mechanisms are in place at various
business units and levels to facilitate exchange of information;

* pursuant to a risk-based approach and in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee, the Group’s
internal audit conducts independent reviews on such aspects as financial activities, various business areas, various kinds of risks,
operations and activities. Reports are submitted directly to the Audit Committee. The Group’s internal audit closely follows up on
the items that require attention in a systematic way and reports to the Management and the Audit Committee in a timely manner;
and

» the Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by external auditor to the Group’s Management in connection with the annual
audit as well as the recommendations made by regulatory bodies on risk management and internal control. The Group’s internal
audit follows up on the same to ensure timely implementation of the recommendations, and also periodically reports the status of
the implementation to the Management and the Audit Committee.

The Group is committed to upholding good corporate governance practices and the internal control system of all subsidiaries are
reviewed regularly. During the year of 2019, continuous improvements on the organisation structure and segregation of duty, the risk
management policy and procedure, and the enhancement of disclosure transparency have been undertaken by the Group. In
response to internal and external changes in global economic condition, operating environment, regulatory requirement and business
development, the Group has implemented a series of measures and undertaken an on-going review on the effectiveness of the
internal control mechanism. In 2019, areas for improvement have been identified and appropriate measures have been implemented.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement in relation to Financial Statements

The following statement should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s statement of their responsibilities as set out in the auditor’s
report. The statement aims to distinguish the responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor in relation to the financial statements.

The Directors are required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to prepare financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless it is considered
inappropriate. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the accounting records kept by the Bank at any time reasonably and
accurately reflect the financial position of the Bank, and that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The Directors also have duties to take reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Bank has adopted appropriate accounting policies which have

been consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards which they
consider to be applicable have been followed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
§i 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 50 to 293, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters:

How our audit addressed the key audit matters:

Impairment assessment of advances to customers

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.14, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies in Note 3.1, and disclosures on credit risk and loan
impairment allowances in Note 4.1 and Note 23 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking “expected-loss”
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(“ECL”) of its advances to customers. The assessment of credit
risk and the measurement of ECL are required to be based on
unbiased and probability-weighted possible outcomes, and
reasonable and supportable information at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Significant management judgements and
estimates are involved in the development and the application
of models and the choices of inputs in the calculation of ECL,
including:

1) segmentation of financial assets according to credit risk
characteristics;

2) estimation of probability of defaults, loss given defaults,
exposure at defaults and macroeconomic factor forecasts;

3) criteria on significant credit deterioration; and

4) selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings.

As at 31 December 2019, gross advances to customers
amounted to HK$1,395,423 million, representing 48.5% of total
assets; and the impairment allowance for advances to
customers amounted to HK$7,035 million, representing 90.2%
of total impairment allowance on financial instruments.

In view of the significance of the impairment allowance
recorded by the Group and the management judgements and
estimates involved, impairment assessment of advances to
customers is considered a key audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit
management and practices and evaluated the Group’s
impairment methodology, including the management
judgement over the segmentation of portfolio, the criteria on
significant credit deterioration and the measurement approach
of expected credit losses. We tested the design and the
operating effectiveness of the key controls over the processes
of credit assessment, loan classification, stage classification
and calculation of impairment allowances. Our control testing
on the loan impairment process included an evaluation of the
governance over the use of economic scenarios and the
system interfaces of inputs or other data sources such as
internal loan gradings and probability of default.

We adopted a risk-based sampling approach for our loan
review procedures. We selected samples based on risk
characteristics of individual items including the industry and
geographic location of the operations of borrowers, internal
loan grading and past due history. We formed an independent
view on the loan staging through reviewing the borrowers’
detailed information about their financial performance,
recoverable cash flows, valuation of collaterals and other
available information.

For the impairment allowance as at 31 December 2019, we
performed testing on the relevant data quality by sample
checking to the relevant data source and re-computed
management’s calculation of the impairment allowance. In
addition, we assessed management’s consideration of
forward-looking information including macroeconomic factor
forecasts and probability weighted economic scenarios. For
Stage 3 advances, on a sample basis we re-calculated the
impairment allowance with consideration of recoverable cash
flows and valuation of collaterals.

We also evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key controls related to disclosures
on credit risk in Note 4.1 to the financial statements.
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Key audit matters:

How our audit addressed the key audit matters:

Valuation of financial instruments

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.12, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies in Note 3.2, and disclosures on fair values of financial
instruments in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the financial statements.

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets. These valuation techniques, in particular those that
include significant unobservable inputs, involve management
using subjective judgements and assumptions. With different
valuation techniques and assumptions applied, the valuation
results can vary significantly.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value amounted to HK$748,774
million and HK$64,993 million respectively, representing 26.0%
and 2.5% of total assets and total liabilities respectively.
Financial instruments which had significant unobservable
inputs in the valuation, and hence were categorised within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, involved a higher degree of
uncertainty in their valuation. As at 31 December 2019, 71.7%
and 0.3% of the Group’s financial assets measured at fair value
were categorised within level 2 and level 3, respectively.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls related to the valuation of financial
including  independent

independent model validation and approval.

instruments, price verification,

We focused on the valuation methodologies and assumptions
of financial instruments that were classified as level 2 and level
3 in the fair value hierarchy. We involved our valuation
specialists in evaluating the valuation techniques, inputs and
assumptions through comparison with the valuation techniques
that are commonly used in the market, the validation of
observable inputs using external market data, and comparison
with valuation outcomes obtained from various pricing sources.

We also evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key controls related to the fair
value disclosures in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the financial
statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.22, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies in Note 3.3, and disclosures on deferred taxation in
Note 34 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised deferred tax
assets of HK$803 million relating to temporary differences
arising from impairment allowances and HK$581 million
relating to other temporary differences and tax credits. The
majority of other temporary differences and tax credits related
to tax credits recoverable from the tax authorities in Hong Kong
under double tax treaty arrangements, arising from withholding
income taxes payable in other jurisdictions on certain income.
Application on such tax credits will be made to the tax
authorities in Hong Kong after the corresponding withholding
income taxes payable is settled and evidenced by respective
payment receipts issued from the corresponding tax
authorities. These deferred tax assets, where required by
accounting standards, were offset against and included within
deferred tax liabilities as shown in Note 34 to the financial
statements. The recognition of the deferred tax assets involved
significant management judgements and assumptions, based
upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility
to recover such deferred tax assets recognised.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the
involvement of our tax specialists to assist in evaluating the
judgements and assumptions adopted by management to
determine the recognition and recoverability of the deferred tax
assets, in light of current tax laws. We also assessed
management’s estimates of the Group’s entitlement to the tax
credits and examined correspondences between the Group
and relevant tax authorities.

In addition, we also assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
Note 34 to the financial statements with respect to compliance
with HKAS 12 — Income Taxes.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is LEE Shun Yi, Jasmine.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading gain

Net gain on other financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances

Net charge of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments
on investment properties

Net (loss)/gain from disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment

Share of profits less losses after tax of
associates and joint ventures

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests

Dividends

The notes on pages 58 to 293 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(EFD
By (Restated)
Notes 2019 2018
WHHEAT N NEW b
HK$’'m HK$'m
64,538 58,835
(27,273) (22,358)
6 37,265 36,477
15,421 15,815
(3,216) (3,848)
7 12,205 11,967
8 5,649 3,276
9 328 518
10 771 1
11 831 738
57,049 52,977
12 (2,015) (1,237)
55,034 51,740
13 (16,124) (14,722)
38,910 37,018
14 288 921
15 1) 19
25 137 69
39,334 38,027
16 (5,980) (6,342)
33,354 31,685
33,186 31,521
168 164
33,354 31,685
17 15,754 16,141
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SEamRmE Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(&
FE (Restated)
HE12 A 31 HikEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2019 2018
EREAT WM E AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
EERR Profit for the year 33,354 31,685
FHGA EH KB R N Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
iH to income statement:
Vit Premises:
Fa e A Revaluation of premises 27 1,054 2,118
IR Deferred tax 34 (130) (293)
924 1,825
PLAPAEAR AT N HoAth 4 T i Equity instruments at fair value through other
AT A comprehensive income:
AAEARA, Change in fair value 474 31
GBI Deferred tax - (5)
474 26
B 515 58 - Own credit risk:
T8N AAAEA T TR Change in fair value of own credit risk of
AU E S50 financial liabilities designated at fair value
S 22 AR through profit or loss (45) 25
I SE R I Deferred tax 7 -
(38) 25
1,360 1,876
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SZEEmEE (8  Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(continued)

(HEF
BRHE (Restated)
HWAE 12 A 31 HikERE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2019 2018
WMEAT VA TREWA bW
HK$’'m HK$'m
T EB KBRS RN Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
TiH income statement:
DA SPAEAR AT N A A T Debt instruments at fair value through other
s LA comprehensive income:
AAEAAL Change in fair value 5,190 (1,441)
R e R AT Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement 12 19 18
AL /8l 2 R FoH Ay Release upon disposal/redemption
FKE R reclassified to income statement 10 (795) (35)
OSAERT ERE R A Amortisation of accumulated amount of fair
MR R B & value hedge adjustment reclassified to
income statement 8 17
396 SE R 0 Deferred tax (702) 317
3,720 (1,124)
T ST 23 Currency translation difference 262 (98)
3,982 (1,222)
FEBREE MR Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 5,342 654
AR S Total comprehensive income for the year 38,696 32,339
L oA YT AT 2 A Total comprehensive income attributable to:
AT IR AR Equity holders of the Bank 38,528 32,175
e iR Non-controlling interests 168 164
38,696 32,339

%558 % 293 T i @A 454 F 2 The notes on pages 58 to 293 are an integral part of these financial statements.
PRS-
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SZaERT-HRE Consolidated Balance Sheet
(EFD
By (Restated)
T12H31H As at 31 December Notes 2019 2018
WHE T VA TRE VAP
HK$’'m HK$'m
B ASSETS
FEAE I & AR ARAT S o Ath 4 L Cash and balances and placements with banks
¥z ghis Je e 7T and other financial institutions 20 366,636 433,068
PLASPAEAS AT A 86 2 4x b Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 21 46,662 274,157
AR T E Derivative financial instruments 22 31,167 34,955
Fr R AT BUX BURF 7 B0E B 45 Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness 163,840 156,300
TR B o Ath T 151 Advances and other accounts 23 1,412,501 1,282,286
W Investment in securities 24 739,335 540,855
BB A R R BB S Interests in associates and joint ventures 25 619 482
Eitdngy/NI4 Investment properties 26 20,428 19,988
Yk #RA R Properties, plant and equipment 27 51,173 49,071
ISR T 5 7 Current tax assets 45 -
B IERL I L Deferred tax assets 34 63 82
HoAth g Other assets 28 42,085 32,541
P Total assets 2,874,554 2,823,785
il LIABILITIES
AR AT B X R AR T Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation 29 163,840 156,300
HRAT B FAb & R LA 2 A7 3K I Deposits and balances from banks and other
iR financial institutions 267,657 376,521
PLASPAEAS A T N5 8 2 4 il 67 45 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss 30 19,206 15,535
iRl T B Derivative financial instruments 22 32,833 30,812
B Deposits from customers 31 2,014,092 1,899,102
CLEAT SIS B AT A Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue 32 116 9,453
A e T B2 #E 2 Other accounts and provisions 33 66,945 47,960
A ABRIR A5 Current tax liabilities 7,906 2,437
I IE R I A5 Deferred tax liabilities 34 6,375 5,715
Ja FE f Aot Subordinated liabilities 35 12,954 13,246
B A0 Total liabilities 2,591,924 2,557,081
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ZE&%PEMEE (82)  Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

(EFD
By (Restated)
T12H31H As at 31 December Notes 2019 2018
WHHE T b NE Y
HK$’'m HK$'m
Bk EQUITY

&N Share capital 36 43,043 43,043
& #% Reserves 215,829 199,907

AERAT AR o5 B A 25 Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank 258,872 242,950
AARAT HAB AN T B Other equity instruments of the Bank 37 23,476 23,476
A4 IR A Non-controlling interests 282 278
v Total equity 282,630 266,704
fi G A Total liabilities and equity 2,874,554 2,823,785

% 58 % 293 M2 M EAMS4E  The notes on pages 58 to 293 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Z Y

ZFERT 2020 4 3 A 27 Himd Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
HEH U N LR E

WLJ:)

XUFERT LIU Liange [=i3UL07 GAO Yingxin

EH Director HH Director
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BT AT AR

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

A
Share
capital

it

Reserves

Iz
Al
Premises
revaluation
reserve

AP
AR kA%
Reserve for
fair value
changes

SEELEN
IRt 7
Reserve
for own
credit
risk

ARG R
Regulatory
reserve*

B
Translation
reserve

i E o
Merger
reserve**

FA7 2T
Retained
earnings

Mt
Total

HoAt
JBAL
Other
equity
instruments

IEFE I 2R
Non-
controlling
interests

B
Total
equity

WMt
HK$'m
At 1 January 2018,
as previously
reported
Effect of merger of
entity under
common control -

43,043

WMt
HK$'m

36,756

HEDEpZ P
HK$'m

(812)

HEDIEpZ P
HK$'m

FETNEps P
HK$'m

- 9,474

WMt
HK$'m

(728)

21

FETNEps P
HK$'m

1,062

350

WMt
HK$'m

139,638

25

FETNEps P
HK$'m

228,433

396

HEDIEpZ P
HK$'m

HEDIEpZ P
HK$'m

271

FETNEp P
HK$'m

228,704

396

At 1 January 2018,
as restated

43,043

Profit for the year -
Other
comprehensive
income:
Premises -
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income -
Own credit risk -
Debt instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income -
Currency
translation
difference -

36,756

1,825

(812)

26

(1,124)

27

- 9,474

(707)

(125)

1,412

139,663

31,621

228,829

31,621

1,825

26
25

271

164

229,100

31,685

1,825

26
25

Total
comprehensive
income -

Release upon

disposal of equity

instruments at fair

value through

other

comprehensive

income:

Transfer -

Deferred tax -

Current tax -
Release upon

redemption of

financial liabilities

designated at fair

value through

profit or loss:

Transfer -

Current tax -
Acquisition of

entities under

common control -
Transfer from

retained earnings -
Issue of other equity

instruments -
Dividends -

1,825

(1,071)

16
®3)

(20) -

- 1,022

(125)

(2,168)

1,106

31,621

(16)

(2,128)

(15,883)

32,175

(15,883)

23,476

164

(157)

32,339

23,476
(16,040)

At 31 December 2018 43,043

38,581

(1,870)

5 10,496

(832)

350

153,177

242,950

23,476

278

266,704
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LM AAEFE (42) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BRTASTRER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
-2
Reserves
BEER
B APE s Al
BEffifE% 2%  Reserve B LA i‘ﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁ
A&  Premises Reserve for forown JEEMHE* HBEMEE  SIEE HAERF Other Non- BRI
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Merger  Retained Bt equity controlling Total
capital reserve hang risk reserve* reserve  reserve** earnings Total instruments interests equity
WHHAG WTHEAG WHAEAT WTEHAG WHEAT BHEAn WHEAT WTHELAD WTEAT BTAEHALT WBHEAL WHEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
F 201941 H1H  At1 January 2019, as
Z B previously reported 43,043 38,581 (1,870) 5 10,496 (853) - 153,082 242,484 23,476 278 266,238
G ILFPER 2 Effect of merger of
SR Z FmR entity under
common control - - - - - 21 350 95 466 - - 466
F 201941 H1H At1 January 2019, as
Z #F restated 43,043 38,581 (1,870) 5 10,496 (832) 350 153,177 242,950 23,476 278 266,704
SEFE R Profit for the year - - - - - - - 33,186 33,186 - 168 33,354
Hob AT R - Other comprehensive
income:
Ve Premises - 924 - - - - - - 924 - - 924
PAAFAH AR Equity instruments
TN A 4 at fair value
T8 2 i through other
TR comprehensive
income - - 474 - - - - - 474 - - 474
EEEEER 92N Own credit risk - - - (38) - - - - (38) - - (38)
PAATPAE AR Debt instruments at
A H A4 fair value through
T 2 2 il other
% TR comprehensive
income - - 3,720 - - - - - 3,720 - - 3,720
Uik S et Currency
translation
difference - - 1 - - 251 - - 262 - - 262
AT 2R A Total comprehensive
income - 924 4,205 (38) - 251 - 33,186 38,528 - 168 38,696
R4 E LLATEAE  Release upon
it NHAh 4 disposal of equity
W 2 BT E instruments at fair
pa /8 value through other
comprehensive
income:
L2 Transfer - - 1 - - - - 1) - - - -
Y sz 3L m$EI 2 Acquisition of entity
Ak under common
control - - - - . . (728) . (728) - . (728)
IR H AR Transfer from
retained earnings - - - - 581 - 378 (959) - - - -
A HABBAL TR Dividend paid to other
FHHERE equity instrument
holders . . . . . . . (1,390) (1,390) . . (1,390)
(191 Dividends - - - - - - - (20,488)  (20,488) - (164)  (20,652)
T 20194712 H31 H At 31 December 2019 43,043 39,505 2,336 (33) 11,077 (581) - 163,525 258,872 23,476 282 282,630
*BRIEEEI SR HEN S O S IR AU A, A& RE ¢ Inaccordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including
SRR 53 BAE T R 2 M A A VR ARAT — RO . (R d R R 4 future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under
SREHA AN T TR ) o HKFRS 9.
G I T R IS 3 I ) 2 ST R S I S v A B A ** Merger reserve was arising on the application of merger accounting method in relation to the combination with
entities under common control.
3 58 7 293 T P B A 554 20 R 53 o The notes on pages 58 to 293 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(FEFD
BRHE (Restated)
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2019 2018
WHH T HEDIEDAPH
HK$’'m HK$'m
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before
taxation 38(a) (264,203) 276,763
Hong Kong profits tax paid (77) (6,953)
Overseas profits tax paid (625) (625)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities (264,905) 269,185
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of properties, plant and equipment (1,418) (1,165)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 1 6
Additions of investment properties 26 (35) (13)
Dividend received from associates and joint
ventures 25 - 2
Acquisition of entities under common control (728) (2,168)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (2,180) (3,338)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to equity holders of the Bank (20,488) (15,883)
Dividend paid to other equity instrument
holders (1,390) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (164) (157)
Proceeds from issuance of other equity
instruments - 23,476
Payment for redemption of subordinated
liabilities 38(b) - (7,211)
Interest paid for subordinated liabilities 38(b) (707) (1,087)
Payment of lease liabilities 38(b) (608) N/A
Net cash outflow from financing activities (23,357) (862)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (290,442) 264,985
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 625,895 381,099
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (3,994) (20,189)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38(c) 331,459 625,895

The notes on pages 58 to 293 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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W 35 1R 3R
1. FEWS

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

AR ] 3 B AR AT S A
R GRS -

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services.

AT KT FHRSLHA
BRAT 95 23 |l o A VE ML R A
EAERE 1 5P ERORE 14 B

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 14/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

2. FESUBOR

2. Significant accounting policies

Tt A Lia M FHHRERLE
HERTFBERESIW T

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

BREFAIE AL, 1Z 52T BOR ) These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
Be—BUth S T BB 51 s 2 stated.

FERET,
2.1 ZuhlHvE

2.1 Basis of preparation

AR SR W 55 AR T 5
WE I A AU Z &
IS5 IR A HEN (R 55
WEREN A —GR, A,
A N 2 A 5l
HEN . Fr s 2t AE N e Re)
G, IAFEEE (AR
By ZHE.

AGREI SR )5 3 Sk
A g, MR E A LA T
ERA T A A A T S 2
SERF . DA EAR T
NARRE 2 Rl 7 M i A
5 CRLIRATAE R T RO B
NHEIIKZ SR LA
SHEBIIKZ BB 2 LA A
SPE B AE HER R T IR
B R AE B S5 K 2 5
AR IR, FRREAE
YA Sl B 2 ALK i
{5 S A HEFIBR A 2
BARESNIK, FFEm58
TR 2.2 % 2.23,

2 R A P 0 55 1 75 1 U 2 1)
W S54RI, R AT
Rz EHEIRH
TRAAER 2 2 BRI
TEHARHIMT . L m
FEHIWT. BTG, B
A SRR F R AR
Wi Z AR At A, L TR
* 3.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and
Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at
fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Disposal group and repossessed assets held for sale are stated at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further explained
in Notes 2.2 and 2.23 respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21wt (50 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@) T20194£1 A1 B
T SHERERE
FZAEN . BT R

(a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019

BIGERZER THEE
VR /AT R Applicable for ~ S5AR&ZFMER
financial years  Currently
s
Standard/Amendments/ WA beginning relevant to
Interpretation Content on/after the Group
B THEN S 19 (2011) TRMEIE, 4895 20194E1 H1H
(B
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019  No
FE I EN 2 28 5(2011) T K B Al K AR 20191 1 H &
(B
HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019  Yes
FUEI SRS HEN S 16 5 L5 2019 1H1H 2
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019  Yes
U S5t AE AR 3 28 5 FrASBIAL B AN E 1 20191 1 H &
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019  Yes
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2. FELSUBOR (8 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 gmiEE (8D 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) T201941 A1 H& (a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
TR SRR IR financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)
FAZHER . 18T Rtk
€9
o FUWESTIENZE 28 « HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments), “Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
F(2011) (Z1EiT) Ventures”. The amendments clarify that long-term interests such as preference
[ THCE Ka s shares or shareholder’s loans, to which the equity method shall not be applied,
Wz KR 1. % are in the scope of both HKFRS 9 and HKAS 28 and explain that HKFRS 9 is
&AT I B LAS R applied independently before the allocation of losses under the equity method.
G TR LB RIS ] The amendments are applied retrospectively, but restatement of prior periods is
e i o i B not required. The application of the amendments does not have a material impact
BERGTHE) BT on the Group’s financial statements.
TR S5 4 AE S 9
5 R AW
28 SEH, K
il B 5 56 ST M SR
FH A M 0 55 41 5 v

%5 9 FHIESR, A
%R a5 T
Ko BT FE W
KM, (BEFE
7. RIZET
X A £ 1 9 0 45 4
RWA EREE .
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WMEIMEME (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FELSUBOR (8 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 gmiEE (8D 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) 7201941 H 1 Hig (a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
TR SRR IR financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)
FAZHER . 18T Rtk
€9

o TR IS5 AR HE U
F£165 [HK. &
5 55 4t HE U 2R
16 SHRIE 5H
A 2% 2 2 it e
Jeie ke RMARIE
MR OE: DN N ]
B, NEXGEE
FHLBE 5 A AR 6T . 7K
FHN DA Mk 25 11
N 17 52 F 56
P 2 i AR ALY
7 AT MR A
RIBEATAZ S, R&A
ANTERM 4 H M
CRIVAH 26 9% 7= Ar 4k
AR R H D
ERIN s A I ]
B 3P KR f
fit, FFEIEA AT
I PR 1 H
&, HiF, A
o AL B SRR
2 B AR R R
T CLR S
BB 7= 1 47 16 %%
FH TR A I 55
A HENIE 16 S5
it i, A E LR
PR AN
MEERH . S5
G R, ARFLE Lk
BARK & iR
M F N 12 AN H
Bl DL Py 4 30 AL R
AN 15 %% 77 f AL
5, EXFERT,
6% 2% FH K 4k 22 0L
ARG HETEM
TR A . RN
[ £ i kb7 5 7 i
SHENEE 17 58
)4 iF kbR A 1
B EARA . B
WS HENZE 16
S EDR MR W

« HKFRS 16, “Leases”. HKFRS 16 supersedes the existing standard and
interpretations related to leases. Significant changes to lessees’ accounting are
introduced, with the distinction between operating and finance leases removed.
Lessees account for all leases in a similar way as the finance lease accounting
under HKAS 17, i.e. the lessees recognise and measure the corresponding
“right-of-use” asset and lease liability at the commencement date (the date when
the underlying asset is available for use by lessees) of the lease by discounting
the total future lease payment. Subsequently, the lessees recognise interest
expense through the unwinding of the lease liability, and the expense on the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of recognising as rental expenses
under operating leases before the implementation of HKFRS 16. As a practical
expedient, the lessees can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases not more than 12 months and leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term. There are no significant changes to the lessors’ accounting
requirements as compared with HKAS 17. The requirements of HKFRS 16 are
summarised as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)

Lease liability is the discounted present value of the future cash flow of the lease
payments of a lease contract, after taking into account payment to be made in
optional period if the extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised, using
the lessees’ incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date of the lease as
discount rate.

Right-of-use asset is generally measured at the amount of the lease liability plus
initial direct costs, estimated dismantling or restoring cost and adjusted by prepaid
lease payments. The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

After the commencement date, the carrying value of lease liability will be increased
to reflect the unwinding of discount through interest expense and will be reduced
to reflect the lease payments made. The lease liability will also be remeasured if
there is any modification to the lease contract. A right-of-use asset is depreciated
by straight-line method from commencement date to the end of lease term. In case
there is a purchase option that is expected to be exercised, then the right-of-use
asset will be depreciated to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)

The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach for the adoption
of HKFRS 16 and recognised the cumulative effect of the initial application by
initially recognising the opening balances of the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities at 1 January 2019 with no restatement of the comparative information.
The initial application has affected lease contracts that are previously classified as
operating leases.

The first time application of HKFRS 16 resulted in the initial recognition of lease
liabilities (recorded under “Other accounts and provisions” in the balance sheet) of
HK$1,684 million and right-of-use assets (recorded under “Properties, plant and
equipment” in the balance sheet) of HK$1,700 million respectively, mainly related
to lease of properties. The difference between lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets is related to the adjustment arising from prepaid or accrued rent as at the
initial adoption date. Initial direct costs were not included in the opening
adjustment of right-of-use assets as permitted by the transition practical expedient
of the standard. Furthermore, single discount rates have been applied to group of
lease contracts with same or similar asset category, same lease terms and
originated from the same economic environment. Lease contracts expired in one
year from date of initial adoption of the standard are accounted for as short-term
leases as described above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)

The operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are reconciled as
follows to the recognised lease liabilities under HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019:

7 R VA 5541 75 A JU) 28
1657201941 A1 H
Z B S ZE 5 5
ZN/I
Difference between operating lease
LEHRAHSHRARBER commitments and lease liabilities
WMEAT
HK$’'m
T 2018 4 12 H 31 HZ & &M% Operating lease commitments at
31 December 2018 1,366
DAYEE A0t i it ) e 6 A P 48 A R R Discounted present value using the
Iz BUE incremental borrowing rates of the Group at
the date of initial adoption 1,247
- RSB R IR R - Recognition exemption for short-term
leases (79)
- DEMERAEBMHE S - Leases with contract signed but not yet
effective (117)
- AR E AT AR S AL - Extension options reasonably certain to
be exercised 641
- Hih - Others (8)
T 2019 £ 1 A 1 B2z AR AR Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 1,684

LR FH P EEE
St R BORT A AT
PR e, AR AL B
M E AT, TR
Y 7 I 55 i v
F165 ZHTH AN
i 5% AL G R ¥ RABE
o T E I 554t
T 5516 5 5 2K [ 5 1
M5, EHATETH
U I ) 7 P I 55 A
HEN 51645 1, mhik
ST L R M B
WA H AT ] i 2
P, T A FAEA
PP I e B AR R
/NS T O]
B3 1) P AR A

AN
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The Group also holds interests in government land leases in Hong Kong and the
Mainland of which the lease payments have been paid, and had been classified
as finance lease and capitalised as real estates before the adoption of HKFRS
16. So far as the impact on the adoption of HKFRS 16 is concerned, the Group is
not required to make any adjustments or reclassification at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 on leasehold lands and the properties located on top,
other than identifying their carrying amounts in the disclosure notes of the
corresponding assets. There is no impact on the opening balance of equity.



BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

@ ¥ B 4L 45 (5 %) HmAT

WMEIMEME (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FELSUBOR (8 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 ZRiFERE (5 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@ F201941 51 Hilg (a) Standard, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

FHRSTHER B R financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)

FZER BT KR

€:9)

o FVEIE SR A * HK(IFRIC) - Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The interpretation
BE23% [T RiL specifies how an entity should reflect and measure the effects of uncertainty in
B AEE]. %k accounting for income taxes by determining how probable that a taxation authority
R B B A 75 e will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The interpretation is applied on a modified
F WK g — T retrospective basis. The application of this interpretation does not have a material
ANH 5 B 45 AL HE ) mT impact on the Group’s financial statements.

RETE, DLW it
AN E X P AL
SRR . %R R
AR E WIS

K HIZ @R A 4R 4
FR 55 2 A HL R
AP
(b) TAARAHE ¥ >R 58 il 4 (b) Amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and have not been
ERBEBREREER early adopted by the Group in 2019
T 2019 FRATKMPZ
&
RIGERZERE THAEE
Applicable for ~ GX&£HEX
1 s ™™ oo
Amendments Content onl/after the Group
UL 1 5 LA THEN X EH R E X 2020F1 H1H &
H8H (&BID
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020 Yes
(Amendments)
U THIENS 28 5(2011) ¢ Pem A 5 HBE BS Bk T B B BN Gy 2
FHE S5 HENEE 10 5
(218
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined Yes
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) Associate or Joint Venture
FHETIEINEE 39 5. FHEIM S JfkR A 2020F1 H1H &
HAENEE 7 5 R A HE 554 U
ME 95 (&I
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020 Yes
(Amendments)
U S IE NG 35 (ZBI) X kie X 2020F1H1H &
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business 1 January 2020 Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and have not been

ERREEHAER
F 2019 ‘ERETFRGIZ
BT (82

Ttk 5 AL AR 2 A&
TR 55 i 75 4 JU 3 3
T

early adopted by the Group in 2019 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

S HEN 1S
KAl tHHEN 55 8
5 (BT [HEX
PERIE o ZIUETT
W RO B2 58
BT, I {2 E
A 5E B
ZIUETT 3w G kR
P )% S v Al B Hi R
2o PR BT
Xof AEE AT 95 e
R BRI

s 2 iF vk I 5 28
5(2011) K A I 55
RGN0 (&
A7 5 H ik
B A Az [/
ZrE BN | 1%
TUET 6T 5 s &t
HEN 55285 (2011) 5
A 554 S E JU)
105 2 (Al R %
HEHRBESRGEM
Ml TR (5 7= H A
HENIA—BHE .
HEMMEAT 2 F R
NY—EBR—AE
B®RIE S (G
EhGETHEL
CIDIIA RN E
iy U—EZHWR
e, AHZEFEHA
IR —ANE sk (B
ff &8 It 8 & & %
P, SRR A 5
f. ZWUEIT 5 AR
PR B e ir i
AR RHZEIT
ot AR A [ (KU 45
BAT R

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments), “Definition of Material”. The amendments
clarify the definition of materiality of information and align the definition used
across other accounting standards. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively and early application is permitted. The application of these
amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 (Amendments), “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”. The amendments
address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in HKAS 28
(2011) and those in HKFRS 10, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of
the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or
loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively and early application is permitted. The application of
these amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 R (8D
(b) TR AH 1 R 5 ]

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and have not been

ERREEHAER
F 2019 ‘ERETFRGIZ
BT (82

o il T AME N 25 39
T BB SR HE
W EET7 5 Je A W 55
A AEN 59 (&
EAT) [ HEHER R L
] ZET BB
— BB E AR i
A AE T e PR e
R R DS PR ANTif 5 1
M0 5| A2 AP AR R -
BRAh, AZBIT ER A
H [ B R AR T
AN E T B
FRR R AR AL
o ZIUEIT T B
PR B AU Al i
HIREN. PR %
BT X AR 9 55
AR B ELRI .

o RIS I
35 (&) X4
e S ZET B
FEVE Al 1y E S
2 B Bl Ak 1Al
Al & I 5 5 R A
YE R felk & I B
PO ANIK . ST
i IR 2 fe v
Al AR RTREN . it
KRBT X AR
F 55 AR AR R

M.

early adopted by the Group in 2019 (continued)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments), “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform”. The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting requirements
to provide relief from potential effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are to be applied
retrospectively and early application is permitted. The application of this
amendment will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Amendments), “Definition of a Business”. The amendments clarify the
definition of a business, with the objective of assisting entities to determine
whether a business combination transaction should be accounted for as a
business combination or as an asset acquisition. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively and early application is permitted. The application of this
amendment will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. FELSUBOR (8 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 ZRiFERE (5 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) SEEFWMHMEHEN (c) Improvements to HKFRSs
[ 5E A U 45 45 v “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains a number of amendments to HKFRSs which the
U NERCREE AT &3 T HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result in
A2 WA E 2 accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well as
HHREMEIT. 46 terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. These
I BAEFIR. HINEL improvements will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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BT, BLERZ IS A
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(AN AP
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2. FESTBOR (80 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 ZEAMBZHE 2.2 Consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and
all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019.

(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee). When the
Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement
with the other vote holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment in that former subsidiary retained;
reclassifies the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income to the
income statement or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities; recognises any resulting differences as
gain or loss in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

If the Group is committed by the Board to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary (a disposal group) that is unlikely to be withdrawn or changed significantly,
the Group shall classify all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary as held for sale
only when the following criteria are met on or before the end of the reporting period:
(i) the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use; (ii) the subsidiary is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of its
kind and its sale must be highly probable, including a high probability of shareholders’
approval, if needed; (iii) an active programme to locate a buyer at a reasonable price
has been initiated and to complete the sale within one year, regardless of whether the
Group will or will not retain a non-controlling interest after the sale. Disposal group
(other than investment properties and financial instruments) is initially recognised and
subsequently remeasured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Properties, plant and equipment classified as held for sale are not
depreciated.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
the fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred (including contingent consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a gain on bargain. Subsequently, goodwill
is subject to impairment testing at least annually.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger accounting
method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting is a way to combine
companies under common control as though the business of the acquiree had
always been carried out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements represent the consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated financial position of the Group as if any such combination had
occurred from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under common
control (i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of combination is required). The
difference between the consideration and carrying amount at the time of
combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all transactions between the
Group and the acquiree, whether occurring before or after the combination, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Comparative amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the
beginning of the previous reporting period. The transaction costs for the
combination will be expensed in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where
necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment
is established.

(2) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests without change of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recognised in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recognised in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement or retained
earnings, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is the entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures include goodwill, net of
accumulated impairment loss and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation difference.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates or joint
ventures is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The accumulated post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates or joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

If the ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement or retained
earnings, where appropriate.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management Committee, which is the chief operating decision
maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

. assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

« income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in the translation reserve. When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in an effective hedge,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair
value hedge); or

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash flow
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risks, the hedge
ratio and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. These criteria should be met before
a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
may become ineffective if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that dominates the
fair value change of the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective
fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

When fair value hedge accounting is applied to financial instruments carried at
amortised costs, the carrying values of the hedged items are adjusted for changes in
fair value that are attributable to the interest rate risk being hedged with the derivative
instruments rather than carried at amortised cost, such carrying value adjustment is
recognised in the income statement together with the changes in fair value of the
hedging derivatives.

If the hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is
terminated for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of the hedged
item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment (the difference between the carrying
value of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value at which it would
have been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is amortised to
the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item by the effective
interest method. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value
adjustment is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Fair value hedge (continued)

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt instruments
carried at FVOCI, changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement whilst
hedge accounting is in place. When the hedge relationship no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other than derecognition,
the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair value change recognised in the income
statements are amortised by the effective interest method back to the revaluation
reserve. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective
hedged portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement are
reclassified to revaluation reserve immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised in the income statement when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the income statement.

(c) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in a similar way to
cash flow hedges. A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss
on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.6 Offsetting financial instruments
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities or fixed rate
subordinated notes are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest rate swap.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense
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(continued)

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services
fee. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the following measurement
categories at initial recognition as subsequently measured at: fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”). The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or
the election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial assets carried at FVPL, all transaction costs of financial assets are
included in their initial carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss, including those held for trading.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

A financial asset, other than those held for trading or mandatorily measured at fair
value, will be designated as a financial asset at FVPL, if it eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, and is so designated
by the Management.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly
to the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments designated at FVPL. The interest component is reported as part of the
interest income. Dividends on equity instruments of this category are also recognised
in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at FVPL
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (“hold-to-collect” business model), and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding on specified dates. They are initially recognised at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for impairment
losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation of premium or discount is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statement, gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, and (ii)
the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified
dates.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial
assets are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss
previously recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to
recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive
income without subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the income
statement even upon disposal. Dividends on equity instruments classified as FVOCI
are recognised in other operating income when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)

The treatment of translation differences on FVOCI securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: trading
liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt
securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities.
All financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at fair value, and
in the case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, plus or minus
transaction costs.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is measured at fair value and any gains
and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement, with
interest component being reported as part of the interest expenses.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 &R (8D

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)
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A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it is so
designated at inception. Financial liabilities so designated include certain certificates
of deposit in issue and certain deposits received from customers that are embedded
with derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
criteria:

« eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis to the key management; or

. relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives that
significantly modify the cash flows resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement, except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
recognised as other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to the
retained earnings upon derecognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(3) Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated
liabilities and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, together with
subordinated liabilities and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading
liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortised
cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period using the
effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities at fair value
on the date the guarantees were given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision as
set out in Note 2.14 and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to
the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. These contracts are in the scope of the ECL requirements as set out in Note
2.14.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments (continued)

The ECL provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments are reported under
“Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements.

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at FVPL, securities
measured at FVOCI and amortised costs are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and advances and other financial
assets are recognised when cash is advanced to the counterparties. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the
transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if control remains
or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL and debt securities and
certificates of deposit in issue are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not
designated at FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers, other
liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. If the Group purchases its own debt, it is
removed from the balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying amount of a
liability and the consideration paid is included in profit or loss, except the own credit risk
component for those designated at FVPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recognised as due to banks, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or
financial assets at FVPL. Reverse repos or securities borrowings with a “hold-to-collect”
business model and contractual cash flow of solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are initially recognised in the balance sheet as cash and
due from banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions, as
appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the
balance sheet. The difference between the sale and the repurchase price is recognised
as interest income or interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the
fair value of financial instruments, where appropriate, includes using on the residual of
the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in
cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities according to
their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the fair value of these
groups of financial instruments on a net basis, the underlying financial assets and
financial liabilities are separately presented in the financial statements unless the
offsetting criteria stated in Note 2.6 are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or
losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

« financial assets measured at amortised cost;

« debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

« loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder/beneficiary of the loan commitment/financial
guarantee draws down/claims on the loan/financial guarantee and (ii) the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/financial guarantee is
claimed.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

* 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default
events within 12 months after the reporting date; or

« lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1
when those financial instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for
credit-impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred
and interest will then be accrued net of the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3
financial assets.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including a loan commitment
and financial guarantee) has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising securities (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

« failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
and

existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment or a financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan and
advances to which the loan commitment/financial guarantee relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recorded in the
fair value reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage
3), in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impairment losses. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. The assets written off
are still subject to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income statement.

96



©)

¥ 8 4 £r(m ) A RAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WS REMIE (80
2. XESHHH (4

215 WHBAT. BFEATLK

AR BB RIEER
B RAE

B R A A BT L B
A, FFRRORBE K {H 5E
Kook, 24T s
EEK. BARMELTREE
BHR RS 1. &
g RPN eI AR RN
AR IR Bl A B KR B
WIF B AT A A
[ R J A LA % A I Bl A
RO, T 2B
AR T B R R AE 2
I IR

B B DK T R i H: T
(5] < %50 1) 48 20 2 B A N
B . T BUE TR
RIS R (1] R L
A J 5 H AR A 18 1 B
# o NAEHBAE TR, 57
T4 Hedse /N AT 43 TR )
B (Bl oo 2
KK, TR MGG
H o 20 BRI AR o B8
BATEA DA E R B EHR.

FEABATHI B L, N
RHE AT BE ARG
B Aok BRSO
£ 1% EIR AR B A 4 1A R
S SCHAE AT K
AR F R A B
A ORI 7 R v B
BN 05 LA B
e

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and

non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Impaired assets are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary,
associate or joint venture is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s
balance sheet exceeds the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including
goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on
which properties are situated), that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
classified as investment properties. Properties leased out within group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as
premises in consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The work in progress item is stated at
cost less impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties.
Once the item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (continued)

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss classified under premises, the
gain is recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties (including right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on
which properties are situated), are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are
stated at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying
amount of premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and
transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold land (see Note
2.18) are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred or provided
for.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties

Over the life of government land leases

. Plant and equipment
2 to 15 years

. Right-of-use asset
Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information
are considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised
in the income statement on the date of disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to
the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over the contract
period.

(1) As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, after taking into account
payments to be made in the optional period if the extension option is reasonably
certain to be exercised, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, then discounted to its present value, and less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2.17) except for the
following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with Note 2.16; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that do not meet the
definition of investment property and where the Group is the registered owner of the
leasehold interest are carried at revalued amount in accordance with Note 2.17.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or a rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change of lease terms, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee (continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Properties, plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities separately
in the statement of financial position.

(2) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease
is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

As a lessee

(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the accounting period in
which it is incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Policy prior to 1 January 2019 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee has obtained substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong
Kong are classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease
payments (i.e. transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair
value of the land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the
fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
liabilities. Investment properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their
fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return.

219 RE&EZERAETHE 2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
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For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused
annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leave
are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitiement is not used in
full. Except for unexpired annual leave, they do not entitle employees to a cash
payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for
bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be
discounted if the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprise current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions,
depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including
securities at FVOCI and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of securities at FVOCI and revaluation
of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive
income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from an investment property is
determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment
property will be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed
assets are measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as “non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the
Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group
or parent reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents;
(v) is subject to common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person
identified in (iv) controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the
Group or its parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible
to changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, are set out below. The effects of changes to either the key assumptions
or other estimation uncertainties are presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is
possible that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to
below.

3.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
Under HKFRS 9, the measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial
asset requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes of which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models. The choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies involves a series of assumptions. ECL models are
developed by leveraging on the parameters implemented under Basel Il Internal
Ratings-Based (“IRB”) models and internal models, where feasible and available.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates
include:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3.1 SRR AR (4R

3.1 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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« The Group’s internal credit rating models, which assign Probability of Defaults to the
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individual ratings. Please refer to CRE of section 7 of the Group’s Regulatory
Disclosures for 2019 for a description of the Group’s internal models;

The Group’s significant credit deterioration criteria (including internal credit rating
downgrade, days past due, drop in Mark-to-Market and qualitative assessment) for
assessing whether the financial assets’ impairment allowances should be measured on
a lifetime ECL basis;

The segmentation of financial assets according to similar risk and default characteristics
(portfolios including Sovereign, Bank, Corporates, Retail Small Medium-sized
Enterprise, Residential Mortgage Loan and Credit Card) when their ECLs are assessed
on a collective basis;

Development of ECL models, including the determination of macroeconomic factor
forecasts (including Gross Domestic Product growth, Consumer Price Index, Property
Price Index and Unemployment Rate) and the effect on Probability of Defaults, Loss
Given Defaults and Exposure at Defaults; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios (including three independent
scenarios i.e. good, baseline and bad) and their probability weightings.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances and investment in securities as at 31 December
2019 are shown in Notes 23 and 24 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.2

3.3

Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions available in externally
acquired financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the industry
such as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data.
In addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not
considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques. Further details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2019 are shown
in Note 22.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unused tax credits are recognised and the
determination of the amount to be recognised requires significant management
judgement. Deferred tax asset on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits. For deferred
tax assets on unused tax credits, judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax
credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.4 HEERRNHEY

3.4 Determination of lease terms of leases
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The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases, to renew the leases for additional
terms of three to nine years. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the option on the lease commencement date. During the
evaluation, the Group considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise the renewal option. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g. a change in
business strategy).

Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019 are shown in Note 27.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Committee (“‘RMC”), a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving Level | risk
management policies and monitoring their implementation, and approving significant or high
risk exposures or transactions. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

17



©)

WS RRME (80
4. SRNBEE (5

ERNEEERE (8

AR TR B S A
K, 7EHHSRBGEE N
HEE KA AR AE 5o
BT BT H
EH RN T, R
FR A ALE B A R bk R XU
FRIAERAT 5 MUK A7 T
P B BB AT R &R H
WE MR T, BT
W5 SR . IO RN it A
BC A W RN AR A, AT
G b a5 % BT 55
2 O 1B PR AR 1T ) 8
P07 R o R M I E 42 AL
YO P A B A K XU 7
HEZ G . &= EHAR
TE HE < 2 0 11 XU i B B
FARIENR, IR oA
3 3 Al 283 L XU
I

AR P A ) o #5A HAR
S P PR B BT A . oLk 55
7 R R A H ) 5 — By
o RPN A= g A A v
Tk AL, 57K
B, AR, A
PRI ST T 4% 28 R A BB
HRER? o

A 1) 5 2 R AR AT IR R
P55 A B2 1] — B s A 7
B . AR T DR A B
& EH 2T, WEHE
O3 R R AU B BB L o

AR T & AR
IR, BIFWSL TS 3L
T4, DU
FiafE R BT B BUR.
TRF R BRA . 1E 2 (ML R AL
1 10 78 70 3t A8 A 4 B R A
Tk 55 T RE, (R LR
WEHHP R T, FE
TEIE 2 ) A PR 5

¥ 8 4 £r(m ) A RAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks,
and approving material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the
Board of Directors. The Deputy Chief Executives (“DCEs”) assist the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities on the day-to-day management of various types of risk, and are responsible
for approving material risk exposures or transactions within their authorities delegated by the
CE. The Chief Risk Officer (“CRQO”) assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the
day-to-day management of risks. The CRO is responsible for initiating new risk management
strategies, projects and measures in response to regulatory changes that will enable the
Group to better monitor and manage any risks that may arise from time to time from new
businesses, products and changes in the operating environment. The CRO is also
responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions within his delegated
authority. In accordance with the principle of setting the hierarchy of risk management
policies approved by the Board, senior management is also responsible for approving the
detailed risk management policies of their responsible areas.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibility for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group’s principal banking subsidiaries are subject to risk management policies that are
consistent with those of the Group. Risk management units of BOCHK monitor the risk
management status of these subsidiaries.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including the establishment
of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The
department of strategic development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s
overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance
and finance, etc. are accountable for review of the risk assessment results.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely
with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of new products.
Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on the risk assessment
results and the corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched
upon completion of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating
departments.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury
products require approval from a special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Chief Credit Officer, who reports directly to the CRO, takes charge of credit risk
management and is also responsible for the control of credit risk exposures of subsidiaries
in line with the credit risk management principles and requirements set by the Group.
Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence. The Risk Management Department (‘RMD”),
which is independent from the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of credit risks and has the primary responsibility for providing an independent
due diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to
ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit
risk management policies and procedures. It is also responsible for the design,
development and maintenance of the Group’s internal rating system and ensures the
system complies with the relevant regulatory requirements. Back offices are responsible
for credit administration, providing operations support and supervision on the
implementation of prerequisite terms and conditions of credit facilities.

In accordance with the Group’s operating principle, the Group’s principal subsidiaries
have to formulate their own credit risk policies that are consistent with those of the
Group’s core principle. These subsidiaries are required to submit their risk management
reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 AR (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The CE can further
delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The
Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature,
rating, the level of transaction risk, and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously
revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. The Credit Risk Assessment
Committee, comprising experts from credit and other functions, is responsible for making
an independent assessment of material credit applications which require the approval of
DCEs or above. Credit applications for non-retail exposures are independently reviewed
and objectively assessed by risk management units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability
of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these
portfolios to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business loans under retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans and credit cards. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support
credit approval.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 AR (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-retail
exposures, more frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk
customers. For retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are
used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for
obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc reports to the
MC, RMC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FRRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divide credit assets into five categories with
reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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41 EHERK (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
fE SRR PPAl K A (48) Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 ERRAR (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced in compliance with
HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for financial instrument held at amortised
cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is
assessed in three stages and the financial assets and loan commitments are classified in
one of the three stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination and the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the loss allowance is measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination but the credit
risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred, the loss allowance is also measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.

The Group has established the significant credit deterioration criteria framework to
determine the stage of the financial instrument. The framework incorporates both
quantitative and qualitative assessment, taking into account of factors such as number of
days past due, change in IRB rating, and the watchlist.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under Basel Il Internal Ratings-Based
(“IRB”) models and internal models where feasible and available to assess ECL. For the
portfolios without models, all other reasonable and supportable information such as
historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies are utilised. The measurement
of ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s probability of default (“PD”), loss given
default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (‘EAD”) discounted at the effective interest rate
to the reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL
measurement to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Baseline” scenario represents
a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred to as “Good” scenario and
“Bad” scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more optimistic or more
pessimistic compared to Baseline scenario.

The Baseline scenario is prepared by our Economics & Strategic Planning Department.
Historical data, economic trend, external forecast from governmental and
non-governmental organisation, etc. are also used as benchmarks to ensure the
scenario is reasonable and supportable. For the Good and Bad scenarios, the Group
makes reference to the historical macroeconomics data.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The macroeconomic factors in the major countries/regions the Group operates such as
Gross Domestic Product growth, Consumer Price Index, Property Price Index and
Unemployment Rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These macroeconomic
factors are considered to be important to the Group’s ECL in statistical analysis and
business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view for the economic
environment, which implements the Group’s prudent and consistent credit strategy of
ensuring the adequacy of impairment allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the
Baseline scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned to
the Good and Bad scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. The probabilities
assigned are updated in each quarter.

RMC is responsible for approving ECL methodology and the Management is responsible
for the ECL model implementation. Credit Risk Management is responsible for the
maintenance of ECL methodology including models review and parameters update on a
regular basis. Independent Model Validation Team is responsible for the annual
validation of ECL models. If there is any change in ECL methodology, the Group will
follow the proper approval process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, property
collateral including the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with
the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate, cash deposits and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the types of
collateral include real estate, securities, cash deposits, vessels, etc.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of collateral held by the Group that was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower amounted to
HK$6,335 million (2018: HK$5,322 million). The Group had not sold or re-pledged such
collateral (2018: Nil). These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and
customary to reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fFIRNE (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures

A 2 e mE TR
B 7R AR 2 A R AT A
HEA B A (S
U RS NENSY
Ho XTF B SR
P, B R
I 7 AR AR 2 LK T
o X FFF H 4R
R, B {8 B AU K
R R B R A
SRR 55 1
REEP. WTRRK
R R HAE A K
Gufit, e fEbe R
FRA AR R T (1 4
.

LR 9 i R i
ot A5 HE AR
PR B Hons A4 1 %
T I 55 5
i o

FEARAT 2 H At - Bl

Ha 2 5 4 % e WA TR

% JERIAE Gy 3 Tk
Bt — RPN ARA
BrARdH . [ — A
SOBIEAE B KK
Pt

LA B AR AL T A

2 4 B IS

X

it
s

\J]

ARSI
TR o

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fFIRNE (8
(A) RRRKAE (5

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivative activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (‘OTC”) transactions are
conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA”) will be included to form part of the
Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from
one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the credit exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 128. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 144 to 145. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 39. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 14.15% (2018: 13.32%)
were covered by collateral as at 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
by product type as follows:
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2019 2018
BHEAT HEMHE I
HK$’'m HK$'m
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 298,914 256,723
- Credit cards 14,688 15,640
- Others 100,754 80,442
Corporate
- Commercial loans 905,303 848,285
- Trade finance 75,764 65,437
1,395,423 1,266,527
Trade bills 20,727 17,361
Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 3,387 3,822
1,419,537 1,287,710

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and

remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either

when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has

not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have

remained continuously to exceed the approved limit that was advised to the

borrower.
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4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SRR HAMMKIN (48 (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

R A — UL £ Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
A XA R K impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred such as past due for more
42 7 AN R than 90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full for the credit obligations to the
M, i 90 Group. Credit-impaired advances are classified as Stage 3 and lifetime expected
KU g, Bk credit losses will be recognised.

N AT i TG ¥ A 3
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IRMERAE . R ITIE
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By B 75 i AN A7 4
A 4R TR S A A
%K.
FR A DL w7 W %2 E Evidence that an advance is credit-impaired include observable data about the
i R e A5 =W following events:
[EN7E¢
EE NN - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
FRIUA 55 PR s <
I3 2 A, - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
Bl 4n AN Jg@ 47 Bd payment;
H B2 A 4 B
B
BN Y] - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
S WA, AL Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
BT 2 U BUE R consider;
P 2 5 i R )
4 TAE RN SR
AT LI,
FUEHE B K - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
NN 2= 1 7= Bk reorganisation; or

T EE, B

oA B 2R % - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
P SAE RS estimated future cash flows from such advances.

R G R 2

BB B R %
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result in impairment loss where
the advances are fully collateralised.

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by
internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:

2019
E—HrEt B H=MrB Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BHEAT BHEAT wHmEAL BHEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
Advances to customers
Pass 1,385,310 1,592 - 1,386,902
Special mention 2,683 2,621 - 5,304
Substandard or below - - 3,217 3,217
1,387,993 4,213 3,217 1,395,423
Trade bills
Pass 20,727 - - 20,727
Special mention - - - -
Substandard or below - - - -
20,727 - - 20,727
Advances to banks and
other financial
institutions
Pass 3,387 - - 3,387
Special mention - - - -
Substandard or below - - - -
3,387 - - 3,387
1,412,107 4,213 3,217 1,419,537
Impairment allowances (4,564) (297) (2,175) (7,036)
1,407,543 3,916 1,042 1,412,501
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4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) R HAMIKIA (55 (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
2018

- 18214 g 1214 BB Rt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WM E AT WM E AT WM E AT WM E AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

EPBER Advances to customers
G Pass 1,254,058 5,019 - 1,259,077
T IE Special mention 1,934 3,133 - 5,067
RKELLTF Substandard or below - - 2,383 2,383
1,255,992 8,152 2,383 1,266,527

ROEZE Trade bills

G Pass 17,357 - - 17,357
B RE Special mention - - - -
Ve 1N Substandard or below - - 4 4
17,357 - 4 17,361

BT REMEMILTA Advances to banks and

e other financial
institutions

G Pass 3,822 - - 3,822
T IE Special mention - - - -
RKELLTF Substandard or below - - - -
3,822 - - 3,822
1,277,171 8,152 2,387 1,287,710
TR AE A Impairment allowances (3,748) (546) (1,130) (5,424)
1,273,423 7,606 1,257 1,282,286
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4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) R HAMIKIA (55 (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
TR S FAh I T ik Reconciliation of impairment allowances and gross amount for advances and other
B HER S BB S accounts is as follows:
BRI :
2019
F—BrE FE B E=E Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WMmEAT HEHBEAT  BHEAT EREAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m
RAEHESR Impairment allowances
T201941H1HZ At 1 January 2019, as
LS previously reported 3,740 546 1,130 5,416
A IF 2 S E R 2 s Effect of merger of
2 B entity under
common control 8 - - 8
T 20194 1H1HZ At 1 January 2019, as
] restated 3,748 546 1,130 5,424
HEE R Transfer to Stage 1 154 (143) (11) -
R B Transfer to Stage 2 (26) 103 (77) -
HERENER Transfer to Stage 3 (15) (184) 199 -
B e o | Changes arising from
transfer of stage (131) 84 1,216 1,169
HoAh AR Ty (045 7 16 % Other changes
PR ORI 2 & (including new
) assets and
derecognised
assets) 832 (105) (44) 683
G| Write-offs - - (462) (462)
Wi ] e Tk 30 Recoveries - - 213 213
P IR AR 4% B 3k Unwind of discount on
impairment
allowances - - 4) 4)
5L ZEA Exchange difference 2 (4) 15 13
T 2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 4,564 297 2,175 7,036
fEidii s R (HE 12) Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 1,852
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4, &RIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fFIRNE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) SERREFAREIR (£ (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
2019
BB FEHB BB Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WHEAT WHEAK BTREAT  #BTHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
st il Gross amount
T201941H1HZ At 1 January 2019,
ELIA% ik as previously
reported 1,276,641 8,152 2,387 1,287,180
A sz LA s ) 2 s Effect of merger of
2 B entity under
common control 530 - - 530
T201941H1HZ At 1 January 2019,

#HE as restated 1,277,171 8,152 2,387 1,287,710
HRE B Transfer to Stage 1 3,103 (2,614) (489) -
HEH TR Transfer to Stage 2 (1,783) 1,927 (144) .
HEE =B Transfer to Stage 3 (1,048) (729) 1,777 -
PR EE, Py New assets, further

LA B lending,

Jo ik derecognised

’ assets and
repayments 135,085 (2,507) 136 132,714
EEE| Write-offs - - (462) (462)
TS ZEA Exchange difference (421) (16) 12 (425)
T 2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 1,412,107 4,213 3,217 1,419,537
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

2018
HBr FNER F=MER Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HEMHE T HEMHE T WM E AT WM E AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Impairment allowances
At 1 January 2018, as
previously reported 3,689 651 618 4,958
Effect of merger of entity
under common
control 3 - - 3
At 1 January 2018, as
restated 3,692 651 618 4,961
Transfer to Stage 1 267 (253) (14) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (38) 53 (15) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (7) (240) 247 -
Changes arising from
transfer of stage (241) 293 815 867
Other changes
(including new
assets and
derecognised
assets) 79 43 194 316
Write-offs - - (834) (834)
Recoveries - - 120 120
Unwind of discount on
impairment
allowances - - (1) 1)
Exchange difference (4) (1) - (5)
At 31 December 2018 3,748 546 1,130 5,424
Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 1,183
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4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fFIRNE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) R HAMIKIA (55 (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
2018
FE FEE BB St
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
whE AT whE AT WmEAT whE AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
st Gross amount
F 201841 H1HZ At 1 January 2018,
ELHA % K as previously
reported 1,187,973 3,958 2,107 1,194,038
A I SR ) 2 s Effect of merger of
2 B entity under
common control 378 - - 378
T 201841 H1HZ At 1 January 2018,
el as restated 1,188,351 3,958 2,107 1,194,416
HEE B Transfer to Stage 1 1,477 (1,449) (28) -
HRE B Transfer to Stage 2 (4,868) 4,884 (16) -
HEESNER Transfer to Stage 3 (599) (275) 874 -
Hrwgt e, gk New assets, further
LA B lending,
T VR derecognised
assets and
repayments 95,588 1,071 285 96,944
HeH Write-offs - - (834) (834)
W5 225 Exchange difference (2,778) (37) 1) (2,816)
T 2018412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 1,277,171 8,152 2,387 1,287,710
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4, ERIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fFIRNE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) SERREFAREIR (£ (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(a) BAELTK (a) Impaired advances
AL 2 % P 5K Impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
SHTINE
2019 2018
e 2K R 3 R
WA TAE
W& Classified or Jft  Classified or
Impaired impaired Impaired impaired
WwhEAxG  WWmEAx WA HEMH T
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Egalnv-est.I] Gross advances
to customers 3,217 3,217 2,383 2,383
LB PR RE Percentage of
banan gross advances
to customers 0.23% 0.23% 0.19% 0.19%
o EIRGERAE Impairment
ZIRAE e allowances
made in respect
of such advances 2,175 2,175 1,126 1,126
REE 4 R B A Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
R SRR classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
2 A B BB RK R loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.

BEoRM T

gl TR B

[T e
K = B
B
WAL B 0%
TR 2 AT
M

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of

collateral in respect of the credit-impaired advances.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Impaired advances (continued)

2019 2018
WHHEAT N NEW b
HK$’m HK$'m
Current market value of collateral
held against the covered portion of
impaired advances to customers
2,187 2,988
Covered portion of impaired
advances to customers
1,011 1,511
Uncovered portion of impaired
advances to customers
2,206 872

As at 31 December 2019, there were no impaired trade bills (2018: HK$4
million), and advances to banks and other financial institutions (2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as
follows:

2019 2018
2 SR 5% S BT R
Btk Bt
% of gross % of gross
&3 advances to ] advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
WBHEAT N NEW b
HK$’'m HK$'m

Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 145 0.01% 443 0.04%
- one year or less

but over six
months 836 0.06% 309 0.02%
- over one year 948 0.07% 310 0.02%

Advances overdue
for over three
months 1,929 0.14% 1,062 0.08%

Impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances
- Stage 3 1,651 828
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M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SERREFAREIR (£ (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(b) A 3 MH (b) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZHE (8B
2019 2018
whEAT BMmE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
R A S Current market value of collateral held
BRI against the covered portion of such
HCHH A advances to customers 487 849
ARG HC L B Covered portion of such advances to
2GR customers 315 349
IR BRI Uncovered portion of such advances to
MR customers 1,614 713
I A 5% K SR Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
DR HLAH charges over business assets such as commercial, residential premises and
BAALE A ARG vessels for corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal
FUICR B % loans.
P, ek
TR AR
BRI AT
EEBL/N|S
F 2019 4 12 H As at 31 December 2019, there were no trade bills (2018: HK$4 million) and
31 H, &A@ advances to banks and other financial institutions overdue for more than three
H3NMAZHALE months (2018: Nil).
(2018 4: &
4 570 FIH

AT B He At 4 R L
BT (2018 -
7o
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M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SERREFAREIR (£ (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(c) EHTK (c) Rescheduled advances
2019 2018
Lp-alhe @st.i] 2 R
Bl [EpiA
% of gross % of gross
&3 advances to ] advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BHEAT WM E AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
2 HH K PR Rescheduled
TR o) advances to
T kg customers net
3 MK of amounts
#a3) included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 239 0.02% 280 0.02%
2% @ H YR Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured and
R ONLE ) renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of deterioration in the
IR e E ki R financial position of the borrower or the inability of the borrower to meet the
SE I FK I [H] 3% 18 original repayment schedule, and the revised repayment terms, either of interest
K, BHRAT SR or the repayment period, are “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled
N B P 8 I8 K advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the
i kB E A A revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three
K, HIBTfEmE months”.
2R B BOE KO
B30y ¢ LD

BNy R (3]
etk Jo ABITIEK
HREzaEN
B2 A7) i 191
3, AR
1E [ 3 A4
Hz 53] W
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4.1 fFIRNE

(B) FEREIARIKIR (42
(d) &P REEHE

(€3] 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

() ATl (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
-9l OsX|
UTFXRTFES The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
PR BB AT based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
sy ar, H HKMA return of loans and advances.
RIT Ve
HEA R DR
R EE R
R I AR AR
TR
2019
A AR WEES -
KAk E F—RNE=
WA R WS - Vig=d
B R EB % covered ERAE HF£=FKE&  Impairment
Gross by collateral  Classified Impairment  allowances -
advances to or other or #@H allowances - Stages 1
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 and 2
WHEHAT BREEAT WHEAL WHEHAT WHEHAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
TR B Loans for use in Hong Kong
Triganl Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Il - Property development 137,663 21.53% - 9 - 695
- Pl - Property investment 49,073 81.98% - 158 - 62
- LRl - Financial concerns 29,411 0.88% - - - 53
- s - Stockbrokers 815 98.27% - - - 1
- fOR A FE - Wholesale and retail trade 39,880 36.86% 88 283 87 210
- il - Manufacturing 42,719 12.98% 193 222 95 174
- IEf I - Transport and transport
equipment 66,511 27.29% 325 69 - 180
- RIS - Recreational activities 2,161 1.19% - - - 3
- BHEHE - Information technology 22,464 0.90% - 48 - 76
- HAb - Others 125,909 47.30% 6 138 4 365
A Individuals
- WS EEAA R - Loans for the purchase of
. NS flats in Home Ownership
PRI AL Scheme, Private Sector
SRR 5% Participation Scheme
o ; and Tenants Purchase
& Scheme 19,855 99.68% 18 161 - 10
- WS HAM R - Loans for purchase of
A other residential
properties 277,288 99.93% 96 1,374 - 97
- [EHROER - Credit card advances 14,663 - 127 579 113 159
- HAb - Others 95,862 90.94% 71 504 63 358
TEAFHE I PR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 924,274 59.85% 924 3,545 362 2,443
R T Trade financing 75,764 14.75% 318 340 237 154
TERHELSMER 2 FEK Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 395,385 6.74% 1,975 1,988 1,576 2,263
EaRlhvesti Gross advances to customers 1,395,423 42.35% 3,217 5,873 2,175 4,860
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4.1 fFIRNE (8
(B) FEREIARIKIR (42

(d) ZFRKREHE
€9

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) BT %2

AN &Y
(%)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2018
A B RAEER -
HoAR IR HAE
L E T REE AR JRIEAER - 51924
Rl v OSK . % covered B2 BB Impairment
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment  allowances -
advances to or other or i allowances - Stages 1
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 and 2
WM /7T wmEae WmEAT WM 7T HMHE AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
TEFFHEE D8k Loans for use in Hong Kong
Triganl Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YRR - Property development 126,328 20.51% - - - 543
- Pl - Property investment 50,223 80.51% 37 117 - 44
- Gl - Financial concerns 22,345 0.89% - - - 37
- s - Stockbrokers 1,171 95.73% - - - 1
- fibk REE - Wholesale and retail trade 38,147 34.46% 21 127 3 179
- il - Manufacturing 51,093 10.57% 136 148 134 87
- IEf SIS - Transport and transport
equipment 66,256 27.37% 867 17 9 150
- RIS - Recreational activities 1,675 1.90% - - - 2
- BHEHE - Information technology 18,006 1.27% 1 220 1 107
- Hd - Others 118,574 38.43% 9 166 7 269
N Individuals
- W EEAH R - Loans for the purchase of
Bl KIS flats in Home Ownership
ERIRIREEE Scheme, Private Sector
LRI £ Participation Scheme
. and Tenants Purchase
& Scheme 11,150 99.80% 18 166 - 4
- WS HAM R - Loans for purchase of
v 4 other residential
properties 243,963 99.92% 65 1,534 - 58
- fEHFRIEK - Credit card advances 15,613 - 135 558 118 150
- Hd - Others 76,468 86.53% 60 634 52 397
TR FH 2 SR s Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 841,012 56.03% 1,349 3,687 324 2,028
o Trade financing 65,437 19.37% 206 232 194 124
TEAFHEASME 2 555 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 360,078 8.80% 828 970 608 2,141
B Gross advances to customers 1,266,527 40.71% 2,383 4,889 1,126 4,293
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

For those industry sectors constitute not less than 10% of the Group’s gross
advances to customer, the amounts of new impairment allowances charged to
the income statements, and classified or impaired loans written off during the
year are shown below:

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development
Individuals

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

146

2019 2018
W TR E
IR o
ik WAESR ik AR DR
WAEH#ES  Classified or IAEHES  Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BHEAT BHEAT WM E 70 WMETT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m
370 - 337 -
50 - 27 -




@ ¥ B 4L 45 (5 %) HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, &RIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EHERK (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) TR EMMMEIN (£2) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
d) ZFPRFKEFE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
€]
(if) H2 Ho 2 X 885 2 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
KRR
JE¥
THIRT & The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
BE AR 2 b B X locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
By #r AR an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a location different
Lo R F BT from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the location of the guarantor.
TEH, FECm &
FEE- SRl ¢
0 R N BT 75
5% P fE s
ANTE], D] PR
L2 R EEON
e,
B P RREB Gross advances to customers
2019 2018
WMEAT WM E AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
s Hong Kong 1,124,352 1,007,394
Fp ] P Ml Chinese Mainland 126,075 127,348
oAt Others 144,996 131,785
1,395,423 1,266,527
R Impairment allowances made in
HHEH ZIR respect of the gross advances to
Li=Ri: T~ customers - Stages 1 and 2
BME_
B
HH Hong Kong 3,228 2,798
Hp ] P Chinese Mainland 492 529
oAt Others 1,140 966
4,860 4,293
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, &RIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 ERRAR (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) TR EMMMEIN (£2) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
d) ZPRZETE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
€]
(i) F2 Hb P X 35k 5 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
K2 EPTR

ISYEE))

EHITEEK Overdue advances
2019 2018
WHHE T WM E ot
HK$’'m HK$'m
s Hong Kong 4,341 3,752
H [ P Chinese Mainland 607 257
HAth Others 925 880
5,873 4,889
BB R K AR Impairment allowances made in respect
HZ A of the overdue advances - Stage 3
% - B=K
B
H Hong Kong 975 407
Fh [ Py Chinese Mainland 423 84
oAt Others 489 445
1,887 936
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M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, &RIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) R HAMIKIA (55 (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
d) ZPRZETE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
€]
(i) % Hh 35 X 45 5y (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
R &P

B (2R

§ & S R Classified or impaired advances
fELEEK
2019 2018
WHE T VA TRE VAP
HK$’'m HK$'m
s Hong Kong 1,766 1,485
] Py b Chinese Mainland 507 197
HoAh Others 944 701
3,217 2,383
A R Impairment allowances made in respect
WRAE B 3K AE of the classified or impaired advances
H 2 Y AR #E - Stage 3
% -B=H
B
HH Hong Kong 1,132 490
Hp ] P Chinese Mainland 436 107
FHoAth Others 607 529
2,175 1,126
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(C) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
summarised as follows:

2019 2018

WMEAT HEMHE T

HK$’'m HK$'m

Residential properties 7 10

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$33 million (2018: HK$23 million). The repossessed
assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or
control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring
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RRELLT
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eSS

R UUT

IRRAELTE %

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Central banks

Pass

Special mention
Substandard or below

Other banks and other
financial institutions
Pass

Special mention
Substandard or below

Impairment allowances
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions before impairment
allowances are analysed by internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:

2019
F-MER FEHER  E=R Hit
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WMEAL #HBEA BHEAT BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
163,019 - - 163,019
163,019 - - 163,019
184,592 - - 184,592
184,592 - - 184,592
347,611 - - 347,611
@) - - @)
347,608 - - 347,608
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, &RIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FHRNK (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) TEHUT RILAh &R (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
M2 858 K e IR (continued)
€:9)
2018
FE P 1101 =B Mt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
whE A Whmakhn BhmEkn BhEAT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
HRERAT Central banks
Bk Pass 171,020 - - 171,020
R Special mention - - - -
WERELLL T Substandard or below - - - -
171,020 - - 171,020
HABARAT R Hof &AL Other banks and other
financial institutions
i Pass 240,071 - - 240,071
WERE Special mention - - - -
V< ETINN Substandard or below - - - -
240,071 - - 240,071
411,091 - - 411,091
VR IERG XS Impairment allowances (15) - - (15)
411,076 - - 411,076
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(D) FEHAT BRI A SR
W2 S5 R e K
(€:9)

FEARAT B H At < R AL
1 2 85 4 ] e WIAE TR
IR AR HE % A2 B 5 DL
FIZRIR :

T 201941 H 1 H

Bk e 2 5

St CtE
P2 R LA B
)

T
T 2019412 311

Hrdi s R (R 12)

T 201841 H 1 H

Bk e 2 A5

St A
P2 R LA B
)

T
T 20184E12 331

Srdlai R (M 12)

T 2019 4F 12 J 31
H, #AasRiEe
TEARAT S A & Bl AL
ey 2 45 4 S AT T
(2018 #F: To).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
(continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions is as follows:

2019
F-BBR  FoHRBR EERER B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

whEAL BhehAT BHEAT BHBEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m

At 1 January 2019 15 - - 15
Changes arising from transfer

of stage - - - -
Other changes (including new

assets and derecognised

assets) (12) - - (12)
Exchange difference - - - -

At 31 December 2019 3 - - 3
Credited to income statement

(Note 12) (12)

2018

BB BEIHER B=NER it

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BHE A WHEAG WAL #HmET

HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

At 1 January 2018 83 - - 83
Changes arising from transfer

of stage - - - -

Other changes (including new
assets and derecognised

assets) (70) - - (70)
Exchange difference 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2018 15 - - 15

Credited to income statement

(Note 12) (70)

As at 31 December 2019, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2018: Nil).
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&M EHE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) fR45iES:RFKIE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
FRRCLRAT VR The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and
MY B 3 BT 2 ft SR 55 certificates of deposit by issue rating and stage classification. In the absence of such
MAE AN THAE - 727G issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.
RATVERITE LR, ]
S RAT NI TR
o
2019 2018
WMEAT WM E AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
PUAPEZT AR Investment in securities at fair value
fb AT AR Z SR through other comprehensive
£5'8511 income
- BB - Stage 1
Aaa Aaa 105,381 87,005
Aal & Aa3 Aa1lto Aa3 170,367 147,984
A1 % A3 A1to A3 351,809 200,721
A3 LR Lower than A3 18,655 22,431
TevFk Unrated 21,445 11,626
667,657 469,767
- BB - Stage 2 - -
- BB - Stage 3 - -
667,657 469,767
o JREAER Of which: impairment allowances (147) (128)
DISER AR AE Investment in securities at amortised
HEH cost
- Wk - Stage 1
Aaa Aaa 57,569 55,589
Aal £ Aa3 Aa1ltoAa3 2,748 3,248
A1 2 A3 A1to A3 5,081 8,980
A3 IR Lower than A3 2,230 1,161
TPk Unrated 782 791
68,410 69,769
- BB - Stage 2 - -
- BB - Stage 3 - -
68,410 69,769
TRAE HE A Impairment allowances (20) (10)
68,390 69,759
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&M EHE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKEE (8 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fFHRNE (4 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) fR45iES:RFKIE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
€ )
2019 2018
WHEAT N TNEW b
HK$’'m HK$'m
PAATHEZA T AR Financial assets at fair value through
W2 SRR profit or loss
Aaa Aaa 2,844 3,634
Aa1 % Aa3 Aa1l to Aa3 26,442 23,241
A1 % A3 A1to A3 7,058 6,444
A3 LI Lower than A3 1,962 1,814
T2k Unrated 3,019 906
41,325 36,039
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M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, &RIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

156

4.1 FRIAK (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) fR45iESs RFKIE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
€ 9)
555 UE I B AT FKE Reconciliation of impairment allowances for debt securities and certificates of deposit
B 2 AR B 1 is as follows:
BLARUNT :
2019
& HE B=HE it
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WHEART WTWEART BREEAT WHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
LA FPEZI T Investment in
fih AR RS 2 iE securities at fair
Lo p v value through other
comprehensive
income
T 201941 H1H At 1 January 2019 128 128
M BUE Pk A 2 AR Bl Changes arising from
transfer of stage - -
HAARE) (5 Other changes
WRE R & b A (including new
Pa ) assets and
- derecognised
assets) 19 19
TS ZER Exchange difference - .
+ 2019 4£ 12 H 31 At 31 December 2019
H 147 147
fid s ® CPRE Charged to income
12) statement (Note 12) 19
AR LA TR Z IE Investment in
HEE securities at
amortised cost
T 201941 H1H At 1 January 2019 10 10
B T s V)| Changes arising from
transfer of stage - -
HABARE) (35 Other changes
S-SR RN (including new
Pa ) assets and
- derecognised
assets) 10 10
i Write-offs - .
T 2019 4£ 12 A 31 At 31 December 2019
H 20 20
Fidi R (i Charged to income
12) statement (Note 12) 10
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T2
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H
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12)

DR RA T BEZIE
FRE

T20184E1 H1H
W B iR 2 A2 B)
FoAhASE) CRLIEHTIY
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T 2018 £ 12 A 31
H
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12)

T 2019 4 12 A 31
H, A E sd
A5 55 7 K AT K
iE (2018 4E: 5.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

2018

H—Br
Stage 1

FNER
Stage 2

F=M
Stage 3

Mt
Total

EME I
HK$'m

Investment in

securities at fair

value through other

comprehensive

income
At 1 January 2018 111
Changes arising from

transfer of stage -
Other changes

(including new

assets and

derecognised

assets) 18
Exchange difference (1)

EME I
HK$'m

BN
HK$'m

EME I
HK$'m

111

18
()

At 31 December 2018
128

128

Charged to income
statement (Note 12)

Investment in

securities at

amortised cost
At 1 January 2018 7
Changes arising from

transfer of stage -
Other changes

(including new

assets and

derecognised

assets) 3
Write-offs

45

(45;

18

52

(45)

At 31 December 2018
10

10

Charged to income
statement (Note 12)

As at 31 December 2019, there were no impaired or overdue debt securities and

certificates of deposit (2018: Nil).

157



©)

¥ 8 4 £r(m ) A RAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WS REMIE (80
4. SRNBEE (5

4.1 FIRNE (8

(F) SRR R4 A4

cyGl

BRI B 5548 £
5 Al RS BTV 2
KB BT R

TR & 0 %5 14

cyGl

G
W IE
RPHLAT

TR R R

#H

ik
RPN T

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(F) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are analysed by internal credit

grade and stage classification as follows:

Loan
commitments
and financial
guarantee
contracts

Pass

Special mention

Substandard or
below

Loan
commitments
and financial
guarantee
contracts

Pass

Special mention

Substandard or
below

2019
FBrB BoBB BEBB Mt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BHEAT BB AT BHEAT BB AT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
683,020 477 - 683,497
1,769 749 - 2,518
- - 38 38
684,789 1,226 38 686,053
2018
Wi WM BB Mt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BME T EME T EME T EME T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
605,718 2,900 - 608,618
1,017 367 - 1,384
- - 91 91
606,735 3,267 91 610,093
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&M EHE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fFHRNR (42
(F) SRR R 44847
AR (8
PERRE BV 55 AR
& A 2 JRAEAE %78 5
TEBLAR R :

T 20191 H1H
HEE B
HEB R
AR =W
W B iR 2 AR )

FofhAZ B CELAR H7 HG 5%
77 RN B
)

T2

T 20194E12H 31 H

fEd iR (A 12)

F 201841 A 1 H
RSB
HRE B
B =B
W LR R 2 AR
HAth A5 5h (A% s v

e 2 L L2 B
)

5t 7240
T 2018412 4311

i aE R (E 12)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

At 1 January 2019
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Changes arising from
transfer of stage
Other changes
(including new
assets and
derecognised
assets)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2019

Charged to income
statement (Note 12)

At 1 January 2018
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Changes arising from
transfer of stage
Other changes
(including new
assets and
derecognised
assets)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2018

Charged to income
statement (Note 12)
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(F) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts is as follows:

2019
BB BB B=HE it
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WHEART WTWEART BREEAT BEREAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
375 20 43 438
14 (13) (1) -
) 2 - -
(12) 11 - (1)
161 1 (25) 137
(1) 1 3 3
535 22 20 577
136

2018
FE FE BB Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
whmE A #mEAT #mEAT N NEW b
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
331 21 - 352
14 (14) - -
(M 1 - -
(1) - 1 -
(12) 12 22 22
49 - 20 69
(5) - - ()
375 20 43 438
91
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WS RRME (80
4. SRNBEE (5

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk

4.2 TR

37 XS 4R A i i
s U, Rl RE
ik s BT
BURATANL, Rl RE
AP b RFBAE B AT
AT BE 45 A 42 T Y O 1 45
Ko ALEMRIGE P
A G, S S
Weas )Pl iR
B EAR, REARYE AR
VT IR i 27 8 4l 55 %
JRHNG, KEETE I XS
T ) R AT R A BT
B, B HAERS
ehRT AR AR Y T I AU

REHEBE el 55 (R A

A A A i R A R Al
TR TR FE T I R
HHERRGR RS &
FEEHN RAERRERRTT /
fr, SEHER, HHRH
o WIREHEA AL
Hia B, Hhihm
FERHNRIEAT H e
IRTT, oIS SEARER K
PR HE 1 T 2 KRR L
DL A B EOR AN IR AT
T, FEH R AN )
PR T 3 SRR B4 4 £ T 48
2K W

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return. The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth of the treasury business, by the effective management of potential market
risk in the Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of
the treasury business on the basis of a well-established risk management regime and
related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RMC, senior management and functional departments/units
perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The RMD is
responsible for the Group’s market risk management, assisting senior management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group and BOCHK, and ensuring
that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WHRKE (8D 4.2 Market risk (continued)

A P T3 KU B R ¥
Fl, O A A
WU o ALERIHIT 32X
R, TR
W B TR LA T T 32 AL
H, FER, REAERR
W6 B B A, F
AR 55 7 SR AN XU 7K 52
AE 7748 — HC BRI B Al
Mo R E R EUR A E
BT T, MRS
HARKER LRy, &R
o HF i KR BT
fE.

A5 A T 3 R R
PR BRA, F TR, iF
B IR ) T A X
67 o = 2L RS b N BT
BFFAEART HRAE S 1E
PR WA R 7
A BBURR L A3 HT (HE i
B BUBURE . £
XS4 AR A0 R AT
R 4 A R
SN2 AN
Ef@é)xz:\ [S#SYI4SE
T Bk 55 RS
sl 55 By e,
AT a5 B K
Bt TR AL Ot T BR A0
=) W ATERAZ I TR
I55; 45 A A B 405 5 Rl Py I F
5%

The Group’s market risk management covers BOCHK and its subsidiaries. The Group
establishes market risk management policies to regulate BOCHK’s and its subsidiaries’
market risk management; meanwhile, the Group sets up the Group’s VaR and stress test
limits, which are allocated and monitored across the Group according to the business
requirements and risk tolerance levels. In line with the requirements set in the Group’s
policy, the subsidiaries formulate the detailed policies and procedures and are responsible
for managing their daily market risk.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VaR, Stop
Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value, Greeks),
etc. To meet management’s requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
into four levels, and are approved by the RMC, MC, CRO and the DCE in charge of the
treasury business or the head of the respective business unit respectively. The treasury
business units of BOCHK and subsidiaries (as for Group Limit) are required to conduct
their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiHRKE (82 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) RBE (A) VaR
AR R The Group uses the VaR to measure and report general market risks to the RMC
FE— kT MR, I and senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VaR
SE ) AU 2% 5 22 0 calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
AL YNE (S market data, to calculate the VaR of the Group and its subsidiaries over a one-day
AL FRA G — 1K holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VaR limit of the Group
B2, 2 and its subsidiaries.
J3 s, Lhid 22
R T EEE NS
M, 15 99% EfE K
RN RIRFEAEN
SR TH B & B IE AL
IR, IR
ALK M B AL
R DR {1 B o
TRERAER— The following table sets out the VaR for all general market risk exposures' of the
T 3 AR RE A Group.
A
&4F 24 &4F
& F12H31H BREE BEEE  CPHRE
i At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year (31 December the year the year the year
BHEA  WmEAK WAL WHEAT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
AT IR A VaR for all market risk 2019 26.6 17.6 52.3 31.0
552z 2018 26.0 241 45.8 33.0
TEFR R 2 KR VaR for foreign exchange 2019 9.3 7.2 211 12.7
risk 2018 15.9 10.7 271 18.0
PSS ES vl VaR for interest rate risk 2019 253 9.8 41.6 21.3
N iSA [N in the trading book 2018 13.0 12.9 43.0 26.4
A2 G R IBEEE AR 2 VaR for equity risk 2019 0.7 0.2 25 0.8
PR AE in the trading book 2018 0.3 0.2 7.0 1.6
T XSG 2 R AL VaR for commodity risk 2019 1.7 0.2 43.7 16.1
2018 9.6 0.8 9.7 3.1
VE: Note:
1AL S5 R RSN i E 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
P RS
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&M EHE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiHRKE (82 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) R (8 (A) VaR (continued)

BOAR KRG E 2 = R Although there is a valuable guide to market risk, VaR should always be viewed in the

T 3% R B — T context of its limitations. For example:

Biehs, HEHHE

PR, .

- SRH P H - the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
R U N ) encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
& e i K fir A AT

REHBLEIT O, T

Ho A2 — o A% v

O

- ARFEE R E - the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
7 AR WA 3k hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
BT UAE—H severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
PEILET . IX hedge all positions fully;
TR 5 K 45 BE 58
4 T R

o, JEILE AT
SEPEARISHT, A
R IAEN R
Py 42 9L o Xt 0
3%k

- MEE X, HRH - the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
99% B 5 K T that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and
W, B IS
I B {5 7K ~F B 4b
WEHIMT
s BAJ

PR B =2 LB - VaR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
I 1) &5 oIS A Sk and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

BAE TSR,

BE AN — 5 Rt

32 G BB R

K o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TIHAE: (82)
(A) REE (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VaR (continued)

A TR TR
W fH 5 b5 19 R IR
P, Bk, #E T
J3 R A5 bR L BR

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VaR. The stress testing
programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors
with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events

DL AT il A1 B RS including the 1987 Equity Market Crash, 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997 Asian
B AN B8 R 75 B T 3 Financial Crisis, 2001 9-11 event and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

P o T3 R R 7

W3, 45 42 AN [ X

545 s e {1 Bl

T2 15 BT A B s
AR, LABx g 2
PERIE 0T,
1987 B %« 1994 1%
FZmmfEhl. 1997
T 4 kR« 2001

RSB BRATD 10
LR Mhh, A4
H 8 T 1 —
BB 5 S
HHC, JREH IS
CH4 (FlmsNC
W) AT
B A3 BT 7 2B ) AL
R o

HEREINMF ALK
20085 RbIFHR 4.

(B) AN (B) Currency risk
A A A 55 7 KA The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
R TT. E HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
SN TR = Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VaR limit) are used
e ATRINC RS to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
AMRFFE R between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
IR, ABE BRI A FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
RS PR AT (9 S 28 2 currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiHRKE (82 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(B) SMNLCREE: (48 (B) Currency risk (continued)

N3R5 AR The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
HEXZ S EHER from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
G B 25 K 1 B T completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position. The net
FeAE 2 BN TR options position is calculated based on the basis of delta-weighted positions of all
KA, SRR KGR foreign exchange options contracts.

AOCHNZ &8

Ja) e 3 1) B R R R

gl FARLEL 530

Ty R 4 BT A A 3]

BELIZ [1R/REm
WFF ] it

5.
2019
BT ETSE
Equivalent in million of HK$
FAbsr T AP TEE
BV R HE b S Other Total
us Pound Japanese 77 AR Australian foreign foreign
Dollars Sterling Yen Euro Renminbi Dollars currencies currencies
MR Spot assets 836,139 29,513 123,344 40,611 272,977 37,785 70,894 1,411,263
IR A5 Spot liabilities (800,834)  (17,530) (13,099) (25,326) (262,978) (24,821)  (67,571) (1,212,159)
HASEN Forward purchases 987,222 21,177 35349 49,566 529,913 20,718 50,291 1,694,236
E S Forward sales (1,021,888)  (33,139) (145,612) (64,801) (538,243) (33,632)  (54,187) (1,891,502)
AR 0 Net options position 144 56 4 (86) (293) (15) (24) (214)
K/ G #i%#%  Net long/(short)
position 783 77 (14) (36) 1,376 35 (597) 1,624
2018
W E LA E

Equivalent in million of HK$

HAwsm AT

FIC Yk H BT Other Total

us Pound Japanese e ARfi  Australian foreign foreign

Dollars Sterling Yen Euro  Renminbi Dollars  currencies currencies

IR Spot assets 784,876 26,486 23,821 33,069 527,079 38,679 63,409 1,497,419

LR £ f5t Spot liabilities (851,274)  (16,358)  (7,125) (17,729) (287,409) (23,991)  (63,989) (1,267,875)

AN Forward purchases 1,120,568 22,996 54,990 55,338 454,667 14,107 74,958 1,797,624

TEHASE Forward sales (1,055,159)  (33,076) (71,582) (70,369) (693,622) (28,786) (73,864) (2,026,458)

HAA AL 1850 Net options position 1,312 9) (66)  (217) (696) (33) 4 295
K/ D) #4780 Net long/(short)

position 323 39 38 92 19 (24) 518 1,005
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M%&FHHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIFEEE (4) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiHRKE (82 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(B) SN (48) (B) Currency risk (continued)
2019
WMEATSE
Equivalent in million of HK$
LRTE T HAhSH SRR
*7 HER  FERERER Other Total
us &=  Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso currencies  currencies
SR SRR Net structural position 29,052 2,625 2,903 1,737 4,523 40,840
2018
VD TRE WA X E ]
Equivalent in million of HK$
PR HAbsh SR
e WERE FEERRBR Other Total
us B3N Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso currencies currencies
GERPE BRI Net structural position 28,122 2,301 2,769 1,608 1,812 36,612
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 AR (8
(C) FlZ XK

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk

R 2 IR A2 i A R
FKN B A
PR R R
A2 ) 1M A #E 5 BUAR
AT B AR R AN 28
B A& AR K R
o SEi iRt RS
o 7K 1 ok 45
FIERRE A o G PERE
4 FR) 3 B 2R X

FH N

- FIFEIT R B
77 5 S A5 ) 21 40
H B E AT i s 3
PR AT REAHRC, b
52 180 v ) 2l
PSS IER

- FEIEAE R A
[ 22 By 1 7€ A 5
HEA T, A B
FRT AL 2 3 A7 £5
9 B AS T BE & £
[ — E AT 4 % J0
1R LAAS [ 4 1 2
Bl K

SRR H T
77 SRS I
H B IR 24
JIRUAT A I 2 2
AR AR 2% B 7 B
1AL A o

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

- Gap risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities that
may affect net interest income and economic value;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TN (42) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) RN (42) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

A EE ARG G L e The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.

TR 3G TR 2 The Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) exercises its oversight of

R . AR HE R interest rate risk in accordance with the “BOCHK Group Banking Book Interest Rate
W 22 51 o ik e Risk Management Policy” approved by the RMC. The RMD is responsible for the
(AR A HE A AR Group’s interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Financial

A7 T ) 26 IR B Management Department and Investment Management, etc., RMD assists the ALCO to

B, B b perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited

HZE 5123 (ALCO) to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk

PR JIEAT & HE B R indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance

HEAR R BT . A with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management reports to
SR =gE I i N senior management and the RMC, etc.

Eik RN = S

E WV 55 8 PR S 4%

REHENE &
T, BB A
EHERITRE
R R R B
TAE, GiEEAR
TR RE P EUR,
R, &
S A5 B AR
B, EAE HARTE
fifiide, HBERIE
PR 5 B U 5 R
BWPATIHEDL, 175
JRE BN G SR
Wor 2 DA 2 PR AR 3R
IR PR T 45
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. GRINER (42

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THAK (80
(C) FZKr (82

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

7 B2 [ B 52 2R R
W4 b S PRAT,
HAET RN It
s A R
B2 <Y N i g N 16
i Ar A R AT L R
AR T AT s
FL R 2 i X
B AR S
fH(PVBP). 1#H 5
WAL (NI, &
=R ) R S
(EV)%. F 3R
T AR AR AR 2 A
FZ%, #%ARE
94 ) T 55
WL R E s, B
PR AR B R 4y
B A 2 5L o it
e R R Z XS
) 25 Ml 45 B A 26 23
77 R 2 XK g Ak PR
A FE P R A O
55 AL BHEH
ERAT TR B 7= i B0
55 R, AR AL
A AAT KR A
e, ARGV
TERIRI R AR, I
2 BT (1 U
BHLHR S L.
AR KRS VP AL AR
% B4R AT R 3R
KK i Bl B K
mel, 2 bR R 2

AR

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor
and control interest rate risk on a daily basis. The indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point
(“PVBP”), net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio
(“EV”), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different levels, which are
approved by the CFO, CRO, ALCO and RMC accordingly. Risk-taking business units
are required to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current
risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the
risk assessment process will be submitted to the RMC for approval.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. GRINER (42

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THAK (80
(C) FIZKr (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

ERI S WA= A
(NI FH 22 355 4 18 3
B L 2 (EV) B A)
AR F 0t B 14115 A
SN AN Bt A B il
IR, AL
R XU ) 22
UL R b o BT 17 5
M) H AR )y 3 B
B WANALS) & 2
SR UNEEIISY N
ML 5 TR
AR AT B 5
UIXENQEIE IR IR S
PERIB™ . K
R Al 55 T B 42
VR BUED 1IN
R R
b, MEZE e
X I b E R
B, FH SR B D42
7% B2 AR AT K R 26
Yo

A £ K 15 5 0)
B A 3 3R Ty
2 AR AL
HRAT K AT BE AR 2 11
Il R o 1 3570 53 BT
A s 304K 1) AP
Tk & A AR
JUFERL HE iR R
IR LR A 3
B A5 550 27 B2 Tl 38
O ARAT 1 F B U
N B A B )
LR

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using the market
interest rate) as a percentage to the latest Tier 1 capital. Limits are set by the RMC on
these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income and
economic value arising from the optionality of savings deposits, the prepayment of
mortgage loans and the prepayment of debt securities with embedded options.
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W %&FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. £RIRKEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WHRKE (42 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) AIZEMK: (4R (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
AL A T X The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
Jos KT HNR T interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2019, if market interest rates had a 100 basis point
AR HE 2019 parallel shift of the yield curve with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net

#12 431 H, #
T 3% F A i 28
ith £k ~F47 83 100
AN, A RRAR
G R, X A4 H]
ke 12 4 H i F
BN B 5t i 2% 1
BURFEWR

been as follows:

F12 A 31 HxRKR 1240A
e =V NG}
Impact on net interest income
over the next twelve months
at 31 December

interest income over a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have

T 12 A 31 BxME& KR

Impact on reserves
at 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
BB AT EME I BB AT BEME I
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
Weas 2 i 22 54T 100 basis point
F# 100 5 H parallel up of
yield curve
it Total 2,305 2,515 (6,482) (3,680)
Hor: Of which:
T HK Dollar 3,583 3,153 (263) (357)
ESVH US Dollar (387) (12) (3,585) (1,743)
YN Renminbi (623) (478) (2,017) (1,262)
RS = i 24T 100 basis point
T 100 55 parallel down
of yield curve
Git Total (2,309) (2,519) 6,482 3,680
Hor: Of which:
HEIo HK Dollar (3,583) (3,154) 263 357
E US Dollar 387 1 3,585 1,743
AR Renminbi 623 477 2,017 1,262
WH: fE 20194 7 H Note: The comparative information of impact on net interest income for the year 2018 has been
S A& T 5 1 restated due to the behavioural assumption change of non-maturity deposit and other relevant
IRRBB ¥ & T products since the implementation of the revised IRRBB Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 in July
% F M IR-1 2019.
J& » 2018 4 15F)
SSYON- ATl
BRI T [ 2
B H AR R I
AR S i ¥
BT E.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. GRINER (42

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THAK (80
(C) FIZKr (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

TR 2 it 28~ AT
L% 100 AN A
BT, 2019 £ 1
T T A 1 R
Bl N N IE 1 B
i, F, i
HE Restph e it T
MR A7 4 T BN
W 25 2 i 261 AT -
% 100 N A EL
i B 9 2> 17 4> 4E 141
Tl 88D o 1R R
N IETH M4 2018
SRR R A A b
W4 2018 SE14 A
Ty F BRI Z
5t 414 A Je A
LRI

TE &5 % il 28747
T 100 AN
EHLR, 2019 4E 1
R B T AR A 4 R
BN S 5T B
ma. [, TS
HE BRI
) 247 A T H A
I %5 R M 26 AT T
% 100 S HE
ik 8 38 Jn 7 4> 4E 1
it 2180 o ) SR
NG 2018
SRR D B At 4 18
g &5 452 2018 4F48
T TFHRAN G Z
5055 40 A5 AR T
K.

In a parallel shift up of 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net interest
income of the above currencies is positive in 2019. Reserves of the Group would have
been reduced because of the expected reduction in valuation of the debt securities
portfolio and relevant interest rate derivatives under hedge accounting due to a parallel
shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The positive impact on net interest income
is decreased and the reduction of reserves is increased compared with 2018 because
the size and duration of the debt securities portfolio in capital market is increased.

In a parallel shift down of 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net
interest income of the above currencies is negative in 2019. Reserves of the Group
would have been increased because of the expected increase in valuation of the debt
securities portfolio and relevant interest rate derivatives under hedge accounting due to
a parallel shift down of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The negative impact on net
interest income is decreased and the increase of reserves is increased compared with
2018 because the size and duration of the debt securities portfolio in capital market is
increased.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TN (42) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) R (42) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

3R U T AR The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
BEUL AR, b including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation between interest rates of
ENCERN SN relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
ik, WAHG B e would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
F AR DG MEAR £ R accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
RPATRB) Rt I products in which the actual repricing date differs from the contractual repricing date or
R AR I e R mT products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
16 SR BT 28 8 AL 62 Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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4. £RIRKEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2019
—& == kB
—MAR =AHA =AA —EHE REFENE Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest Bt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BHEAL BHEAT BTEAT BHEAT BHEAT BTEAT BREEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
i Assets
FEAFI & RAET I HAh 4 Cash and balances and
MR 2 25 % T e A7 placements with banks and
other financial institutions 247,810 25,193 6,201 - - 87,432 366,636
PAATE A AR R 2 4 Financial assets at fair value
b through profit or loss 9,684 17,216 7,740 8,871 3,11 40 46,662
TSR TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 31,167 31,167
FHEMATEXBUF 7 HE  Hong Kong SAR Government
i certificates of indebtedness - - - - - 163,840 163,840
PR B AR KI5 Advances and other accounts 1,141,861 178,504 35,698 43,576 5,126 7,736 1,412,501
Zz2ran Investment in securities
- DUVAFEAR LT A S AR - AtFVOCI
Exnliec 123,257 165,711 109,874 167,811 101,004 3,288 670,945
- DA AT - At amortised cost 1,849 4,888 10,080 38,407 13,166 - 68,390
B AR BA R A Interests in associates and joint
ventures - - - - - 619 619
BRI Investment properties - - - - - 20,428 20,428
Wk B R Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 51,173 51,173
HAhBtr= CRABRIRLIR Other assets (including current
BRI ) and deferred tax assets) 14,170 - - - - 28,023 42,193
st Total assets 1,538,631 391,512 169,593 258,665 122,407 393,746 2,874,554
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4.2 THAK (80
(C) FZKr (5

il
AERAHITBIX FUEAR M

YT R SRR A7
R&ER

PLASHEA A AR 28 2 4
fill 7 £5¢

ATl T A

EIRNEE

EARATHSUES R AF KL

FCAbIKI Sl (LI RIS
I S B SE R f5)

Je 5 £t
HBREH

plES RN

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2019

—= == it B

—MNAR =AA  +=ZANA —E2HEE HEME Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest Bt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
WHHA WHEEAX BEEAT BEEAT BEEAT BEEAT BTRHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
- - - - - 163,840 163,840
236,747 1,271 897 1,628 - 27,114 267,657
2,843 6,046 9,202 724 391 - 19,206
- - - - - 32,833 32,833
1,411,486 295,979 139,866 4,577 - 162,184 2,014,092
- 116 - - - - 116
19,556 6 114 968 721 59,861 81,226
- 12,954 - - - - 12,954
1,670,632 316,372 150,079 7,897 1,112 445,832 2,591,924
(132,001) 75,140 19,514 250,768 121,295 (52,086) 282,630
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
- At FVOCI

- At amortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2018

—% =% Tt B

—MHA =A4H F=ANH —ZELFE RN Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1t05 Over interest Bt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BEmEAIe EmEa mEnT Bmasin Bmaase Bhmasin BHEaT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
305,286 36,385 20,853 - - 70,544 433,068
243,603 8,839 7,700 10,158 3,850 7 274,157
- - - - - 34,955 34,955
- - - - - 156,300 156,300
1,040,004 166,331 27,422 34,612 5,482 8,435 1,282,286
52,870 81,489 110,282 158,674 66,452 1,329 471,096
240 1,676 9,957 46,514 11,372 - 69,759
- - - - - 482 482
- - - - - 19,988 19,988
- - - - - 49,071 49,071
7,491 - - - - 25,132 32,623
1,649,494 294,720 176,214 249,958 87,156 366,243 2,823,785
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2018
—% =% N7,
—MHA =M™H F=/MH —ZTE LFEULE Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1t05 Over interest Bt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
whmEAe WmE AT EmEAe WhmEk wmaae EBhEAT BHE AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation - - - - - 156,300 156,300
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 356,095 5,747 118 460 - 14,101 376,521
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 3,274 8,820 1,761 1,160 520 - 15,535
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 30,812 30,812
Deposits from customers 1,324,454 235,953 166,630 5,284 - 166,781 1,899,102
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 3,480 4,813 1,160 - - - 9,453
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 15,493 - - - - 40,619 56,112
Subordinated liabilities - - - 13,246 - - 13,246
Total liabilities 1,702,796 255,333 169,669 20,150 520 408,613 2,557,081
Interest sensitivity gap (53,302) 39,387 6,545 229,808 86,636 (42,370) 266,704

4.3 Liquidity risk

WV & R TR AT
Toik UAA B A B e 3R
BRE S, BT
SRR . A [
TR AR Bl 5t & R
if, BRORLE IR R 1 10
HUE S ER T A RE

P FaE . TR
HIEL G RIR, i R B)
VAR LRI R
TR IR IE
8, A LMFER AL
W B o 4 R 2

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to obtain sufficient and timely funding at
a reasonable cost to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a sound
liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet
liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RERENR (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A B2 [ 42 BRI B 3 A
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TR, BEEEAR
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AR, FRHT K
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BN Bt 4 XU 7R A 24
BRI, MKTER S
BRI UG 2R
SEHHE MR 4
S, BRERAREE
FEERA AT RS
W SE IR B 98 42 A D
TP RIS « R
A B A B
SREEE, B5M5
HHA AR E RS
1B, HRIES E KRS
T R
RS BAT B AR B B
S HIEE.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and the RMC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s liquidity
risk. The RMC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes
the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As authorised by the RMC, ALCO
exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with the risk appetite and policies as set by the RMC. The RMD is responsible
for the Group’s liquidity risk management. It cooperates with the Financial Management
Department and Investment Management, etc. to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity
management functions according to their specific responsibilities.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of on-
and off-balance sheet items with a reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to
achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient sources of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market and by issuing bills in the capital market.
According to different term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from
stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at
a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is committed
to diversify the sources, tenors and use of funding to avoid excessive concentration of
assets and liabilities; and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand
resulting from over-concentration of sources and use of funding in a particular area where
problems occur. In order to manage such risk, the Group sets concentration limits on
collateral pools and sources of funding such as Tier 1 high-quality readily liquefiable assets
to total high-quality readily liquefiable assets ratio, top ten depositors ratio and large
depositors ratio. Whenever necessary, the Group could improve the liquidity position by
taking mitigation actions including, but not limited to obtaining funding through interbank
borrowings or repos in the money market, selling bonds in the secondary market or
retaining existing and attracting new customer deposits. Apart from increasing the funding,
the Group would maintain good communication with the counterparties, the parent and the
regulators to enhance mutual confidence.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guidelines to manage the
liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance of
funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by
off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other
complex structured products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy
to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral,
intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on a daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”),
loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQO”) and liquidity cushion.
The Group applies a cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under
normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific,
general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at least on a monthly basis to
assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant
management information systems such as the Assets and Liabilities Management System
and the Basel Liquidity Ratio Management System are developed to provide data and to
prepare for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MAEENKL (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA, the Group has
implemented a behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on the
contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet
changes. The Group establishes the MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days
maximum cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above
assumptions, to assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow
gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operations. As at 31 December 2019,
before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into
consideration, BOCHK’s 30-day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to
HK$116,071 million (2018: HK$93,439 million) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MAEENKL (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenarios have been set up, a combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution
specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more
severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; the
drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; the
delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement
and marketable securities. As at 31 December 2019, the Group was able to maintain a net
cash inflow under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet
financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to
maintain a liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or
multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued
by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above to
ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2019, the
liquidity cushion (before haircut) of BOCHK was HK$531,388 million (2018: HK$447,175
million). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the
plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans and
relevant procedures and responsibility of relevant departments.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group, being classified as a category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required
to calculate the LCR and NSFR on a consolidated basis in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules. The Group is required to maintain a LCR and NSFR not less than 100%
in 2019.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have the right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to the RMC for approval.
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4. ERIRKEE (48) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MAEENKL (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
AL KT G — MR Bh The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies which serve
B MR HBUE, M as standards and guidance to all the Group’s members for liquidity risk management. On
YA T A S R the basis of the Group’s uniform policies, each of the subsidiaries develops its own liquidity
I B0 B 4 AU 3 5 management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
% M R HLAAR B35 S A 1 risk management responsibility. Subsidiaries are required to report their respective liquidity
S—HR, 4E5AS positions with relevant liquidity ratios on a regular basis to the RMD of BOCHK, which
=N R =N R =) consolidates this information and evaluates group-wide liquidity risk to ensure relevant
%, & BAMEE A requirements are satisfied.
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iR, HMEHAUE
WE R F AR A
P4 AR B A L A
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YR LIRS TEPAE
AN R B R KU
ROUHEAT VAR, T DR

JEAHIRILR
(A) WANEH LR (A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
RERSPHILE
2019 2018
IR e B gz ] Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
FHE
- RFE - First quarter 183.00% 134.33%
- B - Second quarter 156.57% 146.39%
- R - Third quarter 142.85% 141.44%
- BINFE - Fourth quarter 146.53% 160.23%
BN PR B LA Average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean of
PHE R T % the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
R TAEH & calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
G5B T
SR N E Ok
YEEP RN A
2 48 R R 5
T 2 R R R
HH.
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4. ERIRKEE (48) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MAEENKL (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) mEhMEEELER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio (continued)
RERSPHILE
€3]
2019 2018
o 58 B P AL Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
28 o 4 2 1
- R - First quarter 121.36% 118.98%
- R - Second quarter 119.15% 118.82%
- R=FE - Third quarter 116.47% 122.24%
oS - Fourth quarter 118.00% 124.41%
T 78 B 4 1 B L 3 Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
1 7 A 5 (R 5 methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
TH KR E T ER
2 4 R R G
LN =y N
NN
iRTIR Tl e Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated
T Bt & AL % basis which comprise the positions of BOCHK and certain subsidiaries specified by the
& UL gR A 2l HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
B, OIS CGERATL
GRENE FNY
rh AR A U I 4y
SERIREZ MR
VAGIE
BRI BN EE 5% L The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
R R B4 1R disclosures is available under the section “Regulatory Disclosures” on BOCHK’s
Ll 2 9 8 10 4h 78 B website at www.bochk.com.
LT T H AR A U

7 www.bochk.com
b TISE R ) —

W
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4.3 RHESNE (5R)

(B) BHIH M

TRARERT 12
H 31 HZ %™ k&
i B 239 H 2>

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis

o, T4 HEH
BF, BT T A A5 A
BEA 202030 H %
KRR K.
= Assets
FEAE NG AR AT R Hefh 4/ Cash and balances and
WLk 2 454 J e A placements with banks and

PAA A T N B 2 £l
i

SR TR

B WA AT BUX BURF £ 45t
A

Do AT

=i
- DATHE A S AT

ezi

- DAERAAT

R A ) B B AR

BB

Pk gSH R

FA B AR K
TR )

o=t

other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government

certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities

- AtFVOCI

- At amortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets)

Total assets

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

2019
—Z =&
0l —AAR =R AR 2RSS #EFEUE THE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over H#A Bit
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
Wil M M Wil Wil i Wil Wil
BAX H©BAX WBAX BAxX BAX HBART HAX BRI
HK$'m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
244,731 90,511 24,799 5,810 785 - - 366,636
- 9,649 16,903 7,794 9,182 3,094 40 46,662
11,662 2,561 3,574 4,981 5,399 2,990 - 31,167
163,840 - - - - - - 163,840
210,109 47,032 58,341 167,062 619,292 309,478 1,187 1,412,501
- 113,573 141,875 118,179 191,726 102,304 3,288 670,945
- 2,031 4,962 9,742 38,517 13,138 - 68,390
- - - - - - 619 619
- - - - - - 20,428 20,428
- - - - - - 51,173 51,173
25,481 16,016 270 355 61 - 10 42,193
655,823 281,373 250,724 313,923 864,962 431,004 76,745 2,874,554
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. GRINER (42

4.3 BHMBEERE (B
(B) BHIH AT (8

il
A AR AT BUX AL

HUT BRI AR &
iR

PLAFERA A 2
i

M TR

LIRKES N

ERAT RS UE S RAF AL

FABIKIG S e CEARRIATRLI
JOBIERIRI A

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
depositin issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2019
—& ==z

Wy —AAR =AA 2R —ZE5E AL RH5E
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over HEA it
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
B B B B &M &M B &M
BA ®AX WBARX WBAKXK BAX HBARX BA  BAX
HK$m HK$'m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
163,840 - - - - - - 163,840
168,004 95,857 1,271 897 1,628 - - 267,657
- 2,843 6,049 9,202 724 388 - 19,206
9,576 2,517 3,051 5,184 7,549 4,956 - 32,833
1,110,519 463,151 295,979 139,866 4,577 - - 2,014,092
- - 116 - - - - 116
31,959 35,525 2,110 3,444 8,011 177 - 81,226
- - 12,954 - - - - 12,954
1,483,898 599,893 321,530 158,593 22,489 5,521 - 2,591,924
(828,075) (318,520) (70,806) 155,330 842,473 425,483 76,745 282,630
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4. GRINER (42

4.3 WEEENE (8
(B) BFH T (8

#i=
PEAT B B AR AT R At e
WUR 2 R B e AT TR

PLA TR A 2 S
idhs

TR TR

AR AT BUXBUR 5 65t
EB

DO S A

B
- DAt AUt A

Wead

- DERIAT R

RE A S B AL

BBl

Pk 20 R
HAth ™ (BAEEERIHE )

o=t

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
- AtFVOCI

- Atamortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2018
—& =%
g AN =AM S ®BIE LFENE S REE
On Up to 1t03 3to012 1t05 Over H i Mt
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
M M M Bm Bm M Bm M
"/ |/ ®|WhHx |/ Bl |/ Bt B/t
HK$Fm  HKFm  HK$m HKFm  HKEm  HKEm HK$'m HK$'m
300,311 75,519 36,385 20,457 396 - - 433,068
- 243,106 8,299 7,968 10,960 3,817 7 274,157
11,303 3,285 4,039 5,912 6,972 3,444 - 34,955
156,300 - - - - - - 156,300
176,589 53,549 53,037 158,880 579,083 259,797 1,351 1,282,286
- 44,748 52,071 114,852 190,756 67,340 1,329 471,096
- 410 1,772 9,229 47,007 11,341 - 69,759
- - - - - - 482 482
- - - - - - 19,988 19,988
- - - - - - 49,071 49,071
14,499 17,164 157 694 95 - 14 32,623
659,002 437,781 155,760 317,992 835,269 345,739 72,242 2,823,785
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4. GRINER (42

4.3 WEEENE (8
(B) BFH T (8

il
BUERE AT X AL

HUT BRI AR &
iR

PLAFERA A 2
i

M TR

LIRKES N

ERAT RS UE S RAF AL

FABIKIG S e CEARRIATRLI
JOBIERIRI A

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
depositin issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2018
—& =%

oy —AAN =AM SR CEBIE TEFEUE AEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over H i Bt
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
eI eI eI eI WM WM WM WM
B\ W®|hAYX  @/Ax H\Hx ‘A HAX HATE HATE
HK$'m  HKEm  HK$Em  HKEm  HKEm  HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
156,300 - - - - - - 156,300
241,851 128,345 5,747 118 460 - - 376,521
- 3,274 8,823 1,762 1,159 517 - 15,535
8,260 4,059 3,164 5,818 6,558 2,953 - 30,812
1,064,747 426,488 235,953 166,630 5,284 - - 1,899,102
- 3,480 4,813 1,160 - - - 9,453
27,598 18,438 1,876 1,195 6,998 7 - 56,112
- - 275 - 12,971 - - 13,246
1,498,756 584,084 260,651 176,683 33,430 3,477 - 2,557,081
(839,754) (146,303) (104,891) 141,309 801,839 342,262 72,242 266,704
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MAEENKL (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) BI¥AH T (88) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

R B H TS The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
FRIR CEAT Y (B R provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
FUIY Z ARG S as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
it . AER K d as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
A 1 ANAZ# instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
7=, Bl Sk R i %% overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
WEFRF A TR ] B maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
7= o R FHEANFI KA reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
5o B 2 % any.

7=, BB R

B 38 #2368 43 40

PEa . oAb A A

ZH0 4 AT 4k 2 AR A

PR IABR 2, (A1

EEDU TS e e SN

HFAHEEIE, WK %55
AT [ A€ H
W ERFIRZBE
7 AT B AT AR A 5C

s (D .
2 1 42 B H X The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is based on contractual
S AEJF 2 4 BT R maturity date. The disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

&2 A
Fo PfEHEANE
UL SEIE S A 2
FHIH .
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRINESEE (8

4.3 FShBEERM ()

(C) HEAAZMB T
ZARFTAIER

(a) FFATAETHZI

TERMR T A
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B H IR
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YT R FA SR U AF
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EINEE
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SRABEH

Eo il
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s
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EINEE
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Jafbifit
HAteRn b1 f5
ERTHE

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for

non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

2019
—2 =2
—AMAN  =EAA AR —ERF AFULE
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to 5 Over Bt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
wH WM WM wH wH wH
BT AAT AAT BAxX HAXT BT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
Financial liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 163,840 - - - - 163,840
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 263,879 1,275 903 1,688 - 267,745
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 2,845 6,066 9,291 777 406 19,385
Deposits from customers 1,574,045 297,100 141,446 4,696 - 2,017,287
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 117 - - - 17
Subordinated liabilities - 12.991 R . . 12.991
Lease liabilities 56 111 443 1,153 181 1,944
Other financial liabilities 61,615 233 242 4 6 62,100
Total financial liabilities 2,066,280 317,893 152,325 8,318 593 2,545,409
2018
—& =%
—1HW =AMNH FEAHA - EHE AFEULE
Up to 1103 3t012 1t05 Over Rt
1 month months  months years 5 years Total
WM wm wm WM WM WM
A" H Tt H Tt A" A" [EWip
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Financial liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 156,300 - - - - 156,300
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 370,344 5,764 154 556 - 376,818
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 3279 8850 1,801 1,238 560 15,728
Deposits from customers 1,491,539 236,892 168,931 5,426 - 1,902,788
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 3,485 4,837 1,179 - - 9,501
Subordinated liabilities - 353 353 13,064 - 13,770
Other financial liabilities 45.035 172 107 6 7 45.327
Total financial liabilities 2,069,982 256,868 172,525 20,290 567 2,520,232
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. ERIRKEE (48) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MAEENKL (42 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) HEARHH I (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRFHAAER
€9

(b) ATETRAZ 4 (b) Derivative cash flows
it
TRMR T AL The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
T+ 12 A 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DL 42 & 29 31N be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
H %~ 2 34 will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
Ui, AL T A or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
WS HZTHESE undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
Rl A, B 4% fair value.
RS 2
S T HCR
WHRKEGAREE
PR o BRER
STETHUA
FAESRAN, TR
Tk 2 1) At 45
BIRNARAPTBLN
A R .
2 £ A i v A0 ik The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
WS HTE S mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
AR F AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
FIZEHLIH, T4 2 swaps.
LB HE 45 S AT
AL T HFE
A0, 95 Tt e S &
UiiE i
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

Derivative financial liabilities
settled on a net basis

Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow

Derivative financial liabilities
settled on a net basis

Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow
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2019
—& =7

—AER =N AR —EHFE RENL
Upto 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over Bt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
wih W wih wih W wih
AAX HBAT BAX WBAX HBART AT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$m  HK$'m HK$’'m
(10,065) (736) (2,531) (7,443) (1,614) (22,389)
593,459 436,313 687,147 119,126 964 1,837,009

(592,945) (432,346)

(687,051) (118,885)

(967) (1,832,194)

2018
—& =%

—ANAN =AMA AR —EAE HFEULE
Up to 1to0 3 3t012 1t05 Over Rt
1 month  months months years 5 years Total
eI WM eI eI WM WM
B\ AT "/  @\Hx HAK B
HK$m  HK$'m HK$'m  HK$&m HK$'m HK$'m
(8,983) (884) (2,338) (5,061) (1,002) (18,268)
787,297 382,875 641,513 134,766 6,199 1,952,650

(788,110) (381,656)

(638,603) (134,882)

(6,146) (1,949,397)
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W %&FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. ERIRKEE (48) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 MIAFEERK (88 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) HELBIHHLH (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZARAFAIAER
€ 9]
(c) % 7= 1 fix & 4b (c) Off-balance sheet items

i H

TEHOR Loan commitments

H xR AER T The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2019 4 12 B 31 at 31 December 2019 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H 17 & 77K i 4E other facilities amounted to HK$623,653 million (2018: HK$547,999 million).
KAF BF S e Alb it Those loan commitments can be drawn within one year.

W RN AT

B, HEAEHN
WM 6,236.53 12
It (2018 4F: &
i 5,479.99 12
J6), BT K
B F A A R

i g8
W AR A TR Financial guarantee contracts
AHEHT 2019 4F Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 A 31 HZ 4% 2019 amounting to HK$62,400 million (2018: HK$62,094 million) are maturing no
AR B Al W %% later than one year.
il B 4 20 A HE T
624.00 1z 7t
(2018 4F: M

620.94 1270),
FIH T4,
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4. GRINER (42

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE

4.4 Capital management

A AR A L) 3 2
F b7 1 e 1 5 2 4
PRI PR U R 1 B2 A 78
JEIKT 5 [ A 2R R
KRR . 37 S i B
D2 8 WIS A B2 1]
BAGE ), HAE 5 2
AT BB LGRS []3
H5REATE LM R
1.

FER gL —Ef
SR B A A B AN
NS, IF HIBAT RIF.
LE B L] O/ AL 4E B 45 52
Frlk 55 R FE IR, i AL
B BT R
Ko B MERE R &
B 57 M P R B B AT
A A AR AR T I B
P ER AT b 55 75 & 4% T
& R E B AR
T, FERAIT

A 141 2R ZE Tl P9 35
PPIEAE T SR
B AR A S R
TP DR DR A
R TAR/NER 5 LR
AR E (FF B
THEETH S A BIR A
i A5 DY A4S AL U 2 7
2 HERAF R M
B (152 5 % T HEA
K.

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures. Small
residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised (credit risk) (“STC”)
approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”)
method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. GRINER (42

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAREE (8)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

A A1 4K B R ] P9 A
SR T S AN A
FRA) — Fe T 3 AU B2 A
R, IFIREA RAERR
R Y ARG B g R
77 A AT 3 X B A
Ko ARGk R I b
(i AR TS5
HARTIHRIGTEA LR,

AL AR SER AR AE Ol
S HAE KR TRV
B RS R AR

REFT 2019 FE4RLER
NN LR A g
Fr AT & 8 JR) M
ST [ A
WK o 88 R 5
TR ] WA
78 R VA R 32 2 B
PR — ST ARA
T4 o B 78 20 A o 1) K
PRI T AR A,
M8 7 A 42 ] 3¢ fI% 3 38
WAL — R AR R
A L R A
TR, AN, AR
I A I FR) B A Ll 2R
T VIBEXTE, PSR
55 R AR HE T A
A RS - AR
PN BB A T AL VT A AR
AN RF IR B A A B
U =N S VAS B gHIE
A IR AR B0 T R 9 A
ELEE S kN F N
o

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions in the calculation of the market
risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”)
approach to calculate the market risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt the standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2019. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAREE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

BeAh, ARG AR e 5 In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
JE AL, 7= £ Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHERASHEWEEE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
Froeittitk . BEARRI ML on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
25 il AR BRI capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
bt EHWE. s ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
SR 5 2 2 FE VR Al X B A with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
T2 MBI, AT TR return and capital adequacy.

R R AR
. LRI AR 1L
P B AT R I A
AR, TALSR
R BRAE R IS T

AT R NEI B AT
(A) WEEAEmM (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
T LR A The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of BOCHK
fill T3 AR AR CHRAT L and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking
CBEA) BUMY e eh (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance
R A R O 4 with HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the
EREEZMEA Bank’.

A AL FE 2T AR
3T D B A P I
55 75 HE W 45 5 B
BT, KA T

[Hf % — AT 2
(= FACINE
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. GRINER (42

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE (58)
(A) BEaEnl (4

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

AL 7E 2 v v 0 45
EEHEL, ARG

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of

consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as

M 4 Y

P 0 8 24 2 i follows:
BT
2019 2018
st BB =R [AZ NS
2R Name Total assets Total equity  Total assets  Total equity
WHE T WwhEAx bmEae BmEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
HHEREIE AR IR BOC Group Trustee Company
UNE| Limited 200 200 200 200
Fh R R0 [ ORI 5 4 BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
B2 HE] 612 483 506 464
China Bridge China Bridge (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
(Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd. 56 36 38 31
W EERAT (B REEA Bank of China (Hong Kong)
ARATH Nominees Limited - - - -
HERAT (D B Bank of China (Hong Kong)
ARAH Trustees Limited 12 11 15 15
HERERIRS (FTO BOC Financial Services (Nanning)
HIRA T Company Limited 173 42 N/A N/A
HERAE BB GRIID BOCHK Information Technology
B2 HE] (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 401 255 377 242
HPER(E SRR RS QR BOCHK Information Technology
ID HRAH Services (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 418 348 377 336
N (RREAD HIE Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited
NS 1 1 1 1
S TIRS Po Sang Financial Investment
ARAH Services Company Limited 364 345 364 346
AU SRS R Po Sang Securities and Futures
NS Limited 664 373 657 553
ST AT PR A 7] Sin Chiao Enterprises Corporation,
Limited 6 6 6 6
BEERA R A Sin Hua Trustee Limited 5 5 7 6

Billion Express
Development Inc.
Billion Orient Holdings

Ltd.
Elite Bond
Investments Ltd.
Express Capital
Enterprise Inc.

Billion Express Development Inc.

Billion Orient Holdings Ltd.

Elite Bond Investments Ltd.

Express Capital Enterprise Inc.
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W5 IEME (82) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. EMRRERE (8

4.4 BAREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) WEEAERM (8) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
2019 2018
BB A BB ARSI YR A
2R Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
WHEAT WREAT  EHHEAT BHHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m

Express Charm
Holdings Corp.
Express Shine Assets
Holdings Corp.
Express Talent
Investment Ltd.
Gold Medal Capital
Inc.
Gold Tap Enterprises
Inc.
Maxi Success
Holdings Ltd.
Smart Linkage
Holdings Inc.
Smart Union Capital
Investments Ltd.
Success Trend
Development Ltd.
Wise Key Enterprises
Corp.

Express Charm Holdings Corp.
Express Shine Assets Holdings
Corp. - -
Express Talent Investment Ltd.
Gold Medal Capital Inc.
Gold Tap Enterprises Inc.
Maxi Success Holdings Ltd.
Smart Linkage Holdings Inc.
Smart Union Capital Investments
Ltd. - -

Success Trend Development Ltd.

Wise Key Enterprises Corp.
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W5 IEME (82) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRNEEE (8

4.4 BAREE (8)

(A) BEEAERM (5

LAk B & 2 =) 1
ST TH=—
ARAT Z W’ A
"l .

T 2019 £ 12 7 31
H, JFFLEMHRA
") A A A M
ELAETIE, AR
A HEN 47 &
R (2018 5 ) o

T 2019 4F 12 H 31
H, INTATAT A2
) [ I AL 3% 1L 2 it
THE JU) R4 R 25
A Y0 FEL A AN )
LEaJriE (2018 4F:
x .

A 4 W A2 A IR [ K
/ HUIX &5 IR A
"), XA R BEA
% 2 H R
B MUASRI R R 2
) 2 ) I Ak
SHMEERA, SR
AESZ F BRI o

BA A

BEARR T

e A — Bt

B

— KL%

B

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope of
consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
consolidation differ as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

The Group operates subsidiaries in different countries/regions where capital is governed
by local rules and there may be restrictions on the transfer of funds or regulatory capital
between the members of the Group.

(B) Capital ratio

The capital ratios are analysed as follows:

2019 2018

CET1 capital ratio
17.76% 17.48%
Tier 1 capital ratio 19.90% 19.76%
Total capital ratio 22.89% 23.10%
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 FAEE (5)
(B) FALLE (48

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

AT R BEA The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
L 2 2 1R S i 45 capital ratios is analysed as follows:
& A SR 4 M
T
2019 2018
WMEAT VA TREWA bW
HK$’'m HK$'m
T IE AL — g4 (CET1) CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
WA SR
BRERATHE Bk Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
CET1 &AZE4E instruments 43,043 43,043
FREg A Retained earnings 164,113 153,501
O 5 it A Disclosed reserves 51,309 45,367
MR AT E) CETA1 CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
AN 258,465 241,911
CET1 WA M +nysk CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
fili 4 12 Valuation adjustments (65) 9)
HIERLIN BT (AR Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred
AHEDR PR 326 ZE A T tax liabilities)
) (62) (82)
F P E AR A 1) 5 Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
PRI B 1) 5 B AU A% risk on fair valued liabilities
BIFT AR B 237 141
At R 5t (B Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
KB &) BT revaluation of land and buildings (own-use
AR 28 A 7 A 1 AR and investment properties)
AP AR (52,459) (51,263)
— FRARAT M 55 XU H A Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
it & (11,077) (10,496)
XF CET1 B A i 4k Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
sl (63,426) (61,709)
CET1 %A CET1 capital 195,039 180,202
AT EA: 2R AT1 capital: instruments
B AT AR AR Qualifying AT1 capital instruments classified
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ SIHHENSIN as equity under applicable accounting
AT standards 23,476 23,476
AT1 % AT1 capital 23,476 23,476
— A Tier 1 capital 218,515 203,678
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4,

SRXSEE (5

4.4 BAREE (8)
(B) EALLER (4)

TR R LR

N G RAIB
A S

BREBIAN T REARN
GEfRE s SR
AT 5 RS M i

B AT — R BEAR

ZIRBTR: WA

pIE R g g e an N
A B R A 3 S )
CHH BRI
HBEAT {8 SLAf T AR
(R (IR A

X A IR
A

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

Capital instruments subject to phase-out
arrangements from Tier 2 capital

Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for
general banking risks eligible for inclusion in
Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions

Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions

Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
from the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties) eligible
for inclusion in Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory capital
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2019 2018
BRBEIT BN
HK$’m HK$'m
2,505 5,010
6,743 6,315
9,248 11,325
23,607 23,068
23,607 23,068
32,855 34,393
251,370 238,071
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRIXKE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAREE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BALLLE (48) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
PR B LR AT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
LI
2019 2018

B P A LR Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.500% 1.875%
s Bihe Higher loss absorbency ratio

b 1.500% 1.125%
U SR N Countercyclical capital buffer ratio

5 1.552% 1.418%
R BTA L e 7 The additional information of capital ratio disclosures is available under the section
ORI AT “Regulatory Disclosures” on BOCHK’s website at www.bochk.com.
R E W T
www.bochk.com

[WEEPEE] —
Ui
(C) ALATLLE (C) Leverage ratio
FLAFLE R B0 R The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2019 2018
WMEAT WEME I
HK$’'m HK$'m

— KB Tier 1 capital 218,515 203,678
FLAT b 2 RS 7 1 Leverage ratio exposure 2,799,606 2,733,653
FAF L2 Leverage ratio 7.81% 7.45%
B RATHF L3 B i The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under the section
1 #h 78 %R B T “Regulatory Disclosures” on BOCHK’s website at www.bochk.com.

R AW W T
www.bochk.comH
[WRE B ] —

W5
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W5 IEME (82) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. W= MAMRANATF{E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

BT AP BT B BRI 55
3R P92 85 1 B8 7 e £t
W4t e o 55 it U 5513
5 [ATEITE] KEL
TRTEZHERND L. %
0 RS RSB TR TR
MR R Z AT e EOR
P, IR A AT R
BAH HE R 2 82 %A
FORJEE :

- H R MRFB
51 7E 35 BR 17 37 o0 (K 4 A
CREWE. WERLR
1552 5 fr £ 7T 1) B4 TIE
I W BUR AAT I 55
TR BTN 5 AT
EHHLTER,

- BEGe JPETAMER
AFTR AR )Z B R R
CIRV R 5 6 4 AR AR T
A H KN AR
R, WRRE
TR IINE Hy T A
EENW NN &8N
SRHU A% (K 65 55 1L 5% S 17
HOIE . KAT [ 458 P17
o PR HA RS TR
(7 B 75 A0, 475 % 7T R () 7
R RAAT T AR K
5t ) Sl

- BEREGe JPET AR
AFR AR )Z B R R
CIRI R 5 0 4 AR AR T
A FKI) J&A T
ML, WEFOFHAEKR
AN TR 5 A B B
# 65 TRRAE T
THMTEELA . FRIR
ARG X AT A 7 R R
HBEAT 7 HHAEE R

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. This category includes equity securities listed on exchange, debt instruments
issued by certain governments, certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious
metals.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
from pricing services vendors, issued structured deposits and other debt instruments. It also
includes precious metals and properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment, debt
instruments and certain OTC derivative contracts with significant unobservable components.
It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.
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W5 IEME (82) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. HEMAMEKATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

X T UL 2 FEAER I T 55
R M B KA, AL
TR SR A 45
HHEFIPH LR (T
X B AT B TR R
Wi B ARZ RN FD, CLIE
A EEAVEIRR 0L
.

51 UATPETRNEHMT
£

FEREN T EE A
AR VR AR AR, 2
P H 8 b kS T AT 2
EEE K DR
S o F 47 | B S SR
W% ST LMl 55 2 A8 4
R RATEEE S
Aoy 5 4 1 P L A
SR A S A
A% T B A RLASE 2 R A i
R Dl AR A T LR (1
T 358 Ty A A g e 2 ol
JESR DU, >R 6 A L A5
B RN T H R ER A
{EARE]) A AT
5 48 2 20 A fE
B, HURHE SRR A
JEE NG R ZR A2
PRI

S E . Afh T E
BT H AR,
BN S5 HEN 2 13
5 F VR AR R E A AT
BRI, ATLLER &
TR LA — B A
TR B R A A
U REHI AR (VS PASRIE)
Mok E SRR . ARERI
B A B DL — T HO
Huk, ST AR
R B RIEATE
< R TR DA B BRI
MRS, —LHH Lk
M A A AP
T 4% 4 W T 34 B
AT . HE
2 T 4 £ R 2R 2 T B
— LA THREHAH
RSN U VEE L i
I ik

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new
models and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed
market transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant valuation
issues are reported to senior management, Risk Committee and Audit Committee.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual instrument. HKFRS
13 permits a portfolio exception, through an accounting policy election, to measure the fair
value of a portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the net open risk
position when certain criteria are met. The Group applies valuation adjustments at an
individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of account. According to its risk
management policies and systems to manage derivative financial instruments, the fair value
of certain derivative portfolios that meet those criteria is measured on the basis of the price
to be received or paid for net open risk. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to
the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative size of each of the individual
instruments in the portfolio.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. BEMAMEKATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

51 UATPEITRNEHT

R &

BIENATT B3R
iy, A i —
AR ARREL / 5
T 2 WA R E it
B ATAE.

b T AT R A [
i TR, HAG (B A
0 E ES A FEREN
L I SN e SN 94
ISR S T A
8 SRR R AL AT
R OTR 22 B Fofth &, 3222
DAL A TT 35 M

HYCLJE 52 DAF 4 R TR
NHERETTIEI T

153 38 HIE 5 % A7 I 2 e

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
commodity prices, volatilities and correlations, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit and other debt instruments

5 TR
BER T H B AP A
53 JIT A2 5 T B4 M E) A ST
il 180l 25 (36 182 7 B2 44 14
T 373 A s At P 0 B B
SRR A T DR o U
DU G AR A — AR
FITR AR 4E, LA—
AT R W T3 A AL
NS4 NN RN )
72 2 T B2 SN B 2 A
T8 T R LA B A 95
AR XESHOE T BT
W22 B ph vy A T
WG () T 32 B AR S o

7 | el i

R H b g S 5
=F AR A R
EM T2 SR AT
A ) B R A e A
EZH AR RE
AR AT B A A% R B
BT R S B 22 A 3
29 KW Il = R B LA
) fh5.

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Asset backed securities

For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained from independent third parties.
The valuation of these securities, depending on the nature of transaction, is estimated
from market standard cash flow models with input parameter which include spreads to
discount rates, default and recovery rates and prepayment rates that may be observable
or compiled through matrix pricing for similar issues.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. HEMAMEKATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

51 UATEITRNSET

A &)

fTETH

WO ST E LR A
KEIRINC. FIFEL K
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HALMAFEEE N
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/A5 T ZARAM Tl

AR B3 41 58 5 BT

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate, equity, commodity or credit. The fair values of these contracts are mainly
measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option
pricing models. The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity
prices, credit default swap spreads, volatilities and correlations. Unobservable inputs may
be used for less commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based
on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVAs”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVAs”) are

AT EAEH TEEE applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors
HHE AT S A T R - 1A movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit
B0y 0 S Wt T I R & spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent
A B )W FAE B AR on expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.

£ A S EEEERY

A R 3 B A

— G X T, AR

il 1 i 24 e R i T R e

5E o

FL 58 N VLA PR A A Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Nt 2 4 il 51 £5E

R T A E T H
T LR AR
SRk A LAl (B 7 i
5T 6T 95 UE SR A (E 77
EAIE . AV 2
SR U] by 25 A A R Bk
FRATAE TR ATEA
B A7 R A THE
AR B B 5 B X
W6 1) FH s 0L B 9 2
e it 5, AR A LR
KPS RTAR AT A LA
B TT AR .

This class of instruments includes certain deposits received from customers that are
embedded with derivatives. The plain vanilla contracts are valued in the similar way
described in previous debt securities section. The fair value of structured deposits is
derived from the fair value of the underlying deposit by using discounted cash flow
analysis taking the Group’s own credit risk into account, and the fair value of the
embedded derivatives determined as described in the paragraph above on derivatives.
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W %&FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(8
51 UATPETENESHT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
A D
JE 1A 5 Subordinated liabilities
SRR L A E R 4% Fair value for subordinated notes is based on market prices or broker/dealer price
MW REL /25 quotations. Own credit adjustment for subordinated notes is calculated as the difference
M 2 AR A NI 2 between the market value and the net present value calculated by the latest benchmark
2z H S5 & interest rate and own credit spreads of the subordinated notes determined on the
SR iE 5 R ol AR ok beginning of measurement period.
I R ATE TR
H & 15 0 R 22 [ H 1%
DEZ %
(A) A PERIFE (A) Fair value hierarchy
2019
F—BE% E_B% H=E% Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WhEAT WhWEAx BhHEAT BHEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m
ERB= Financial assets
AT (BHE 21) Trading assets (Note 21)
- RS K - Debt securities and
A7 3KAIE certificates of deposit 133 37,457 - 37,590
- BefriESR - Equity securities 37 - - 37
R - Fund - - - -
- HAh S TR - Other debt instruments - 5,297 - 5,297
HoA 1SR LA Other financial assets
(AT AP a5 2 4 mandatorily classified at
Al CRE 21) fair value through profit or
loss (Note 21)
- RS K& - Debt securities and
A7 3KAIE certificates of deposit - 744 - 744
- BefriESR - Equity securities 3 - - 3
FE SN AR A T Financial assets designated
NI 2 4 b B e at fair value through profit
(P 21D or loss (Note 21)
- RS K& - Debt securities and
A7 7KAIE certificates of deposit 708 2,283 - 2,991
- Hfis TA - Other debt instruments - - - -
iRl T B Derivative financial
CPfvE 22) instruments (Note 22) 11,673 19,483 11 31,167
DL A A A AN Investment in securities at
il 4 T Wi 25 2 A % FVOCI (Note 24)
B (fE 24
- RS K& - Debt securities and
E3GE certificates of deposit 197,156 470,501 - 667,657
- JBEAIESR - Equity securities - 1,134 2,154 3,288
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

5.1 LAPHETHERISR T
A&

(A) APHERISS (50

SRS
WAL A2
2 S
(HHE 300
- A
- REABLATA
CLANIT
2 S
AP R A
CH¥vE 22)
A 1
(HHE 35
R

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
(Note 30)
- Trading liabilities
- Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 22)
Subordinated liabilities
(Note 35)
- Subordinated notes
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2019
H-Eg  B_ER B=EX it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WhEAT WhWEAx BhHEAT BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
- 19,206 - 19,206
9,687 23,146 - 32,833
- 12,954 - 12,954
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8
51 UAPEHERNSHT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
H &

(A) APHERISS (50

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2018
RN RN F=ER it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WwmE A WmEAe WWmEAG TE I
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
SR Financial assets
ZoHPERE ™ (HHE 21 Trading assets (Note 21)
- fREIES K - Debt securities and
AEFRUE certificates of deposit 334 31,783 - 32,117
- BAriEsE - Equity securities 2 - - 2
- Mg - Fund 3 - - 3
- Hhfis TA - Other debt instruments - 4,634 - 4,634
Ho ARG S LA Other financial assets
(AT NP a5 2 4 mandatorily classified at
Al CRE 21) fair value through profit or
loss (Note 21)
- SRR K - Debt securities and
LEFRUE certificates of deposit - 751 - 751
- BEriESR - Equity securities 2 - - 2
Gt NUAA P Financial assets designated
NI RS 4 b Bt at fair value through profit
(Bt 21) or loss (Note 21)
- SR K - Debt securities and
FEFRIUE certificates of deposit 691 2,480 - 3,171
- HAh S TH - Other debt instruments - 233,477 - 233,477
iRl T B Derivative financial
(B 22) instruments (Note 22) 11,356 23,592 7 34,955
PL2s P AH A A o N K Investment in securities at
s 4 18 i 25 2 A % FVOCI (Note 24)
Bt (BHE 24)
- SRR K - Debt securities and
F3E certificates of deposit 68,013 401,754 - 469,767
- BepriEzR - Equity securities - 185 1,144 1,329
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(8
51 DA EHEBRESMT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
H 8
(A) A THERSSR (4 (A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
2018
RN HBRER EENEY Rt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
whE AT WmEAx BhEhxT BhEAT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
S Financial liabilities
LASEAZ TN 26 Financial liabilities at fair
Z &R value through profit or loss
(B 30) (Note 30)
- RGPS R - Trading liabilities - 13,336 - 13,336
- S AUATHE - Financial liabilities
BT AT designated at fair value
P ikt through profit or loss - 2,199 - 2,199
i em TR Derivative financial
(P 22) instruments (Note 22) 8,417 22,395 - 30,812
Ja G f5 Subordinated liabilities
(% 35) (Note 35)
- JE R - Subordinated notes - 13,246 - 13,246
AL SR K There were no significant financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level
B TR AR A 2 for the Group during the year (2018: Nil).

—ERIEE )RR
[B] FF K #% (2018
T
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. HEMABHATE
€

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 DAPFEHEN SR T
L€ 9)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

(B) B=EZWMEE

Zll
2019
&REBE
Financial assets
Az 734 L
A¥fEaiion DA TEREA
Other financial i“\?iﬁﬁm
assets Wl 2 VEHBEFE
mandatorily Investment in
classified at e securities
FVPL SETE at FVOCI
Derivative BARIESR
s financial Equity
Fund instruments securities
WMEAT WMEAT WMEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
T 20191 H1H At 1 January 2019 - 7 1,144
W& Gains
- W - Income statement
- #A G A - Net trading gain - 1 -
- HfhaxTr s - Other comprehensive
income
- NPEAE - Change in fair value - - 446
prih Additions - - 564
AhE L TR K FHA Disposals, redemptions
and maturity - - -
HHE=2ER Transfer out of level 3 - (7) -
F 2019412 A 31H At 31 December 2019 - 1 2,154
F 2019412 A 31 H Total unrealised gains for
FAMEmE ™ T the year included in
FERTEAREER income statement for financial
R SE I A A assets held as at
31 December 2019
- WG - Net trading gain - 1 -
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. BEMAMEKATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.1

DAPEHEREHT
L€ 9)

(B) B=EZWMEE
3 (5

T 20181 H1H
W zd
- W
- G EES
- Fefh it

- AT
W
W R EI
B 13 =
T 2018412 H 31 H

T 2018412 H 31 H

A IR s
FENTAREER T
ARSI aE B4

- RA G e as

At 1 January 2018
Gains
- Income statement
- Net trading gain
- Other comprehensive
income
- Change in fair value
Additions
Disposals, redemptions
and maturity
Transfer out of level 3

At 31 December 2018

Total unrealised gains for
the year included in
income statement for

financial assets held as at

31 December 2018
- Net trading gain

213

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2018
SRl
Financial assets
Hop i) 53 S LA

INSE A AR 3 = .
AFETILH A WA A
ealals PS4
Other financial Aoy w
Aasots Wi 2B
mandatorily Investment in
classified A securities
at FVPL ST R at FVOCI
Derivative BEARIESR
H4 financial Equity
Fund instruments securities
WEMHE T b NIE Db b IE Db
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
124 - 812
- 7 -
- - 296
- - 36
(124) - -
- 7 1,144
- 7 -
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

51 DA PEHENESRT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B (&)

(B) F=ELKTEEZ (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
3 (D)
T 2019 £ 12 A 31 As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
HJ% 2018 £ 12 H mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares and certain OTC derivative contracts.
31 H, " EAB=R
e i T H A
HAE BT T
WA BT S
25,
D e R (i B S For certain illiquid fund, the Group obtains valuation quotations from counterparties
&, REBNZ G which may be based on unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation.
Fabdth: HAPE For certain OTC derivative contracts, the counterparty credit spreads used in valuation
HITHEFTRERH T X techniques are unobservable inputs with significant impact on valuation. Therefore,
A 7= A B KR (1 these instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3. Transfers out of level 3
A WESH . T during 2019 were due to change of valuation observability. The Group has established
LN G BT E internal control procedures to control the Group’'s exposure to such financial
G4, HZGFE instruments.
DR ZE A TS S
HIexr B A K

SN, DA SR
KL T K5 5
FEEH. T 2019
FERHEZRERTIN
RIS it '
FERICEVARN
P e P M 4% R T
D 1 St N )
Ho
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

5.1 DAPFEHEN SR T
L€ 9)

(B)

FBEREHTER
CINE )

PAA AL NS
fh 4T 2 2 3E R T
BRI AFE T S
(i) AL
WAT 2 I /
BFIREEG 5 G) 1%
R 2 B BB
[ RIURA =R =)
(iii) #5HH SRt
PO A A R B AT i
PRI BB,
) 42 HL % 7 e A R
E. AMFESESFR
2z AT ity / &
FIfEH LR Tl A
SRR R BN SR B
74 A7 A8 1E 1) 9%
R, 5B RN
TR R s TR 2R 3%,
FAES

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The fair values of unlisted FVOCI equity shares are determined with reference to (i)
multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios
of comparables; or (ii) dividend discount model calculation of the underlying equity
investments; or (iii) net asset value, if neither appropriate comparables nor dividend
discount model calculation is available or applicable. The fair value is positively
correlated to the price/earning ratios of appropriate comparables, forecasted stream of
future dividend payout or net asset values, and is negatively correlated to the discount
rate used in the dividend discount model.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W5 IEME (82) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

S M2 SR KA S
KAERGY Z M5 Je g
Ul T4 HJE— N
), HIKHE S AT
TEARE

B PR B ARAT S A

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions

BB HEK
REBI 2% 1 5 R
AT 2 oAt < R WL A B 3K
REEFENME, R
AR, HIKmES 2~
B -

DA AR AR 1T B 2 IR o

Substantially all the advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions are
on floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying
value approximates fair value.

Investment in securities at amortised cost

DA AR AR T B 2 AR 27
AT E E S HHE 5.1
WL TR T B 55
UE I K A7 FCUE A B8 7 41K
27 R 2 O v M
IS el P i RV
RBAS T B 2R SRR
DAL I Wi 2 3%l 2 A7
56 4 KR AU 1 3R Oy 2
i FD 0 0L B < A A 2 i
5o

The fair value of securities at amortised cost is determined by using the same approach as
those debt securities and certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured at
fair value as described in Note 5.1. Besides, a discounted cash flow model is used for
certain securities at amortised cost based on a current yield curve appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

5.2 ERAAPEIEN &/

TH (8

B
KU I 2% AT
G5 EE N, 3
T 15 5 A FAEE

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

B R AT i 55U 25 S AT 3K
iE

PRI TR 2 A1 fE
HIHE 5.1 A AT
&I 5T 55 1L 27 K A7 KL
K2 IR

Frbl EHIKE S AT
EARE R T RS T
RNAEUA P ER
< TR 2 W T B R
SRR

SR
DASE A A THBE AR %
% (M 24)

SRS
ELRAT RS UE S AR K
CPfHE 32)

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those debt
securities and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being

approximation of fair values.

Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost (Note 24)

Financial liabilities

Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue (Note 32)
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2019 2018

TR K THIE
Carrying AE Carrying ANFE
value Fair value value Fair value
WHEAn WWEAxm  WBmEAT BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
68,390 68,883 69,759 69,110
116 116 9,453 9,454
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

5.2 EDAFETE K SRl
IR 8

TRIR ER L AT
Bt TRz AP
ER.

ST
DA AR A T B 2 A7
BBt

SRIFR
ERATHFFIES &
A KIE

SR
DU A% A i 1 2 R

”

SR
EURAT IR
{FHIE

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue
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2019
FRB& E_R%& BE=ZR%R Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WHEAT WHEAK WHEAK BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
1,002 67,099 782 68,883
- 116 - 116

2018
H—ER BER EEE% Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WwhE AT wMmEkm  BhEAT HwHE AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
2,475 65,844 791 69,110
- 9,454 - 9,454
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

%5 FHHE (482 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. BEMAMEKATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.3 DA PEHENIESE 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

TR
A B2 118 I — 2Bk {E The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
A B BR T 3 R0 SR B determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

R A TR ATE,

B 5 Investment properties and premises

VN TPy N AR SE s The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
B B 5= . BT A Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. This year, the
Bl Bl B 5 e 2 valuations were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank
TARRBAT E Al . REZ Petty Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute
fiti AL H 2 SR U0 2 of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
3552 AT A BR 2 7 valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
BT, HARA B A& E methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at
BIMESBERL ISR each interim and annual reporting date. Except for a site redevelopment of investment
YRR E AN property that has been commenced during the year using the residual approach valuation,
B FEFEATE YL P bt there has been no change in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are
XM EELR. 4 consistent with last year.

(CEER SR S S &S N

BATI, AEAEHES
R0 R Al E 5
PN RN s R R R
Ko Br—DTENITREM
Bty B I H R
RIRAGEIEST, METTE
THEABANRE, IF5E

F—F

() BN FE = (i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
K Ak A 77925 B
W RRNERR2Z The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
YN AFAE, Ti5% comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
Af Ll 2z 3 income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
BN (Wit appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
) BSHE IR AE R and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
TR E (RANEAE entire measurement.

2, HXAT DL
B PP Al b 22 18] 1
ZEFAE R E IR
ESL K3 SISPUR 37
R N NN 7
1
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©)

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.3 DAPETHER IR &R
IR 8

BRI ()
() 25 A F

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements (continued)

R HY A48 5 3 S 1A
EE9)

&R 2l BT
TR HT R, R HE
K By SRV W 2 3
T BN THER J 15
WML T 7 . AT LR
Yoz A izl
& MR ARER R
ARSI EE
EA ke S C I

(i KRB =ZZERAFE
THEIEUR

BRERAT R4 Wi 2K
NE =R R AR
Polk 2z 2~ AE 2R A
T 3 b ek SN %
Ak, fHEA LD
GRS RN R 87N
P SRR 3 A R ok

TR AT & B 2 R
PR, FHIET 5 5 5%
BIAr B8 AL, ATl
J5 2R AT I AR
BEE . EEMREN
DU TR
%3 HU IR DL A
LATIAZR, FFEE S
A LS Ll f)
RS

(ii

=

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong, certain major cities in the mainland,
Thailand and Malaysia where the property markets are considered active and
transparent. Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties
are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3, except for the bank
vault, is determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the features of
the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.

The fair value of the bank vault is determined using the depreciated replacement cost
approach as no direct comparable is available given the specialised nature of the
property. The major inputs are the market value of the existing land, the current cost of
replacing the property and the depreciation rate. Appropriate adjustments are made to
reflect the specialised nature of the property.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

M5 4RFME (4)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

PLUF AR & The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
WX RN R =2 measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
PN SEiLyN 4IPS
FH AL (B 77 ) R
NS 3
AAMSRHER S APHENRR
fEAEHE BERXATUERE TBF3 Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HRAT P YrH & E ARk B EES B 2% HriHERER, APEER.
Bank vault Depreciated Depreciation rate (2018%:: 2%) | The higher the depreciation rate,
replacement cost 2% (2018: 2%) the lower the fair value.
approach per year
A ARV I 2 385 BHLA+15% e ATEER.
Premium on specialised (20184FE: +15%) The higher the premium,
nature of the property| +15% (2018: +15%) the higher the fair value.
to building cost
FeAt Ly Wi Hdm | LA AT E el 7 -11% e ATEER.
Other WNBEAYE | R b s /D (2018: -6%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to i@, A PEER.
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach
Wb A AT Bk Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account

1E MR B A/
) Jiz%E 50
LB LAEAN ] R 3R
ErES, HlInmA
JaZzWinAE. fu
Bk, i
Wil #e= . .
Al R AT

various factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building
age/condition, floor level, size, layout, etc., with reference to the differences in features
with comparable properties.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.3 UAPETEIESE 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

TEA (&
BRI e (B Investment properties and premises (continued)
(i RE=ZHAFE (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

THEBR (8

XA EE T
B2 AFE,
SR R R ARV
o E SR T B L
WAl F ARV —
B T LR R
M7k, Hhei
T 3 Pl A ol i s B
#IH R R R
fi. Wtk RS
B RS T LR )
NP8 & /)
B/ NASE JEib-3;:301
H 53 3R 22 5 R AR 3
WA, RAHH
A T R R A
E I BLE T 0RO R
BAs CRLEE % olk 2%
A PRERAS . B
BAEE) JR R
1 BB I P 9 4% £ A
. SREMEE
B, ATEE
R IRA KA IR &
B AT ESEIR.

For the fair value of the investment property with a redevelopment plan, it is measured
on a redevelopment basis by adopting residual approach which is a valuation method
generally used to value development of lands. Gross Development Value (“GDV”) is
first determined using market comparison approach by reference to recent transactions
of comparable properties and adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
quality of the Group’s development compared to the comparable properties. The
ultimate fair value of the redevelopment is the residual value after deducting the
present value of the development costs (including professional fees, demolition cost,
constructions cost etc.) and developer’s profit from the present value of the GDV. The
higher the GDV, the higher the fair value; the higher the development costs and the
discount rate, the lower is the fair value.
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

5.3 DAPETHER IR &R
IR 8

&
TR LA TS
BR T 7 A B A TR
BT IR .

i

(A) AFERESR

R
Fevepll (I 26)
ik, B
CWiE 27)
N

HA = (B 28)

FZ:
]

\J

2 J

JeERbB™
THEl CHHE 260
LZNIANE ey

(B 27D

- B
HAbTE ™ (fHE 28)

- HwER
AERZ B SRl % T
FENERAE JZRIE
ZIRG a1 RS (2018
e T

Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

2019
BBR B_ER B=B% Mt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WhmEAx WhEZAxL BHmEAT BTHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 26) - 396 20,032 20,428
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 27)
- Premises - 1,020 45,004 46,024
Other assets (Note 28)
- Precious metals 6,542 2,719 - 9,261
2018
2% BRER 2R it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WWEA WHEHAG WHEAT HEMHE T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 26) - 386 19,602 19,988
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 27)
- Premises - 1,023 45,063 46,086
Other assets (Note 28)
- Precious metals 3,012 3,590 - 6,602

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2018: Nil).
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W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. HEMAMEKATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.3 UAPE-EN ISR
TH (4
(B) E=E&MIEZ3)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

2019

FEERB>

Non-financial assets

F20194FE1H1H
e
- i
- B A T 8
PA
- L
- Jfe T
- B LA
s
ME
ICEEY
B R
T
IS

F2019FE12H 31 H

T 2019 4£ 12 A 31 HFA
AR RS TENTA
o 2 2 PO AR S MR 2 A A
- BEP AT EIEL

e &
- HAli B 2 W

At 1 January 2019
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises

- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises

Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2019

Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2019
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises

224

Yk, AR
Properties, plant

Bl and equipment
Investment B
properties Premises
BHEAT WHEATT
HK$’'m HK$’'m
19,602 45,063

279 -

- 1"

- 1,015

- (1,138)

32 133

54 155

(136) (35)

201 (201)

- 1

20,032 45,004

279 -

- 1"

279 1"
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.3 DAPETHER IR &R

TH (8

(B) B=E&MBEHZ3
%)

T 2018 1 A1 H
fheny
- feai#
- BRI AL IR
PAtLIE
- B R
- HiAt 2 i
S S
#rlH
HE
HMNHZZH
HHE=ZH
HHR
T2

T 2018412 H 31 H

T 2018 4F 12 H 31 HEFE
AR R B T A TEA
o 2 2 PO A S B 2 A A
- BEP AT EIEL

s
- Bl AR

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2018

E| Sl o
Non-financial assets

NN

Properties, plant

At 1 January 2018
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2018

Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2018
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises

Bl and equipment
Investment B
properties Premises
VI IREWAIT WME AT
HK$'m HK$'m
19,582 42,842
895 -

- 21

- 2,051

- (1,062)

13 920

- 234

(888) 888

- (1)

19,602 45,063

895 -

- 21

895 21

225



@ ¥ &4 trmn)amaa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W% FHHE (8 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. MR ATF(E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(82)

5.3 DAPETHER IR &R
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

6. Net interest income

Interest income

Advances to customers, due from banks and
other financial institutions

Investment in securities and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Others

Interest expense

Deposits from customers, due to banks and
other financial institutions

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Subordinated liabilities

Lease liabilities

Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018
whBE AT WHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
46,718 42,682
17,257 15,783
563 370
64,538 58,835
(25,859) (20,293)
(79) (517)
(719) (992)
(54) N/A
(562) (556)
(27,273) (22,358)
37,265 36,477

Included within interest income are HK$49,109 million (2018: HK$45,031 million) and
HK$13,267 million (2018: HK$10,699 million), before hedging effect, for financial assets
measured at amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income

respectively.

Included within interest expense are HK$26,186 million (2018: HK$21,119 million), before
hedging effect, for financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

227



@ ¥ &4 trmn)amaa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WS REMIE (80
7. %R 3 RS

JR 45 % A SN
(E RS
LN

DRI

HEHRAL
eI
e
L4
(CEIVEIR: S
FKFAEM
e

Hofts

JR 45 % B AR 3 H
(E RS
IEAREAL

Hofts

eiE 8 YL N

Hrp A

e[ A R LA PN

el s et SR

- MR g5 B LA
- B 55 H R AN

fEIER H At 2 FEiE3)
- RS R
- RS B A S

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Credit card business

Loan commissions
Insurance

Securities brokerage
Funds distribution
Payment services

Bills commissions

Trust and custody services
Currency exchange

Safe deposit box

Others

Fee and commission expense
Credit card business

Securities brokerage

Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from:
Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

Trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018
whEAT S iN=pib
HK$’'m HK$'m
2,985 3,478
2,675 2,613
2,577 1,832
2,113 2,769
816 864
716 681
700 739
660 641
599 590
294 285
1,286 1,323
15,421 15,815
(2,044) (2,545)
(255) (323)
(917) (980)
(3,216) (3,848)
12,205 11,967
3,141 3,124
(12) (23)
3,129 3,101
850 826
(28) (27)
822 799
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W5 IMEHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. B Gl 8. Net trading gain
2019 2018
WHE T WwHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Filas /1 CFHD JEA: Net gain/(loss) from:
ANIEAE Gy FANIEZE By 7= Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 5,732 2,896
T TR A A X ) Interest rate instruments and items under
WH fair value hedge (530) 56
T Commodities 366 184
A B A5 e fiT A T R Equity and credit derivative instruments 81 140
5,649 3,276

9. HAhAAFEZ4LIE A 9. Net gain on other financial instruments at fair value through profit or

M &i TR B loss

2019 2018
EREAT HMHE It
HK$’m HK$'m
HAbRH] DN LATEZELL  Net gain/(loss) on other financial instruments
TEANR S 2 Rl TR e mandatorily classified at fair value through
/5D profit or loss 61 (39)
Gt NPT N 2 Net gain on financial instruments designated at
2GRl T Bl ek fair value through profit or loss 267 557
328 518

229



@ ¥ &4 trmn)amaa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W5 IMEHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
10. HAh&BIBE=2 %I 10. Net gain on other financial assets
Eit

AbE /e BLATHE AR
AN FAth £z ad 2 IE SR
et 2 e

8% [l ASE AR Bl A T 2 AIE
BT

HAt

1. HZERA 1.

i B
- REFENBE IR
PR T A H:
fib AT i ad 2 TETF A
73
- REAFERTFFA 2 U2
SPAEAZ T N Al 2
TS 2 Z UE SR 358
Eea ity FaiiEAs L N
e AR S
HAt

[HRBB 2 3 | e
FERAR B E YL 2 B %
ZE ST 1 | 7578 (2018
& WM 1 AT,

Net gain on disposal/redemption of investment in
securities at FVOCI

Net loss on redemption of investment in securities at
amortised cost
Others

Other operating income

Dividend income
- From investment in securities at FVOCI derecognised
during the year

- From investment in securities at FVOCI held at the
end of the year

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

2019 2018
WHHE T HEMH T
HK$’'m HK$'m
795 35
(41) (31)
17 3)
771 1
2019 2018
WHEAT WHH T
HK$’'m HK$'m
3 3
114 42
670 663
(60) (73)
104 103
831 738

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$1 million (2018: HK$1
million) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let during

the year.
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WS REMIE (80
12. WRERESRE

IRAEAE R (PR / FRIA
R A 357

FEARAT Je Hofth R 2 45
R E WHE TR

UEFF B
- DLAHEAAL T A oAt

eIl &
- DR AT

GER U K SRR T
Hoph

TRAE T 3 R %

12. Net charge of impairment allowances

Net (charge)/reversal of impairment allowances on:

Advances and other accounts

Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Investment in securities
- At FVOCI

- At amortised cost

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018
whBE AT WHE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
(1,852) (1,183)
12 70

(19) (18)
(10) (3)
(29) (21)
(136) (91)
(10) (12)
(2,015) (1,237)
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WS IRRME (82
13. £EXH

NFRH] (BHEES M)
- I p A 2

B e s OV
/NIED)
- el
- FEIIRLGT . ROHE B A
B PR AL AL 5T
PR
- HAh

PrIE B 27)
TZHUNIH S

- IS

- Aes RS
HAh L E

T 2018 %, [pr-ilae] €
FHREARFL T 0.51 1278,

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost

Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- Rental of premises
- Short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and
variable lease payments
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation (Note 27)
Auditor’s remuneration

- Audit services

- Non-audit services
Other operating expenses

2019 2018
BRBET BN
HK$’m HK$'m
8,488 7,854
497 453
8,985 8,307
N/A 734
198 N/A
799 626
524 446
1,521 1,806
2,823 2,045
27 27

9 19
2,759 2,518
16,124 14,722

Contingent rent included in the “Rental of premises” amounted to HK$51 million in 2018.
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&I EHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14. BHEYIAE / AF  14. Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment
AR s properties

2019 2018
WMEAT W E 7T
HK$’'m HK$'m
BERY AT 2 Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
i (fE 26) properties (Note 26) 288 921

15. %8 / E5YL. 8844 15. Net (loss)/gain from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
K&z E (i) / equipment

s

2019 2018
EHEAT WEMHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m

Ab B s 58 Bt A e A Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
2R fittings 7 (5)
FAL G U e (B 27) Net gain from revaluation of premises (Note 27) 6 24
) 19
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16. BIIR

Wi i e N B AN T

AT
AEHEH
- SEATEABLII
- TR

M
- FENTEABII
- AR %

HHIERLT

BN ZER L S AR [B
BARAEHBLIHR S (K
*34)

A VRIS BT A P A
T U AL YRR
fKFLZ 16.5% (2018 4F:
16.5%) #2ik. #WAMEHZ
Tt A IR A FE A VR
A G B 28 %5 e
xR /X 2 BT BRI
.

ARSI B i A A R S
PrBiil, SARAEEEAAB
R MBIER T

Aot A s

R 16.5% (2018 4E:
16.5%) 5B

HAME K / X B ZE R
A0

TR Z N

R AW NI b a

{8 AR AE R BN BLS 7 B

AR

ANHERL

HAth

H AR

PR
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

16. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

and unused tax credits (Note 34)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018
WwhE G HEMH T
HK$’'m HK$'m
5,706 5,552
(88) (65)
5,618 5,487
643 803
(135) 7)
6,126 6,263
(146) 79
5,980 6,342

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas

profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries/regions in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries/regions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

Over-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax

Others

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate
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2019 2018
WwhE G HEMH T
HK$’'m HK$'m
39,334 38,027
6,490 6,274
166 131
(936) (592)
589 328
(2) -
(223) (92)
125 293
(229) -
5,980 6,342
15.2% 16.7%
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&I EHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
17. &S 17. Dividends

2019 2018
£ pst.i] (53 ek
Wi  WBWmEZu W WM E AT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$’'m HK$ HK$'m
Ji B Dividends 0.366 15,754 0.375 16,141
T 201948 A30H, &H On 30 August 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.131 per ordinary
2 BRI R 2 R e share amounting to approximately HK$5,639 million, which was paid on 24 September
WM 0.131 Jo, BHLINME 2019.
i 56.39 12T, T 2019
F£9 A 24 HXAT.
T 2019412 4 23 H, # On 23 December 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.235 per ordinary
Fos BRI S R e share amounting to approximately HK$10,115 million, which was paid on 24 December

JBeHE ™ 0.235 J, HAILA 2019.
#m 10115 278, T
2019 £ 12 J] 24 H3 A
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18. BIRAEFI A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Retirement benefit costs

AR PR AR pRaE A T 4
HWEssR L. £%
W SR T A i LR E
BRI ZZONZRCE
ST G PR
R 2% AR AR T B AR
upE

MR FOE R TR, i 2
A R AR TR 2 A A
HNHEEARF 42 5%, T
Jie 32 2 A H AL O e A
KA#HZ 5%E 15% %%
(Wi R Z MRS 4E D
Ji AT BT R AR SR ATIR AR
o P4 0k HR 45 4F %
i 10 4E Tk LA 2550 R ik
BT 100% 2 Jig 43K HR4s
W3 EE 9 SEMRT,
At 5 DR 7 2% 1 e U (e
BRIV A SR B 40D, AT R
30%%E 90% 2 i LA
JeE SRS R AR 22
(RG24 FTBR

BEA AR 4 410 T 2000
12 A1 B, A%R
IR B SR BN T SR AR
&%, JET 2019 fEilg,
RSG5 MR T
EBAT 0 B R &t
R 2 B FE N AR i
B RIS A R A, 5%
TN A F AR s R
R P BT BR A A, SR
8] 23 B Y R A RAT 24 K
#ENL

#AE 2019412 431 H1kE
R, EERZIET 0.10
{276(2018 4¢: 33111 0.10
feu) Z B s, Bk
AR R 2 R B A N
1T 3.58 1270 (2018 4
LIHETH 3.43 1470), AR
P 1) 9 AR < vl 2 AR
BUNL T 0.99 127

(2018 4F: 23311 0.76 12
J6)e

Retirement benefits are provided to eligible employees of the Group. In Hong Kong,
defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons
other than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are
subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also launched the MPF Scheme according to the regulatory requirement. Since 2019,
employees with 5 years of service or above are entitled to employer’'s voluntary
contribution. The trustee of the Scheme is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment
manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$358 million (2018: approximately HK$343
million), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$10 million (2018:
approximately HK$10 million). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed approximately
HK$99 million (2018: approximately HK$76 million) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WMEWEBMIE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. EH. GETHEAR X 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEARME

(a) EFAFBEBEHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
L
(i) EEME (i) Directors’ emoluments
AR FEARE B A Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
BATHEFH AT respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within
JE IR A A i the Group during the year are as follows:
Az WR 550 24T &
HRISCR W I 4x
PR
2019
EXHE.
b Y0P
SEYIREF
Basic
salaries,
allowances
HENASE and HAnqt
Directors’ benefits e Other B
fee in kind Bonus payments# Total
W W WHFT wmTn BHFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PITEE Executive Directors
U GAO Yingxin
@=%:=2) (Chief Executive) - 7,142 4,247 - 11,389
FAMT L Jiuzhong™*® - 1,008 533 - 1,541
- 8,150 4,780 - 12,930
JEBATEF  Non-executive Directors
XIS LIU Liange - - - - -
R LIN Jingzhen - - - . .
e CHENG Eva* 502 - - . 502
LSRN CHOI Koon Shum* 551 - . . 551
R KOH Beng Seng* 601 - - . 601
BT LAW Yee Kwan Quinn*N*! 404 . . . 404
A TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* 651 - . . 651
I DU 37572 CHEN Siging"”? . . . . .
2,709 - - - 2,709
2,709 8,150 4,780 - 15,639
w1 THEAET. Note 1: Appointed during the year.
2. TEARAT. Note 2: Resigned during the year.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

WMEMEBMIE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. EH. GETHEAR X 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEARME (8 (continued)

(a) EHELAREEHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)
[N E D)
(i) EFHE (&) (i) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
2018
EE¥N R
A B
SEHDAE R
Basic
salaries,
allowances
M4 and oAt 3
Directors’ benefits izan Other Bt
fee in kind Bonus payments# Total
M-I #whT oo M #wmT T #whT oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PATEE Executive Directors
TR R GAO Yingxin
(@S] (Chief Executive) - 6,530 4,018 - 10,548
YNl LI Jiuzhong - 4,846 2,490 - 7,336
- 11,376 6,508 - 17,884
JEBATEF  Non-executive Directors
XIS LIU Liange - - - - -
MEER LIN Jingzhen - - - - i
e CHENG Eva* 500 - - . 500
BT IRY CHOI Koon Shum* 592 - - - 592
T KOH Beng Seng* 642 - . . 642
ERGH TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* 692 - - - 692
[RUb CHEN Siqing - - ; ; -
{LHEEy REN Deqi - - - ; .
X LIU Qiang - - - - ;
2,426 - - - 2,426
2,426 11,376 6,508 - 20,310
* ST AEBATE * Independent Non-executive Directors
# ARG H# T # Including the contributions to pension scheme for directors, inducement to join the group and
IR R4 TR Bk 4 the compensation for the loss of office paid to or receivable by directors.
FINPSLEEE: =i
YSOSEINe ATSES
ESE A R vARS A b
BRAT R T
#HZE 2019412 A 31 There were no directors waived emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2019
HIREE, HAESHE (2018: Nil).
7 4 (2018
).
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W5 IEME (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. HH. HEEHE AR K& 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEARME (8 (continued)

(a) EFAREBEEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)
B4 (82
(i) AALBEFMA L (i) Five highest paid individuals

A AR AR A T B
[ DNk
% (2018 4F: 2 42D
HHE, HMECH
TRt a4
% (2018 : 34)
i d=E o NS ]
ST

B < S
e
BRI

FENI SN
B A L RS Wi
Z G

1T 6,000,001 JCZE# T 6,500,000 J©
1T 6,500,001 JCZE# T 7,000,000 J©
1T 7,000,001 o2 #E T 7,500,000 JG
1T 7,500,001 JCZE#E T 8,000,000 J©

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year
include one (2018: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining four (2018: three)

individuals during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances
Bonus
Contributions to pension schemes

2019 2018
EBREAT BTATIT
HK$’'m HK$'m

16 12

1 9

1 1

28 22

Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to

their tenure are within the following bands:

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000

239

A
Number of individuals
2019 2018
1 -
1 1
- 1
2 1
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W5 IEME (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. HH. HEEHE AR K& 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEARME (8 (continued)

(a) EELAFEETHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

B4 (82
(iii) HETEAAHNE (i) Senior management’s emoluments

R EBAN N Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to

WA AT B A their tenure as senior management are within the following bands:

T 6 R AR Wi 2 T

ST

A
Number of individuals
2019 2018

#& 0 LA HEM 500,000 76 HK$0 to HK$500,000 - 2
#51 500,001 JL & #s M 1,000,000 Jt HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1 1
#51 1,500,001 Jt 2 M 2,000,000 7o HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 -
#51 2,000,001 Ju &M 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
#51 5,000,001 Ju &M 5,500,000 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 2 2
#51 5,500,001 Jt 2 ¥ M 6,000,000 7T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 2 1
#51 6,000,001 Ju 2 M 6,500,000 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 1 -
#5 7,000,001 Ju &M 7,500,000 7o HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 - 2
#5 7,500,001 Ju 2 M 8,000,000 Ji HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 -
#510 10,500,001 JuZ#s M 11,000,000 Jt HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 - 1
#510 11,000,001 JL2#M 11,500,000 Jt HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 1 -
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W5 4R IHE (42

19. HH. HEEHE AR X 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEARME (8D
(b) CG-5 THRABEHEANRK

FEARKIFHH

LR iE, g
YNV E R INR S
T

- BAEEN R RS

18 € 1 R N
0L, $1 BT SR S Bl
LSS, WIREH. A
ISSIUINE =Sy SN A
SRS BB SR I
M,

- EEAG A NSSE

B e HOR R  AK
H, X R R A R
SR, B NIRRT A
W B B R
Wiy, R A B
WA 5, BAE LS5 B
P PN R R A S
B AER B A
A SEA RRE
GIR AT CYNANE 7
B DL XU A
L4 52 e ) TR A R
F—sHEN.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are defined as
follows:

- Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, senior executives of Southeast
Asian entities, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

AR A W 2 R
BN G R EEN R EH

EHERS B -

(i) THBERENET

(i) Remuneration awarded during financial year

Details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
during the year are as follows:

I
2019 2018
BREEAR FEAR SEEEAR FEAA
Senior Key Senior Key
Management Personnel Management Personnel
WHhELu BHEAT b NINE Db b NINE Db
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
[i5] 72 355 M Fixed remuneration

4 Cash-based 42 137 36 125
Hofr o Of which: deferred - - - -

TFBI Variable remuneration
4 Cash-based 19 85 16 76
T - paE Of which: deferred 5 22 5 20
BT Total remuneration 61 222 52 201

RTHH Number of employees
%] 52 N Fixed remuneration 12 56 11 50
VN HEN Variable remuneration 12 55 11 50
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. #HH. HEEHE AR X 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEARBME (42

(b) CG-5 TRAEHARK
FEARMFH (8D

(i) HeBITEK

HE 2019 4F 12 H
31 HIEEERE, WA
TR ERA G E
N GRIEAELL, %5
4% & Ol R

(2018 4F: o).

(iii) BEIEHTH

FRETA N
W

EX- YN
W

A

R EFN G
b

EL: YN
b

JSE

Senior Management
Cash

Key Personnel
Cash

Total

Senior Management
Cash

Key Personnel
Cash

Total

(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5 (continued)

(ii) Special payments

There were no guaranteed bonuses, sign-on awards and severance payments to
Senior Management and Key Personnel for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

(iii) Deferred remuneration

2019
b WRERAEEA
ST EHIARSMER
/ AN
RIS BIE K
ofﬁﬁﬁmé‘{ﬁ EERVBEENE EERMBEREANE
amount of TEEMMATREMEHE FEEASTEHIN TR RMBUEEN
outstanding SMEWEMBIEITE ATERBTHEITH b3 4: 3]
REAFI deferred and i i TBTEHTH 2B
TR TES S retained Total amount of Total amount of Total amount of
Total amount of remuneration amendment during amendment during deferred

outstanding

exposed to ex post

the year due to ex

the year due to ex

remuneration paid

deferred explicit and/or post explicit post implicit  out in the financial
remuneration _implicit adjustment adjustments adjustments year
BHEAT BHEAT WHE A WHE A BHEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
10 10 - - (5)
39 39 - - (14)
49 49 - - (19)
2018

Serp L ATRESZAEE AL

45 F I IR AME T

/B LE VR B (1

ARSI IE

B S A . . S :
TRt SRR

amo.unt of MEEMGTEIELEK  TEEAS T/E LI TEA RIFBUEE N
outstanding AMETREMHASTT ) AR R AE T (Y RIS
RSAFI deferred and I HTH S 36 JE T P A0
328 S 7 I S 5 retained Total amount of Total amount of Total amount of
Total amount of remuneration amendment during amendment during deferred

outstanding

exposed to ex post

the year due to ex

the year due to ex

remuneration paid

deferred explicit and/or post explicit post implicit out in the financial
remuneration implicit adjustment adjustments adjustments year
BEME T BEME T WM E AT WME AT EME 7T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

10 10 - - ®)

31 31 - - (11)

41 41 - - (16)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. EHEINERESITE  20. Cash and balances and placements with banks and other financial

HihemyWz &R institutions
B e B
2019 2018
WHE T WEME T
HK$’'m HK$'m
FEAF I 4 Cash 19,028 21,992
0 JLARAT 2 45 4 Balances with central banks 150,249 158,355
TEH JUARAT— A H N 31 Placements with central banks maturing within one month
Z BT 9,541 9,572
TEHREIT 2+ ZMH Placements with central banks maturing between one and
23 2 5 JHAEAR twelve months 2,444 2,697
FE 1 AR AT R — 4 3 ) Placements with central banks maturing over one year
ZTE IR 785 396
163,019 171,020
AE AR AT B oA 4> Filt Balances with other banks and other financial institutions
Wz 4542 75,455 119,968
TEH AT S FHAb SRl Placements with other banks and other financial
F—A H A B € institutions maturing within one month
E3is 80,971 65,949
TEH AT S FHAb SRl Placements with other banks and other financial
M—2+=NHRNEH institutions maturing between one and twelve months
Z BRI 28,166 54,154
184,592 240,071
366,639 433,083
TR % Impairment allowances
- W - Stage 1 3) (15)
- BB - Stage 2 - -
- BB - Stage 3 - -
366,636 433,068
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2019 2018
BEREAT BHHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Securities
Trading assets
- Treasury bills 21,025 16,301
- Certificates of deposit 2,953 623
- Other debt securities 13,612 15,193
37,590 32,117
- Equity securities 37 2
- Fund - 3
37,627 32,122
Other financial assets mandatorily
classified at fair value through profit or
loss
- Certificates of deposit - -
- Other debt securities 744 751
744 751
- Equity securities 3 2
747 753
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss
- Certificates of deposit - -
- Other debt securities 2,991 3,171
2,991 3,171
Total securities 41,365 36,046
Other debt instruments
Trading assets 5,297 4,634
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss - 233,477
Total other debt instruments 5,297 238,111
46,662 274,157
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21. DIAPERT AR 21. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
W ERBE= (8

WES3 A% BT 328 Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:
LIS
2019 2018
WMEAT whE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
B 55 LT3 RATAKE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- THEE LN - Listed in Hong Kong 5,903 8,053
- T B - Listed outside Hong Kong 4,192 6,186
- de b - Unlisted 31,230 21,800
41,325 36,039
JBEOIE S Equity securities
- TR - Listed in Hong Kong 37 2
- TAHWLS B - Listed outside Hong Kong 3 2
40 4
B Fund
- TR - Listed in Hong Kong - 3
W5 B Total securities 41,365 36,046
UEFF A RAT WA 2532 Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
Wy
2019 2018
WMEAT whE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
[EPEXEN Sovereigns 30,302 25,930
WNERAL Public sector entities 1,526 1,720
FRAT S H AL AL Banks and other financial institutions 7,506 6,525
NCIE(A4 Corporate entities 2,031 1,871
UEZR S Total securities 41,365 36,046
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22. iR T AR 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

£t

RERITIIC R, R, R
B TR A5 Aty
ST BT RA
ey .

TR TR R
1 SE RS2 A T ) AR o
AR R & L 2 1
GIES RS A I
MEEBHEL, AL S
PV B SRl 7 B4R 4
SE i AE AR R — H )
S 3k B ST M) i TR
&2 IR AR L
R BAR FE TTD 325 G M) 55
REY, BRAARKE—H
R & LH 3 5T 5 H] %
B 22 5 M 44 XA 188
BEAT TR ISR

BT MR s A2
A AS [F) L 4 9L BT i
AR PSS RS
FITE M M il e )%
AR siste R (i
R D S Bl R R T A 4
B O A2 BT M A
HD. B mEE4
b, LR G T AL HA
o

AN FIZE L 53468 Bt
HIBURFIIRU 27 CHik
Ji) RFETT (FPATT) 4t
FE R R —H e H R
ke — 72 I 3 A 2 2405 A
% ST GAIIRD B
AT IO — e H i 4
i T EL AR Cifg R A&
) —Fh il o & B BISMCAN
H R, BB S T7 A
SETTHCH 52 BB 3% o A
EHIRE LR SXFI7
FE 37 BN W 785 % B B 1 52
Gy AT (AT 52 By B ide AT
SESEZ RO .

The Group enters into exchange rate, interest rate, commodity, equity and credit related
derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a
future date. Interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in interest rates or buy or sell interest rate financial instruments on a
future date at an agreed price in the financial market under the administration of the stock
exchange. Forward rate agreements are individually negotiated interest rate futures that
call for a cash settlement at a future date for the difference between a contract rate of
interest and the current market rate, based on a notional principal amount.

Currency, interest rate and commodity swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver
swaps) or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps).
Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a
set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller
receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example,
exchange-traded stock option).
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22. 4R T EREX M 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
& (8

KERZATEERM T RS The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by
2y / 44 SUEUUR A PR the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
PEHIT R R B ERT instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and
A&y /2 LB E certain of them provide a basis for comparison with the fair values of instruments
AT B AR H AR 5E R recognised on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
2 Gy, AT T4mh TR future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do
A A WESEC YL not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
T A5 ® AR A T instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
B DA B B 7 B AR I 4 SF fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, market interest rates, commodity prices or equity
TR0 LG B Al H, X I prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments
AN BT B 1 o Sk (B can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

SR TR AT, BRI
AN fiE S It A 41 [ i T i
5 BE R R T 32 U - i
TSR T H A 4%
AAARENCE . AT HIH
A it 0 455 B0 T AL A A B
), AT SR TR R AT
fer=tE AR (=) BRI
) HIFEm, IXLeRm
A REAE A R 1) A R

Beah.

(a) FTEESRMTE (a) Derivative financial instruments
AR BAT N R The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded and OTC) mainly for
HMITHE R R B I A customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
EHMETFRE requirements in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
%o SEH 5% KRNk derivative products in the interbank market.
T 3 B 407 A 7
AT Gy ¥ 7 7 A
£ 1A & AR O KUK B
TR HE -
A= MR R T & Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
R AT IR 1R R derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
K, RETEtE 2 ™ transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional
A BRI AT AR amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the
PRI AT S . B deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
RT A= W38 G e A settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
IR A 5 44 SCHUE A

Rz, HFHHITR 5
BRI . BT
7 AT By e AR K T
MR RS, LT 4,
S Tk etk

Wt
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22. fi4&R T EREX M 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
& (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) ATEEM TR (80

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

TR & AT
TAT12H31HZAEY
IEDE ¢V EYGRIEE

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each
class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

2019
&4/ AFE
£ X BB Fair values
Contract/
notional 3 wikin
amounts Assets Liabilities
wmEAxL  WBHEAxT  BHEAT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m
CHREY Exchange rate contracts
BRI, i A 3 o Spot, forwards and futures 318,664 11,812 (8,105)
i Swaps 1,559,311 10,992 (10,027)
il Options 49,544 132 (100)
1,927,519 22,936 (18,232)
FZFEY) Interest rate contracts
1R Futures 1,126 2 -
5 3tH Swaps 1,223,157 7,462 (12,002)
IR Options 3,14 - -
1,227,397 7,464 (12,002)
TR il £ 240 Commaodity contracts 48,446 756 (2,576)
BALE 2 Equity contracts 1,301 11 (14)
BT TRAY Credit derivative contracts 389 - 9)
3,205,052 31,167 (32,833)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. 4R T EREX M 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

£ (8

(a) MTEE&EM TR (82

bBES= 4

IR Ny EPAE e

1]
IR

Pl A2
8¢
B
ik

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Swaps
Options

Interest rate contracts
Futures
Swaps
Options

Commodity contracts

Equity contracts

Credit derivative contracts
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2018
&)/ WNFAE
4 SUEUR Fair values
Contract/
notional wr 5t
amounts Assets Liabilities
HEMHE T =Y b IE Db
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
347,580 12,706 (8,876)
1,731,486 12,421 (12,100)
29,715 158 (64)
2,108,781 25,285 (21,040)
20,242 1 (39)
1,047,515 9,312 (8,428)
1,566 1 1)
1,069,323 9,314 (8,468)
28,782 239 (1,184)
2,998 117 (119)
392 - 1)
3,210,276 34,955 (30,812)
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5 EHE (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. 4R T EREX M 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
&3 (8

(b) Xfrp&it (b) Hedge accounting
AT Fair value hedges
AR BF A 2 A The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financial
25 e T 3% ) 2 5] B assets and liabilities arising from movements in market interest rates.
10 4 il % 77 % A 5t A
EARF),
DL J PR AT g 5 08 e Possible sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:
ToR:
- RE PR TR X I - Increase or decrease in the amounts of hedged items or hedging instruments;
H 38 sk s> 5
- RGHXFERNRE - Significant changes in counterparties’ credit risk.
KA .
NEMRTT 12 A 3 The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the hedging instruments
H BAE A2 & 29 3 1 H 51 as at 31 December by remaining contractual maturity.
IR TR EY/
4 B
2019
—= ==
—MAR =M AR —EEE RENE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to 5 Over Bt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
wm W wm wm W wm
BAX HBHART HBAR HBHART BARL HAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
) 2 fei 1] Interest rate swaps 849 1,575 6,065 67,336 38,066 113,891
2018
—% =%
—ANAN EZAA +SAA ERE REUE
Up to 1103 3to12 1t05 Over Bt
1 month  months  months years  5years Total
b3l b3l &M &M b3l &M
HwAax  HWhx WAAX  Whx HAx HAX
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
| A Interest rate swaps 235 78 10,808 70,258 34,845 116,224
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22. 4R T EREX M 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

ik (88

(b) Xp&it (42)

APEX (5

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

FE R TR 2 Mk The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as follows:
AT
2019
F DA R
TR
ATEES)
Change in
&4/ AT fair value
e Fair values used for
Contract/ recognising
notional B il hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
WHEA WHEAKL BHEAT WHE T
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
ATHE SRk T B Derivative financial instruments
ESEEE Interest rate swaps 113,891 330 (2,632) (3,714)
2018
F CABA K
TR 2
AFEAEF)
Change in
ééﬁf A fair value
2 SUHU Fair values used for
Contract/ recognising
notional B it hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
WWEA WmEAG BHEAT HEMHE It
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
TR T H Derivative financial instruments
) 2 i 1] Interest rate swaps 116,224 2,038 (477) 612
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22. 4R T EREX M 22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
&3 (8

(b) Xfait (40

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

AR ()

Fair value hedges (continued)

BT P IR E 2 AH 5% 4 0 The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:
/I
2019
TEANIK B K
AR .
ERRIem  AUBARTE
Accumulated TR
amount of fair WMHEZEH)
value hedge Change in value
adjustment used for
JKTHME  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
EHEAT WMEAT WMEAT
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
HEF % 5t Investment in securities
e FAF S5 B AT 3UE Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 118,224 2,813 3,921
2018
TEA K THIAE 1)
ISR
R84 JHLAT A
Accumulated TR 2
amount of fair M3
value hedge Change in value
adjustment used for
N THIE included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
HEME AT HEMHE T HEMHE I
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
UEF % %t Investment in securities
e F5AE S5 B AT 3KUE Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 115,598 (2,233) (273)
B I TE ARG 7 Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:
2019 2018
EHEAT HEMHE I
HK$’'m HK$'m
B2 G VRN A Net trading gain 207 339
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23. BEER R H AR 23. Advances and other accounts
2019 2018
WMEAT WwHE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
NG Personal loans and advances 414,356 352,805
N B Corporate loans and advances 981,067 913,722
VR Advances to customers 1,395,423 1,266,527
R JRAEAE R Less: Impairment allowances
- BB - Stage 1 (4,563) (3,747)
- B - Stage 2 (297) (546)
- BB - Stage 3 (2,175) (1,126)
1,388,388 1,261,108
52 5 B Trade bills 20,727 17,361
Ve VRAEAE RS Less: Impairment allowances
- BB - Stage 1 (1) (1)
- BB - Stage 2 | !
- B - Stage 3 - )
20,726 17,356
ARAT N Hofth 4 Bl A Bk Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 3,387 3,822
1,412,501 1,282,286
T 2019412 A 31 H, % As at 31 December 2019, advances to customers included accrued interest of HK$2,756
JBEECEHE R R T million (2018: HK$2,344 million).
27.56 1¢.7C (2018 4E: M
23.44 14.70)
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24, EHFEB 24. Investment in securities
2019 2018
BHEAT HwHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
DL PR AR AL TE N oA 42 T Investment in securities at fair value through other
K2 2 AE S A5 B comprehensive income
- iR - Treasury bills 234,284 122,462
- fFEGE - Certificates of deposit 51,167 34,849
- HAbF SRS - Other debt securities 382,206 312,456
667,657 469,767
- BAOES - Equity securities 3,288 1,329
670,945 471,096
DA AR T 2 TE S5 3 Investment in securities at amortised cost

- AEFRIE - Certificates of deposit 1,508 -
- HMh IS - Other debt securities 66,902 69,769
68,410 69,769

- HEAEE - Impairment allowances
BB Stage 1 (20) (10)
FEE Stage 2 . -
HE=HrE Stage 3 - ;
68,390 69,759
739,335 540,855
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by place of listing as follows:

2019 2018
BB AT EME I
HK$’'m HK$'m
Investment in securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong 65,315 63,791
- Listed outside Hong Kong 178,740 180,206
244,055 243,997
- Unlisted 423,602 225,770
667,657 469,767
Equity securities
- Listed in Hong Kong 550 -
- Listed outside Hong Kong 584 185
- Unlisted 2,154 1,144
3,288 1,329
670,945 471,096
Investment in securities at amortised cost
Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong 1,227 1,200
- Listed outside Hong Kong 41,441 42,069
42,668 43,269
- Unlisted 25,722 26,490
68,390 69,759
739,335 540,855
Market value of listed securities at amortised cost
43,207 43,189

255



@ ¥ &4 trmn)amaa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

TSI R ME (82
24, IEHHBE ()

UE 3 4% % 4% AT WA 2 5%
KT

BT SR
WNE AL
AT K H AR

AR 4

TEZRIEBE AR BBR AT -

T 20191 H1H

HE

AL 8] e E )

Bl

A S WA S ISP UL
A

A3 R %

TC S22

T 2019412 H 31 H

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2019 2018

BHEAT WwHE AT

HK$’'m HK$'m

Sovereigns 356,432 184,665
Public sector entities 46,790 44,984
Banks and other financial institutions 196,167 185,110
Corporate entities 139,946 126,096
739,335 540,855

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

2019

DAAPERMA

N A AT R

At fair value
through other UK RAE
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BB AT WHE T
HK$’'m HK$’'m
At 1 January 2019 471,096 69,759
Additions 1,033,786 14,388
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (843,401) (15,282)
Amortisation 2,630 (116)

Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustment

9,546 42
Net charge of impairment allowances - (10)
Exchange difference (2,712) (391)
At 31 December 2019 670,945 68,390
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

2018
LUAFEA Lt
A4 T WA 7
At fair value
through other LA AT &L
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
HEMH AT HEDIEDAPH
HK$'m HK$'m
At 1 January 2018, as previously reported
517,205 51,057
Effect of merger of entity under common control
- 790
At 1 January 2018, as restated 517,205 51,847
Additions 723,080 30,731
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (762,516) (12,466)
Amortisation 1,389 94
Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustment
(1,657) (26)
Net charge of impairment allowances - 3)
Exchange difference (6,405) (418)
At 31 December 2018 471,096 69,759

The Group has designated certain equity securities as equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The fair value through other comprehensive income
designation was made because these are held for strategic investments. Investments include
subordinated Additional Tier 1 securities, listed and unlisted equity shares.

The Group derecognised certain equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income with fair value of HK$78 million (2018: HK$139 million) during the year. The
derecognition was made because of portfolio rebalancing and the redemption by issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. REATFEEHE AN 25. Interests in associates and joint ventures

B

T1A1H
N ik 2 )
ISASETAN
SR

T12H31H

AARH 2R 24\ R B Al
WA Bl aE], EE

At 1 January
Share of results
Share of tax
Dividend received

At 31 December

2019 2018
WHHE T HEMH T
HK$’'m HK$'m

482 415

179 101

(42) (32)

- (2)

619 482

The particulars of the Group’s associates and joint ventures, all of which are unlisted, are as

follows:
T

VER BB b R

Place of
& incorporation ERAT A AN FEWSE
Name and operation Issued share capital Interest held Principal activities
PR S R 5 IR A i M 45% BERRE G R%3E
BOC Services PRC 50,000,000 A [T Credit card back-end
Company Limited Registered capital service support

RMB50,000,000

IR A R A i 10,026,000 7T 19.96% N B B ARG f A
Joint Electronic Teller Hong Kong HK$10,026,000 AT RS 3 X 4%

Services Limited

Operation of a private
inter-bank message
switching network in

respect of ATM services
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Investment properties

T1A1H

WE

AFEE (B 14D

HF KRR/ R
Yl g i
CBHE 27)

T12H31H

el K i {5 #4029
TR0 «

TERF R
IR G 50 4F)
TR (10 4R 2 50 42D

FERBLUSMNTA
KIPFLL G 50 4
TR (10 4R 2 50 42D
FEIEZ) (DT 10 48D

T 2019412 H 31 H, %

TR N BB
Ak, TR SRR VI
e Gi WE AT A R 2 7 T
2019 4212 H 31 HUAF
18 o e HE P AT 2 % Al
Ho A PEBETESHE
FEA B S B BT 1
W%z 5 MG Bk
BRI SR B

2019 2018

BB AT WwHE I

HK$’'m HK$'m

At 1 January 19,988 19,949

Additions 35 13

Fair value gains (Note 14) 288 921
Reclassification from/(to) properties,

plant and equipment (Note 27)
117 (895)
At 31 December 20,428 19,988

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:

2019 2018
BB AT HEDIEpAPH
HK$’'m HK$'m
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 5,320 4,991
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 14,746 14,639

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) - 86
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 330 244
On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 32 28
20,428 19,988

As at 31 December 2019, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2019 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market

participants at the measurement date.
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W5 16 55

W

AE

R

FEREYTIH CBHTE 13)

EV e S E ity

(Hfh: 26>
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Z T ¥4

T 2019412 31
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BT IH K E
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment

Be&. EER
K%
Equipment, fE FRAUH ™
B fixtures and Right-of-use Bt
Premises fittings assets Total
BHEAT WHE T BHEAT WHE T
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Net book value at
1 January 2019, as
previously reported 46,086 2,980 - 49,066
Effect of merger of
entity under common
control - 5 - 5
Net book value at
1 January 2019, as
restated 46,086 2,985 - 49,071
Effect of adoption of
HKFRS 16 - - 1,700 1,700
At 1 January 2019,
after adoption of
HKFRS 16 46,086 2,985 1,700 50,771
Additions 147 1,271 861 2,279
Disposals - (8) - (8)
Revaluation 1,060 - - 1,060
Depreciation for the
year (Note 13) (1,153) (993) (677) (2,823)
Reclassification to
investment
properties (Note 26) (117) - - (117)
Exchange difference 1 4 6 11
Net book value at
31 December 2019 46,024 3,259 1,890 51,173
At 31 December 2019
Cost or valuation 46,024 11,313 2,567 59,904
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment - (8,054) (677) (8,731)
Net book value at
31 December 2019 46,024 3,259 1,890 51,173
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
At 31 December 2019
At cost . 11,313 2,567 13,880
At valuation 46,024 _ _ 46,024
46,024 11,313 2,567 59,904
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(8
B [ E i
P&E S
Equipment,
e fixtures and Bt
Premises fittings Total
HEMHE T HEMHE T HEME AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
F 201841 H1HZ Net book value at
T 5 L3 51 ik 1 January 2018, as
previously reported 44,049 2,870 46,919
G I IR R Lk 2 Effect of merger of entity
Al under common control - 7 7
FT20184%1 A1 HZ Net book value at
T THI 4+ 2 HL 5 1 January 2018, as
restated 44,049 2,877 46,926
prihy Additions 94 1,071 1,165
& Disposals 4) (7) (11)
HAh Revaluation 2,142 - 2,142
SEREHIH (HE 13) Depreciation for the year
(Note 13) (1,089) (956) (2,045)
B e =k anty/ N4 Reclassification from
CPHE 26) investment properties
(Note 26) 895 ; 895
LR Exchange difference 1) - 1)
F 2018412 H31 HZ Net book value at
W THI4HE 31 December 2018 46,086 2,985 49,071
T 2018412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018
FRAE BAN A Cost or valuation 46,086 10,367 56,453
S IH R Accumulated depreciation
and impairment - (7,382) (7,382)
F 2018412 H31 HZ Net book value at
W THI 4HE 31 December 2018 46,086 2,985 49,071
IR B R A B 1R The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
SRR
T 2018412 A 31 H At 31 December 2018
e AE At cost _ 10,367 10,367
AL E At valuation 46,086 - 46,086
46,086 10,367 56,453
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as

follows:

Held in Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years)
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years)

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years)
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years)
On short-term lease (less than 10 years)

2019 2018

whBE AT WHH T
HK$’'m HK$'m
13,420 13,474
32,240 32,263

75 6

289 266

- 77

46,024 46,086

As at 31 December 2019, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
out at 31 December 2019 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the

measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were

recognised as follows:

Increase in valuation credited to income
statement (Note 15)

Increase in valuation credited to other
comprehensive income

2019 2018

whBE AT WMH T
HK$’'m HK$'m

6 24

1,054 2,118
1,060 2,142

As at 31 December 2019, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses was HK$8,746 million (2018: HK$8,639 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
28. Other assets

2019 2018

WMEAT HEMHE T

HK$’'m HK$'m

Repossessed assets 7 10
Precious metals 9,261 6,602
Accounts receivable and prepayments 32,817 25,929
42,085 32,541

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

The Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation are secured by deposit of funds in respect

of which the Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of indebtedness are held.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2019 2018
BB AT EME I
HK$’'m HK$'m
Trading liabilities
- Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
Notes 19,206 13,336
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- Structured deposits (Note 31) - 2,199
19,206 15,535

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss was approximately the same as the amount that the Group would be

contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. Deposits from customers

2019 2018
BEREAT B HE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Current, savings and other deposit accounts (per
balance sheet) 2,014,092 1,899,102
Structured deposits reported as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 30) - 2,199
2,014,092 1,901,301
Analysed by:
Demand deposits and current accounts
- Corporate 141,107 147,431
- Personal 68,367 62,827
209,474 210,258
Savings deposits
- Corporate 401,525 338,087
- Personal 499,106 516,185
900,631 854,272
Time, call and notice deposits
- Corporate 518,816 488,639
- Personal 385,171 348,132
903,987 836,771
2,014,092 1,901,301
. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
2019 2018
WHEAT wmHE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
At amortised cost
- Certificates of deposit 116 -
- Other debt securities - 9,453
116 9,453
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

33. Other accounts and provisions

2019 2018

BEREAT BME T

HK$’m HK$'m

Other accounts payable 64,558 47,522

Lease liabilities 1,810 N/A
Impairment allowances on loan commitments

and financial guarantee contracts

- Stage 1 535 375

- Stage 2 22 20

- Stage 3 20 43

66,945 47,960

34. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and

unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet,

and the movements during the year are as follows:

T
2019
JnEEHTIH
GBI
Accelerated i B WEEE
tax Property Impairment Hih B
depreciation revaluation allowances Others Total
BHEAT BHEAT WwHHEAL BHEAT BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
T 2019411 H  At1January 2019 703 6,940 (723) (1,287) 5,633
e/ (B¥D) Yk Charged/(credited) to
(i 16) income statement
(Note 16) 49 (126) (80) 1 (146)
e HAb A= T U 3R Charged to other
comprehensive
income - 130 - 695 825
T 2019412 31 H At 31 December 2019 752 6,944 (803) (581) 6,312
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34, GEEBLI (£

34. Deferred taxation (continued)

2018
h#ESTIA
TR
Accelerated lk = A IRAEHE
tax Property Impairment HAth Hit
depreciation revaluation allowances Others Total
A REWAVH WMAEIT WwMAEIT WMAEIT WMAEIT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
T 201841 H1H  At1January 2018 690 6,603 (734) (989) 5,570
o3 R (FiiE 160  Charged to income
statement (Note 16) 13 44 1 1 79
g / (BEid) HAth4:  Charged/(credited) to
T s other comprehensive
income - 203 . (312) (19)
R4 B LA P44 Release upon disposal of
TR Ah AT S equity instruments at
2T B2 54, fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - 3 3
T 2018412 131 H At 31 December 2018 703 6,940 (723) (1,287) 5,633
A 1 8 BRI TR A B Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
T % 77 5 B A A T 6 5 316 legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
B, T AR IR B A — taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
B, MRS HE N8 offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:
T2 S A T 7 g S A T
S EARAY . N BB
R NFIIK 2 &80, Bt
NIE G -
2019 2018
whEAT HEMHE I
HK$’'m HK$'m
HBIERL I Deferred tax assets (63) (82)
I SE LI 1 5% Deferred tax liabilities 6,375 5,715
6,312 5,633
2019 2018
WHE T whE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
HRERLITE P GRER 12 A Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
VEDELLAED) twelve months (43) (60)
BRI GBI 12 4 Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
AEXAD twelve months 6,914 6,959
6,871 6,899
TF20194E12H31H, A4 As at 31 December 2019, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
AR B IR 58 7 2 tax losses amounting to HK$9 million (2018: HK$23 million). Of the amount, HK$9 million
B 555 N M0.0912 7T (2018: HK$9 million) for the Group has no expiry date and none of the amount for the
(20184 : #51110.2312 Group is scheduled to expire within six years (2018: HK$14 million) under the current tax
T8 FHEEARIE R / HX legislation in different countries/regions.

RIBLAT B, A
T IR B 2 3y
#110.09127C (20184F:
#&0.091270), kAT
6 WAE R I H K & W
(20184F: M 0.1412
T8
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35. j5R2AR 35. Subordinated liabilities
2019 2018
EHEAT HEMHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
S Subordinated notes
- FENUALA AR - designated at fair value through profit or loss
TP # 12,954 13,246
T 2010 4E, HHRFUERAT In 2010, BOCHK issued listed subordinated notes with an aggregate amount of USD2,500
MM 25.00 {23600 BT A million, interest rate at 5.55% per annum payable semi-annually, due February 2020. In
IR, R RSO AT September 2018, USD877 million in principal amount of subordinated notes were purchased
— K, HEF|F 5.55%,2020 and redeemed by BOCHK and cancelled pursuant to the terms and conditions of the notes.
2 HFEM. F 2018 4 9 USD1,623 million of the aggregate principal amount of subordinated notes remain
Ho A i I S R 8 ] outstanding. Amounts qualified as Tier 2 capital instruments for regulatory purposes are
A4 8.77 1L ICI R, shown in Note 4.4(B). The carrying amount of subordinated notes designated at fair value
I ORI 2 %K through profit or loss as at 31 December 2019 was more than the amount that the Group
K Z B SR . b would be contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders by HK$41 million (2018:
G R S S NP C ¥ HK$260 million).
16.23 23T . Tl

BIRAMEN SRR AL
W2 JE LA, T
7 4.4(B)HF7R. 2019 4F
12 H 31 HAENUAF
HAAT N PR35 2 5 122
5 1) T T £ B A 4 B T )
MBS EAFREAZ
S ZWM 041 Lt
(2018 4=: #M 2.60 12
I8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

36. Share capital

2019 2018
WHEAT B HE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Issued and fully paid:
43,042,840.858 ordinary shares 43,043 43,043
37. Other equity instruments of the Bank

2019 2018
WHEAT N NEW b
HK$’'m HK$'m

Undated non-cumulative subordinated Additional
Tier 1 capital securities 23,476 23,476

In September 2018, BOCHK issued USD3,000 million undated non-cumulative
subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities. The capital securities are perpetual
securities in respect of which there is no fixed redemption date and are not callable within
the first 5 years. They have an initial rate of distribution of 5.90% per annum payable
semi-annually which may be cancelled at the sole discretion of BOCHK. Dividend paid to
other equity instrument holders in 2019 amounted to HK$1,390 million.
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38. ZEMEHEEREMY:  38. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) &EUAE5HBTEE

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash (outflow)/inflow before

W&z Gl / TAX taxation
K
2019 2018
WMEAT HMHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Ey=inuil Operating profit 38,910 37,018
E/lE| Depreciation 2,823 2,045
VBB A Tk 2% Net charge of impairment allowances 2,015 1,237
YO (B A IRl R Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (4) 1)
T 2 BEaR (iR Advances written off net of recoveries
EFETM (249) (714)
T 2 F SR 4R Bt Investment in securities written off - (45)
A S FLES Interest expense on lease liabilities 54 N/A
JEtE SR AR F) Change in subordinated liabilities 370 521
FREFAHEL 3MHAZ Change in balances and placements with banks
TEARAT S FH A G R and other financial institutions with original
W 2 25 4% B e AT maturity over three months
ZF) 9,276 6,707
PAASPAEAR AT N A 26 Change in financial assets at fair value through
AR e AR E) profit or loss (4,898) 22,763
T4 T H 2 AR5 Change in derivative financial instruments 5,809 (1,507)
DK B FAB IR T2 A F)y Change in advances and other accounts (131,827) (93,183)
IR BE AR5 Change in investment in securities (198,488) 20,578
Fofh B8 7= 2 A2 5 Change in other assets (9,576) (2,042)
BT S FHAR G R LG 2 Change in deposits and balances from banks
R B AER AR F) and other financial institutions (108,864) 153,851
PAASPAEAR AT N A 26 Change in financial liabilities at fair value
Z a2 ) through profit or loss 3,671 (4,185)
B AL T Change in deposits from customers 114,990 119,058
CLRATF 4IRS S AT Change in debt securities and certificates of
UEZ AR ) deposit in issue (9,337) (12,188)
FL A T B i 4 2 A2 ) Change in other accounts and provisions 16,861 6,766
TERARH) 2 Effect of changes in exchange rates 4,261 20,084
KRELRTAE M2 Gl Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation
/A (264,203) 276,763
ZEN 55 D Cash flows from operating activities included
45
- SRR - interest received 64,224 57,083
- AR - interest paid 26,180 19,904
- SR E - dividend received 117 45
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. ZAMEWERMIE  38. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(%8

(b) BEFALF AR AR
X

Ja ot
FT1A1H

i

B 1] i A2 S0 5 BT A+ 3K
i

SR EETARALR

I 25N

B B TR 2 A1
AL /(5
i) HAbgmas
23

HAb A2 z)

T12H31H

ikt
RGN U IV 55 4t HE
%16 5 252

i
SCATARGE 65
I 25N
g

H Az

T12H31H

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Subordinated liabilities
At 1 January

Cash flows:
Payment for redemption of subordinated
liabilities
Interest paid for subordinated liabilities

Non-cash changes:

Change in fair value of own credit risk
charged/(credited) to other comprehensive
income

Exchange difference

Other changes

At 31 December

Lease liabilities
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

Cash flows:
Payment of lease liabilities
Non-cash changes:
Additions

Other changes

At 31 December
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2019 2018
WwhE G b NIE Db
HK$’'m HK$'m
13,246 21,048
- (7,211)

(707) (1,087)
(707) (8,298)
45 (25)

(72) 59
442 462
12,954 13,246
2019

WHE T

HK$’'m

1,684

(608)

680

54

1,810
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38. ZAUMEWERMIE  38. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(80

(c) ME&ERERPESTH S (c) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
=i
2019 2018
WMEAT wEmHE AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FEAF 4 I R B3 H AR Cash and balances and placements with
3MNH NIRRT I banks and other financial institutions with
FoAth & mb LA 2 &5 original maturity within three months
AR B BT 322,683 379,851
FRMHE 3 AMNHNZ Treasury bills, certificates of deposit and other
FEF AE I J HAh debt instruments with original maturity within
fii%s TR three months
- DLAPEAB A - financial assets at fair value through profit or
5 2 AR vt loss 6,627 239,020
- IEHRER - investment in securities 2,149 7,024
331,459 625,895
39. AR K ARHE 39. Contingent liabilities and commitments
R A KR T S R The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
KBRATELEZ &85 contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
R AR R gm ], H prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
5 T EL R 2 G A B adequacy ratio.
T A7 5 DA AL £ A Ak
BUTR
2019 2018
WwhEAT  BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$'m
HEETTEARDTH Direct credit substitutes 5,455 6,533
538 5 R BUR fifi Transaction-related contingencies 29,080 29,292
5RO R BIR 5 Trade-related contingencies 27,865 26,269
ENE TSRl 2t Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
e 2 AR without prior notice 449,306 406,542
HAbAM, JFERHIH N Other commitments with an original maturity of
- 1AL - up to one year 13,772 10,189
15U - over one year 160,575 131,268
686,053 610,093
1558 R A U85 Credit risk-weighted amount 76,911 68,508
5 58 KBS 0 B A2 AR 1R The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
CRATIE G Fmy Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
o WL RT3 5 % F characteristics of each type of contract.
ZAE I AL IR
.
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40. FAKIHE 40. Capital commitments
AREEH R TS 4E Pk The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
% RATRAREH T statements:
2019 2018
WHEAT  EHEAT
HK$’'m HK$'m
CtHE AR L % Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 188 215
SR E RSS2 Authorised but not contracted for 72 35
260 250
D VN E N SR The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
T N 22 L O G A % B A equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
AR AR H 2 B 455 T
FEZ R4,
4. ZEMBAR 41. Operating lease commitments
FERHFA As lessor
TRAE AT EY 2 408 Fl 5% The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables
G4, FHAARERSH under non-cancellable operating leases:
B GHZRFKA M
T B AR A 4
2019 2018
WREAT  BTmEHAT
HK$’'m HK$'m
ot KT Land and buildings
- AT 1A - Not later than one year 561 549
-1 R 24 - One to two years 394 304
-2 & 34 - Two to three years 191 114
-3F 44 - Three to four years 33 1
-4 B 54F - Four to five years 1 -
1,180 968
AL DA 8 A 5% U The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases
AT A5 AEHE typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally require the
HH 1 EE 3 FE, ML tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according to the prevailing
R ISR LR AR A AR AIE market conditions upon the lease renewal.
& THMAR, KB
55 T 3y 2 R LT I 4 A
4.
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42, JFip 42. Litigation

A [ T X 2 T ST The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
ANERBEMREERZE parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
. WEREIREES A the Group.

SR IEH LR B A G

2 A AR [ ) X No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
B NAE A S P s directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
TF I 55 B R BT I I B U amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.

AR, BOERIS ISR K

REEEHERE .
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
43. Segmental reporting

A G A1 2 Bl 55 73 Rk
FATAE L, TR
BUn AL A 587, i 90%
K A F i BURAR DL 53653
N=AE K, e HlE
A NEATALSS AV ARAT LSS
AN B2k 55 o Ml 55 2R/ 7 22
BT A )R B b R
%, KHEMETH RPC (&
FURFR T IR
BB,

A NERAT R AR AT M0 55 2%
VoAt faRAT IS, B
B FAFR B SR A
HR S 5 RBARRE K H:
MAESEIRSS . 558 R AR ™
dh ANTLSS AT e A
NARAT AL 5 4 ZR RS A
NI NAFE P AL ARAT L,
FURTEERIMSG AT R, &
TMB gL, 7 B K
Gb, AT B B TR B B
B FIFRSMCHE A o [ Al ]
XA, EEORAERRA
BT BROL . B
LA TERRE AR S E HRAL
EYSE NRIA RN

W BLLRITE ™ Aft. YA
SOy B RUR R BEANE S
KT RN B AT i
o REROFERE T
b 55 R SR B B T DL A B
oy iz S RS, Bl
FLGEREN, BRI E
R BN E, 2
KA R IR HE, 75 1
AR R

AR A 1) 3 BN SRR N R
BN, JFHRZEEEANR
F B BRI
%o BILRTA Mk 55 20 KA
BN RS L BSIR .

ARG A1) doo i e LA
T /55 B ARk 5 o)
FKrhEFR. HEHTE
IR, LA AEZT]
AR,

The Group manages the business mainly from a business segment perspective and over
90% of the Group’s revenues, profits before tax and assets are derived from Hong Kong.
Currently, three operating segments are identified: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking
and Treasury. The classification of the Group’s operating segments is based on customer
segment and product type, which is aligned with the RPC (relationship, product and channel)
management model of the Group.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services including
various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, credit cards, trade related products and other
credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and foreign currency and derivative
products. Personal Banking mainly serves retail customers and small enterprises, while
Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate customers. Treasury manages the funding
and liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises, investment
properties, equity investments, certain interests in associates and joint ventures and the
businesses of the Southeast Asian entities.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and capital
expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The segment information includes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer
pricing mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior management relies
primarily on net interest income in managing the business, interest income and expense for
all reportable segments are presented on a net basis.

Several products/businesses have been reclassified among operating segments in
accordance with the latest management model of the Group. Comparative amounts have
been restated to conform with current year presentation.
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43. Segmental reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 December
2019

Net interest income/(expense)
- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income

Net trading gain

Net (loss)/gain on other
financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial
assets

Other operating income

Net operating income
before impairment
allowances

Net charge of impairment
allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit
Net gain from disposal
offfair value adjustments
on investment properties
Net (loss)/gain from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment
Share of profits less losses
after tax of associates
and joint ventures

Profit before taxation

At 31 December 2019

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates and
joint ventures

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Year ended 31 December
2019

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MNSYT AT
Personal  Corporate iy 1% FoAib, At AR =&
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
WWEAT WWEAT  WWEAT  WWEAT  WHEAT WHETT WHETT
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
7 16,423 18,551 2,284 37,265 - 37,265
13,300 (1,682) (9,996) (1,622) - - -
13,307 14,741 8,555 662 37,265 - 37,265
7,077 3,939 303 1,149 12,468 (263) 12,205
789 1,389 3,100 371 5,649 - 5,649
1) - 328 1 328 - 328
- 17 754 - 771 - 771
101 2 42 2,023 2,168 (1,337) 831
21,273 20,088 13,082 4,206 58,649 (1,600) 57,049
(351) (1,385) 9) (270) (2,015) - (2,015)
20,922 18,703 13,073 3,936 56,634 (1,600) 55,034
(9,820) (3,394) (1,086) (3,424) (17,724) 1,600 (16,124)
11,102 15,309 11,987 512 38,910 - 38,910
- - - 288 288 - 288
() - - 4 (1) - ™
137 - - - 137 - 137
11,234 15,309 11,987 804 39,334 - 39,334
442,694 947,164 1,353,860 152,718 2,896,436 (22,501) 2,873,935
559 - - 60 619 - 619
443,253 947,164 1,353,860 152,778 2,897,055 (22,501) 2,874,554
1,079,821 907,381 521,156 106,067 2,614,425 (22,501) 2,591,924
48 4 - 2,262 2,314 - 2,314
1,205 233 100 1,285 2,823 - 2,823
- - 2,547 (33) 2,514 - 2,514
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43. Segmental reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 December
2018

Net interest income/(expense)
- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income

Net trading gain

Net gain/(loss) on other
financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income
before impairment
allowances

Net charge of impairment
allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit
Net gain from disposal
offfair value adjustments
on investment properties
Net (loss)/gain from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment
Share of profits less losses
after tax of associates
and joint ventures

Profit before taxation

At 31 December 2018

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates and
joint ventures

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Year ended 31 December
2018

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

M NHUT AR
Personal Corporate 55 i) N7 AT ey
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
WIMEGIG WmEAG WmEa WmEAe BIEGT WEMEITC WEMEITC
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
1,366 15,774 17,062 2,275 36,477 - 36,477
10,030 (2,695) (6,105) (1,230) - - -
11,396 13,079 10,957 1,045 36,477 - 36,477
6,899 3,874 309 1,129 12,211 (244) 11,967
784 1,438 740 314 3,276 - 3,276
9 - 510 (1) 518 - 518
- (3) 4 - 1 - 1
48 2 9 1,980 2,039 (1,301) 738
19,136 18,390 12,529 4,467 54,522 (1,545) 52,977
(123) (784) (3) (327) (1,237) - (1,237)
19,013 17,606 12,526 4,140 53,285 (1,545) 51,740
(8,820) (3,180) (1,016) (3,251) (16,267) 1,545 (14,722)
10,193 14,426 11,510 889 37,018 - 37,018
- - - 921 921 - 921
4) - - 23 19 - 19
72 - - (3) 69 - 69
10,261 14,426 11,510 1,830 38,027 - 38,027
379,233 887,900 1,438,029 136,698 2,841,860 (18,557) 2,823,303
422 - - 60 482 - 482
379,655 887,900 1,438,029 136,758 2,842,342 (18,557) 2,823,785
1,038,805 839,505 616,408 80,920 2,575,638 (18,557) 2,557,081
26 5 - 1,147 1,178 - 1,178
567 144 106 1,228 2,045 - 2,045
- - 1,502 (19) 1,483 - 1,483
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Assets

Derivative financial
instruments

Reverse repurchase
agreements

Securities borrowing
agreements

Other assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments
Repurchase
agreements
Other liabilities

44, Offsetting financial instruments

2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

FHEEARK KETEEARRT
REPHEAZ A ZAREM
EFASH TFHEP= Sl Related amounts
FFEEB  RHFIRE  not set off in the balance
EFAERH Gross &REFEF=IFE sheet
BErE A amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial BBz
amounts of financial assets BE&H 5
recognised liabilities set presented in £SWTHE Cash
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral B
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
WMEAT WMEAT WhEAT BEAEAx  WBEAEAxL WBHAEATD
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
31,135 - 31,135 (22,120) (2,380) 6,635
3,138 - 3,138 (3,138) -
2,900 - 2,900 (2,900) -
12,622 (11,547) 1,075 - 1,075
49,795 (11,547) 38,248 (28,158) (2,380) 7,710
2019
FHEEAM R TEREAREF
R HAHZ &R
EFAEH TFHEP= Sl Related amounts
BERS  RHFREK  not set off in the balance
CHINER Gross &RIFUREFM sheet
it st amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial &k X i
amounts of financial liabilities L
recognised assets set presented in EMT R Cash
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral o]
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
WMEAT WMEAT WMEAT WwhEAT WhEAx  BhaAx
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
32,660 - 32,660 (22,120) (7,105) 3,435
562 - 562 (562) -
13,427 (11,547) 1,880 - 1,880
46,649 (11,547) 35,102 (22,682) (7,105) 5,315
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44. &RIT B2 K4 (48) 44. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

B
fTEEa TR

S 16 [ 8

& NUEZR P

HAh B

s
TRt TR

T

Hfh A 1t

LAREW BT H R HMTET
Hoo AR5 108 SAEZR 5 S AL
BB H AL, s R A

2018
T’%#ﬁfﬁ *ﬁ?%#{iﬁ%ﬂfﬂ
FHHZ ‘ HRAS Z AH R &0
O & fil FH = fit Related amounts
fifitad  FPHRE  not set off in the balance
(SN Gross  <ifill B 4 sheet
BErE amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial Yz
amounts of financial assets B il
recognised liabilities set ~ presented in G T A Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral 1
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
VT NEpAp HEME o HEME o BHEGG WmEAT WHENT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Assets
Derivative financial
instruments 34,870 - 34,870 (19,867) (3,326) 11,677
Reverse repurchase
agreements 2,764 - 2,764 (2,764) - -
Securities borrowing
agreements 2,200 - 2,200 (2,200) - -
Other assets 13,384 (9,213) 4,171 - - 4,171
53,218 (9,213) 44,005 (24,831) (3,326) 15,848
2018
TR FAT R AT
S e HREH ZAH K 4
[N T B fi Related amounts
Y RE FHFIR not set off in the balance
RN Gross &l i 540 sheet
Ffit S50 amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial o
amounts of financial liabilities B LT
recognised assets set  presented in SR TR Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral 1
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
HEME I HEME I HEME I WHEG WTmEIT HME TG
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments 30,594 - 30,594 (19,867) (2,107) 8,620
Repurchase
agreements 25,617 - 25,617 (25,617) - -
Other liabilities 9,907 (9,213) 694 - - 694
66,118 (9,213) 56,905 (45,484) (2,107) 9,314

BB AL E S UCE M, N
[ — 58 B o - 2 52 a2k

LS
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For master netting agreements of OTC derivative, sale and repurchase and securities
lending and borrowing transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts with the
same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45.

46.

47.

Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2019, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$15,862 million (2018:
HK$11,891 million) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate
settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$60,562
million (2018: HK$65,617 million) were secured by debt securities related to sale and
repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these
liabilities was HK$76,656 million (2018: HK$78,230 million) mainly included in “Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” and “Investment in securities”.

Transfers of financial assets

The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not qualify for derecognition are
debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under sale and repurchase agreements.

2019 2018
BEEBE AHIR AR O R T AH IR A 5
i T £ TR MK THIE T T
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
WREAT WREAT P E 0 HEME TG
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m

Repurchase

agreements 590 562 26,079 25,617

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
at year end

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year

279
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WHHE T HEMH T
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48. X E HREANLA S 48. Significant related party transactions

Hh A N R ] [ 55 e il i
HEBEARIEAR (
Bl HARKHRAF R
B BRARIUE A ([
e D RICEMEERR G2
HERAT, ARLER ST
o

(a) 5RAF REFATEH]
ZHAA T AT S

B E I ZEAR TR

A 4R 1] 52 i AR AT 3%
il LR EIRITZ
BERAT, IR
ERMEATE, M
R NHIMNC T PR
L 55 1 [ A R A
GIE

TE4 Tl py S 3
PRI G -

FEREIEFLF TS
BEEESLARHEATHRAT L 55
25, WG, I
BB RSN HIHL S .

Kihsr 5 E8RAT AT
158 5 B B8 i g
. T 2019 4 12 H
31 H, &RERHER MK
T AT H AR AT AR
Aoy R Es T 980.43
2.7t (2018 4E: W
1,588.65 12.70) K
569.95 1.7t (2018 4
#M 1,375.62 1270

#E 2019 F 12 A 31
HibFE, H5hE%RAT
BUHUE Y 555 72 ™
A FIRON B 3 R )
MONHET 19.71 12T
(2018 4F: #51T 28.77
fe.70) KT 4.78 147t
(2018 4E: M 5.81
1278,

55 o R ARAT ] 2 HoAth
NEIFFTEEKRL S

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity
interests.

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by the
parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in
foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2019, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$98,043 million (2018: HK$158,865 million) and HK$56,995 million (2018:
HK$137,562 million) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the year ended 31 December
2019 were HK$1,971 million (2018: HK$2,877 million) and HK$478 million (2018:
HK$581 million) respectively.

Transactions with other companies controlled by BOC are not considered material.
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48. X E HF #E N5 48. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(80

(b) SBUFHII. REHLH. (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
B B AL R ot A B controlled entities
HILAARREE S
R N BN [ [ 4 B The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
T R R G AR through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
Rz, A A number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
R 3 0 ] ] 4% e 7 ae i state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
BURHLI . AREEHLAL authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
i JE AL ALY S Atk [ A 4 of business at commercial terms.

] S 42 e ] 4 4 1)
REH A, ARER
e — MR M 4 K S BU
WLt ACERHLA . Y
WU Je He At A s ) <
PRBEAT AR AT L 5558

5o

X ) IR E AR R These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

T A& I

- AEDE. SRS 4 - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
PRANBE A3

- BRAT R A7 TR % & - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
R

- HE WX Bs K - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
B [ iy Al ) 5 42 1 controlled entities;
SR T RAT Z i

- RSN VK BAR K - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
BB RS

- BB K& - provision of fiduciary activities; and

- WAL, Al - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
TR Hf5 KRk
%,
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W5 IEME (82)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. X EZ FHRENLZA S 48. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(8

(c) EBFEAT. Afal (c) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business
BHEARHEREANLEE with associates, joint ventures and other related parties
B FEEABITZR
SWE
EARER 2 BE A E] The aggregate income/expenses and balances arising from related party transactions
H B AN K FHAh A =% with associates, joint ventures and other related parties of the Group are summarised
N L iE 2 B RIENL as follows:

AP BN /
SCH R SRR -

2019 2018
WMEAT HEMHE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
eI =] Income statement items
BCE AR GBI Associates and joint ventures
- M55 o KA 43 - Fee and commission expenses 6 11
- Hihzwm s - Other operating expenses 84 82
oA A RN Other related parties
- RS AR AN - Fee and commission income 1 1
PR T H Balance sheet item
B8 A A o Ak Associates and joint ventures
- LA R I R 1 2% - Other accounts and provisions 1 7
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48. XEZXHREANLR S 48. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(82)

(d) EEREAR

FEREAN BRI
e EL R s R A
B3 Be LR 4R
TR EEERN S
N, BiE#ER LR
BN G AR IE
GRS LIRS S ot
i J N A A )
2 B8 3 K% (5 5Y R
o TARIEREE, K
PBIF & A 5AWRAT
KR AT 2 LH
i J2 N R A R E
NLBATE RS

FERBEADEE 12
H 31 HIEERE 2 #
R

Fr I A A ) R T
A

(e) 5HEARMER

T 2019 £ 12 H 31
H, ASHATAE HHOL55
T A Rl 2R
AT A2 5 7 L A R
W B IS AT B i 2 = K
T ARy ) s T
109.63 127t (2018
4 #ET 115.91 4270
KW 2219 125t
(2018 4:: W&iT 24.84
{258,

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(d) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and senior management. The Group accepts deposits from and
grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2019 2018
WHEAT B H T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 53 45

(e) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$10,963 million (2018:
HK$11,591 million) and HK$2,219 million (2018: HK$2,484 million) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

49. International claims

LUR 24 752 A R [ bR
BTGt 2 & Rk
RS F s T ] o 1 B
T AL By % T P 3
TN F 82 J5 LLAS 5 f
T Z B 2 R K E B I
G, HEMEIEITA

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a location different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
location of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is

T 2 5 3 A S A 2 located in another location, the risk will be transferred to the location where its head office
AL . #5 A Z PR is located.
N FTTE b 55 52 5 FJT7E

P NEPPRN 2 E i 2
HRNZ PR H R
JERARAT ZHEHN AT HIR
KRR BT
AT T,

Claims on individual countries/regions, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the

AR E K/ HX

H Ok B AR E:# 5 & aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:
PR AL AT 10% 8% BA 1
AR
2019
TR AN
Non-bank private sector
Je4RAT
SR =50
BN Non-bank RN
#T Official financial Non-financial Kk
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BHEAxX EHEAT WHEAT WHEAT WHEAT
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
o [ P 3 Chinese Mainland 284,001 108,716 14,599 136,156 543,472
HE Hong Kong 6,718 96 36,143 352,962 395,919
ES United States 11,718 106,473 22,721 17,426 158,338
2018
ARAT RN
Non-bank private sector
AT
SRR e[S
EPiIN] Non-bank FAAMLK
T Official financial ~ Non-financial Hit
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
WMEIT WmEIT HME I HME I HME T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
F [ P Chinese Mainland 327,997 361,168 14,350 128,308 831,823
e Hong Kong 7,853 - 31,464 304,771 344,088
ESE] United States 13,270 79,573 24,936 16,926 134,705
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50. IERITRIAMHXS A 50. Non-bank Mainland exposures
H

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

X AR AR AT 2 5 0 T 1 A

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank

LB N S P AT counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
B RN S 2 &8 R instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland

R B R B 7R BT A1 22 L
Fey 2 ) e B 4 XI5z 5 ) 4
o BRI S AR A

exposures extended by BOCHK’s Hong Kong office only.

1) B Hs I 4k 2 P b R
St
2019
B iR bigaaili
SR RN RHM
eI Pulisvies| Plise il
ltems in On-balance Off-balance &R KE&IH
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
whEAxT WBhmEAxT WBHEAT
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m
FREF . FRBUFEFA ) Central government, central
M. B AT &3 government-owned entities and their
el subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 310,795 43,519 354,314
HoJ7BURF . O BURREG ] Local governments, local
P, B AT &3 government-owned entities and their
=14 subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 65,697 13,247 78,944
i [E $E 85 N R b 7ERE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
WML . FE A or other entities incorporated in
G &g a4 Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 102,300 21,580 123,880
AUFETE Bk —Tid gy Other entities of central government
KA HABALRS not reported in item 1 above 4 32,086 3,735 35,821
AEFEIE PR M 7iEr  Other entities of local governments not
P AR reported in item 2 above 5 500 2 502
o [E 5 4 R EERESME - PRC nationals residing outside
MEINR, HAFEENR Mainland or entities incorporated
(B outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 80,635 13,988 94,623
HoAhAs 55t F i X &$  Other counterparties where the
A ARERAT 1 P 1 X exposures are considered to be
Cic! non-bank Mainland exposures 7 1,770 - 1,770
Bt Total 8 593,783 96,071 689,854
FIRE 25 4 S5 BB A Total assets after provision 9 2,800,915
HWrREA B N I X% k2 On-balance sheet exposures as
o 7R A E A L percentage of total assets 10 21.20%

285



@ ¥ &4 trmn)amaa

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W5 EHE (8)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
50. JEAMTRIAHXEA  50. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

H 8
2018
BErE A BEre i
SR RANM RAMK
WEHAH JAJE A AH A A AH
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance & XA
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
whE AT WhEA WHEAT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
FREF . FRBUFEFA ) Central government, central
M. B AT &3 government-owned entities and their
Al subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 292,682 37,793 330,475
HoJ7BURF . MO BURREG ] Local governments, local
Wik HIE AR KA E government-owned entities and their
gl subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 60,506 13,060 73,566
i [E $E 85 N R b 7ERE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
WVEM AR . FEHE A or other entities incorporated in
G &g a4 Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 93,286 18,961 112,247
NIFEE BiR s —nidr ey Other entities of central government
JF P ARG not reported in item 1 above 4 27,618 630 28,248
AaFaee FiREE — i /7 Other entities of local governments not
JF P IR AR LR reported in item 2 above 5 88 . 88
i [E 55 4 R EERE4ME  PRC nationals residing outside
MO, TSN Mainland or entities incorporated
[ES outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 70,926 8,677 79,603
HoAhAs 55t F i X &$  Other counterparties where the
WA A AEERAT 1 P b XU exposures are considered to be
Eicl non-bank Mainland exposures 7 2,214 379 2,593
JsSan Total 8 547,320 79,500 626,820
TR %42 5 (0 B 7 A Total assets after provision 9 2,752,643
BrE B R N R %48 On-balance sheet exposures as
o PR R 4 L percentage of total assets 10 19.88%
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Py

Suft

A AATEIX FUE AR T

HRAT J HAth S RLAL) 2 77
ARG
PLAPAHAR L T A0 352
<l f5

e TR

TR

CURAT 95T M A7 E

LA B 2%
JEASH A 41 45
I SE A 97 £5
Ja A

K

B f5t A

P

(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates and joint ventures

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

2019 2018
BHEAGL WMmENT
HK$'m HK$'m
359,946 421,389
49,189 276,679
31,164 34,954
163,840 156,300
1,383,685 1,258,744
732,101 537,837
8,713 8,568

8 8

21,633 21,340
49,033 47,048
22 8
41,135 31,605
2,840,469 2,794,480
163,840 156,300
264,282 374,211
19,206 15,535
32,829 30,812
1,989,108 1,877,617
116 9,453
63,656 44,131
7,794 2,299
5,925 5,253
12,954 13,246
2,559,710 2,528,857




©)

¥ 8 4 £r(m ) A RAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

W5 4R IHE (42

51. B RBR IR
;R ()

(a) EP AR (B

T 127431 H

A
JBeA
fiti %

ARERAT AR B o5 AR A
fif %

ARARAT HAd AL T

RA A

B A

ZE ST 2020 3 H
27 eI bl R
ANERFRLEE:

Wuﬁ

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(a) Balance sheet (continued)

As at 31 December

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank

Other equity instruments of the Bank

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

2019 2018
BRBEIT EMHATT
HK$’m HK$'m
43,043 43,043
214,240 199,104
257,283 242,147
23,476 23,476
280,759 265,623
2,840,469 2,794,480

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and signed on behalf of the Board

by:

XA LIU Liange =30 d

HH Director
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(b) Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

fiti
Reserves
EESE
G NV R Fetr
ERCT A Reserve AL TR
k4 Premises Reserve for forown  WAERE&Y MBS SIRHER BERF Other  HA LA
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Merger Retained Bt equity Total
capital reserve changes risk reserve* reserve reserve*” earnings Total _instruments equity
WHEAE WHEAE WmEA WWmEA WmEae WmEae WmEie WmEA WmEA WmEae WmEc
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
At 1 January 2018, as
previously reported 43,043 33,920 (903) - 9,405 (351) 1,062 142,343 228,519 - 228,519
Effect of merger of entity
under common control - - - - - 21 350 25 396 - 396
At 1 January 2018, as
restated 43,043 33,920 (903) - 9,405 (330) 1,412 142,368 228,915 - 228,915
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 30,987 30,987 - 30,987
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - 1,687 - - - - - - 1,687 - 1,687
Equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income - - 1 - - - - - 1 - 11
Own credit risk - - - 25 - - - - 25 - 25
Debt instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income - - (1,377) - - - - - (1,377) - (1,377)
Currency translation
difference - - 27 - - (74) - - (47) - (47)
Total comprehensive
income - 1,687 (1,339) 25 - (74) - 30,987 31,286 - 31,286
Release upon disposal of
equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income:
Transfer - - 16 - - - - (16) - - -
Deferred tax - - 3) - - - - - 3) - 3)
Current tax - - - - - - - 3 3 - 3
Release upon redemption
of financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Transfer - - - (20) - - - 20 - - -
Current tax - - - - - - - 3) 3) - 3)
Acquisition of entities
under common control - - - - - - (2,168) - (2,168) - (2,168)
Transfer from retained
earnings - - - - 1,028 - 1,106 (2,134) - - -
Issue of other equity
instruments - - - - - - - - - 23,476 23,476
Dividends - - - - - - - (15,883) (15,883) - (15,883)
At 31 December 2018 43,043 35,607 (2,229) 5 10,433 (404) 350 155,342 242,147 23,476 265,623
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At 1 January 2019, as
previously reported

Effect of merger of entity
under common control

At 1 January 2019, as
restated

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Own credit risk
Debt instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal of
equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income:
Transfer
Deferred tax
Current tax

Acquisition of entity under
common control

Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividend paid to other
equity instrument holders

Dividends

At 31 December 2019

* BRAEE I SRS NS O St bk
O 1A A1, 4 8 ) R R 3
A7 7 ) 28 M A e AR BRAT — R 2

CRLATR ARRAR R BILARA T UYL -

Gk IR A IR SR ) 2 SeAA
KM I AL BRI A

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

&
Reserves
BAER
Vil AHE KRR FAh
B ZIMER Reserve BATR
A& Premises Reserve for forown BEEEE* VHEE  SHMmE :2e2:il) Other  BAKH
Share revaluation fair value credit Regulatory Translation Merger Retained Bt equity Total
capital reserve changes risk reserve* reserve  reserve** earnings Total instruments equity
WIHHAG WTHEZAG WHAAT WTHEZHT WTAEHALT WHEAL WHEAT WTHELD WBTHAEHALT BTEALT WHEATD
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
43,043 35,607 (2,229) 5 10,433 (425) - 155,247 241,681 23,476 265,157
- - - - - 21 350 95 466 - 466
43,043 35,607 (2,229) 5 10,433 (404) 350 155,342 242,147 23,476 265,623
- - - - - - - 32,829 32,829 - 32,829
- 842 - - - - - - 842 - 842
- - 343 - - - - - 343 - 343
- - - (38) - - - - (38) - (38)
- - 3,704 - - - - - 3,704 - 3,704
- - 10 - - 52 - - 62 - 62
- 842 4,057 (38) - 52 - 32,829 37,742 - 37,742
- - 1 - - - - 1) - - -
- - - - - - (728) - (728) - (728)
- - - - 574 - 378 (952) - - -
- - - - - - - (1,390) (1,390) - (1,390)
- - - - - - - (20,488)  (20,488) - (20,488)
43,043 36,449 1,829 (33) 11,007 (352) - 165,340 257,283 23,476 280,759

under common control.
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* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future
losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKFRS 9.

** Merger reserve was arising on the application of merger accounting method in relation to the combination with entities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

52. Principal subsidiaries

ABAT IR BB 10 B 8
AT ZVEWRT [HR— A

The particulars of all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank are set out in “Appendix —
Subsidiaries of the Bank”. The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

AT MR AR . T 2019 2019:
F12 A 31 HZ LEMEA
HFRIR
TR BB
Place of
2 incorporation CRAITHA KHEN R EEIS
Name and operation Issued share capital Interest held Principal activities
HEEHFR (EHR AR ik 565,000,000 7T 100% (RN
| Hong Kong HK$565,000,000 Credit card services
BOC Credit Card
(International) Limited
T ok vh Wy [ #RAT =P KA 760,518,480 100% AT
Bank of China (Malaysia) Malaysia ISR 7 AR 7 Banking business
Berhad RM760,518,480
HERT (RED BHHR eSS 10,000,000,000 Z&%k *100% BATIE %
A Thailand Baht10,000,000,000 Banking business
Bank of China (Thai) Public
Company Limited
FAUESR ST IR A H 335,000,000 #7t *100% SR BB 2%
Po Sang Securities and Hong Kong HK$335,000,000 Securities and
Futures Limited futures brokerage

*ORHATE B 99.99% M 43 K 1]
PR 0.01% 8 4.

* RHUT A B

#99.99% of the shares held directly and 0.01% of the shares held indirectly by the Bank.

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

53. Application of merger accounting

On 21 January 2019, the Branch Interests in Bank of China Limited, Vientiane Branch in
Laos was transferred from BOC to BOCHK for a total consideration of HK$728 million in
cash. BOC Vientiane Branch and BOCHK are both under the common control of BOC before
and after the combination. The Group has applied the merger accounting method in

accordance with the Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the HKICPA in the preparation of financial statements. The
comparative amounts have been restated accordingly as if the business of BOC Vientiane
Branch had always been carried out by the Group.

The statements

of the adjustments to the consolidated equity as at 31 December are as

HEERAT

follows:

2019
I E
i) Z Stk AIHE
Before Entity under R After
combination common control Adjustment combination
BHEAT BHEAT BHEAT BHEAT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
JBeA Share capital 43,043 350 (350) 43,043
&I % Merger reserve - - (378) (378)
BB A K ILbiE%  Retained earnings
and other reserves 216,006 201 - 216,207
259,049 551 (728) 258,872
HAB AL T Other equity
instruments 23,476 - - 23,476
e bR Non-controlling
interests 282 - - 282
282,807 551 (728) 282,630
2018
Z IR
AT I HHE
Before Entity under i After
combination common control Adjustment combination
N TEDAVH WME T N EDAVH WME T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
JBeA Share capital 43,043 350 (350) 43,043
G IS Merger reserve - - 350 350
B EF KAk %  Retained earnings
and other reserves 199,441 116 - 199,557
242,484 466 - 242,950
FoAb A TR Other equity
instruments 23,476 - - 23,476
Bzt Y& Non-controlling
interests 278 - - 278
266,238 466 - 266,704

292



©)

W5 4R IHE (42

54.

55.

56.

57.

BRAFER AT

e N RSR[5 e i
A EERAREEA
A AP E A ] i
ERHHRTELF ([
D KL ARG
R ERAT, SHASERISEAT
it o

RS

W 20194 1 A 21 Hh
HRAT e ik 4l v (R AR AT R
A RAT TR 51T
BN a5 5, WiftE 53 Fr
i, A 87 L Rl
W55 & R H A I it Ak
o SRR LB HEC
FHBNR, HEIBRBRER
TR T2 W% T —E il
T Ey=

BEEMm

2020 4 1 A YIH R AR
R AR, R
FRIBAT AR By,
A BEAE— e R bR A
SR 587 B B ol %5
WK T PR R AR
Bk TR S i RS oL 5
2t ) LA S 45 T2 54 it )
S, ARERFTT 2019 4E
12 A 31 BHHUIE R
R e RE S L kY S
ML SR, A
B ARG E Y B IR B
L, AL AR R % ]
AR SARGL . GE RE
TR . BEAMA
H, ZiTh T M7
e

Vit 25 R RABHE

AN 55T 2020 4 3 H
27 H@EHREE gk
KA

¥ & 4L £5(mm) AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
54. Ultimate holding company

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

55. Comparative amounts

In respect of the transfer of the Branch Interests in Bank of China Limited, Vientiane
Branch in Laos from BOC on 21 January 2019 as explained in Note 53, the Group has
applied merger accounting method for the business combination under common control.
Comparative amounts in the financial statements have been restated as if the business of
BOC Vientiane Branch had always been carried out by the Group.

56. Events after the balance sheet date

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) since early January 2020 has
taken a phased toll on the economy, and thus likely has impacted, to a certain extent, the
Group’s asset quality and returns from certain businesses. The magnitude of the
COVID-19 impact depends on the progress of prevention and containment of the
epidemic, its duration and the implementation of related economic measures. The ECL of
the Group at 31 December 2019 was estimated based on a range of forecast economic
conditions as at that date. The Group will continuously and closely monitor the
developments of COVID-19, evaluate and proactively address its impact on the Group’s
financial position and performance. As of the date of this report, such evaluation is still in
progress.

57. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 27 March 2020.
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REHFEIZ Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
*h TR 55 FE AL
1. BWEHE 1. Regulatory Disclosures

W B R I R AR RN B The Regulatory Disclosures, together with the disclosures in this Annual Report,
#, CEIIEERWifiz (B8 contained all the disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the
Pl CHeER) RNy EESR P HKMA. The Regulatory Disclosures is available under the section “Regulatory
HieE. WEHE T HRE Disclosures” on BOCHK’s website at www.bochk.com.

WM T www.bochk.com [ 1%

EYER] .

AR J M R TR R AR AR This Annual Report and the Regulatory Disclosures are prepared according to the Group's
[ 2 0 5% 4 # UK dm ] . T 5% disclosure policy. The disclosure policy sets out a robust mechanism for the Group’s
B % BUK 2 5T — Mg A L disclosures of financial information on a legitimate and compliant basis. It depicts the
i, EEEEMMELT, # principles and internal control measures to ensure the timeliness, fairness, accuracy,
FBALERMT &EE, FHEIT integrity, completeness and legitimacy of financial disclosures.

F 55 ok 8 1) DB ) % 0 M s

it TR ORIV 5540 B 1) BN

AP WERME . . 58

B FIA
2. NEHE 2. Risk management
B Overview

AR HRAT R 1 AU B B 2 The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of any organisation.
I E I uER. EHE In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
g, AR A v R AR emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business development.
R, R KRS S 5k 5 The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, market risk,
KB 2 ) AT . A interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
Flk %5 1 £ E N E R G strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder value by
GERBE TSR 2 XU maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits. The Group has a defined risk appetite
WA FE AR BEXE . 5 statement approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that the
R R R R XU B 3R Group is willing to take in a controllable way in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
s AU« AN [T ) RV A 2R H the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management governance
B A2 TE 52 = e R 018 B0 [RI B structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

iff R IR IS 428 I 7 7T 422 52 B 7K1

ZW. REMBRFLEEFEH

1 RS i I R ik, RIE AR

TE AR AT 4% RT3 T AT =

AR KB AR 52, DAk

BV 2% I i H b AT IS 3R 5 40

REMME ., HIRAL AR

EIE R EA TR, 1E

DI S5 R4
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RS ER (82
2. RSB (8 2. Risk management (continued)

R4 R 2 Credit risk management

fEHEHR Ih?u (K75 7 B S 0 T Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to meet
R AEBIA B SR AT B4 5t 5t AT its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as
& hkhﬁiﬂ’\]ﬂﬁme AL from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending,
SIRAEATIR . DU 6fit  trade finance and treasury businesses. For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management,
LN RRI 2 5 G A X T please refer to Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

}XWjo EAN SRR =R

. ROmMEATEES. A

9§ZIK%[_]TE&H 6 B TR

BORL, TV SR IR

TR Market risk management

T 3 R 2 45 Bl 4 Rl /T 3 I s Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
QU FE, BEMK. B exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
AN RE ) AN T BURAT AN volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
F L AN R B commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
AR Ak T T e 2 AR A SR A 45 between risk and return. For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to
Ko REFREBGEFHTHA - Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

2 i e SIZ R 5 AL 2 1T

1. A7 I ASER T b XU 2

ZVEHTURE, 1 DL S5 R b

4.2,

295



¥ 8 4 £r(m ) A RAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

©)

REHTZ
#hFEM B BB (82
2. RESEE (48

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

TR RERE ()

ARER IR RS 2 — BT
TRy, I R W ARG 2= R 2
M2 A RS . A5
KNG BRI R,
B s, Bl %24
s vz ®, i H
99% EfF AT N KAKRFFA
PO A = T 2 2% BT LA £ X
WrAE, I e AL PR I
LR B4 RSB BT

A4 SR [ Bl XU
ERR RS R HER 1. Bl
oI A R 5 — 2 B H T3 X
R r S E ST 5 T A
A2 5 H X B R7 15 2 ) SE b
BB cARat 1 i b, — A
F, TE99%EFKT T, i
124 7 I A1 L R %
Aid4R. TEGIRASE R
PR 55 S bR 2 HLAe 2 [l
MR

Market risk management (continued)

The Group uses the VaR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk Committee
(“RMC”) and senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VaR
calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical market
data, to calculate the VaR of the Group and its subsidiaries over a one-day holding period with
a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VaR limit of the Group and its subsidiaries.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VaR model results. The
back-testing compares the calculated VaR figure of market risk positions of each business day
with the actual and hypothetical gains or losses arising from those positions on the next
business day. Generally speaking, the number of back-testing exceptions in a rolling
12-month period will not exceed four times, given a 99% confidence level. The graph below
shows the back-testing result of the VaR against actual gains or losses of the Group.

20195 & XEIFHM i
. _ Daily Back-testing in 2019
ETEATT
HKD Million
80 PP
B0 e e e e
40 PP SO P SN

. g;||lhi|;||iiiil||i|..|Jn|n.III.,|.|..|||..n|.l,||||||..|,n,|u|.|.|||.. i

DAV PSR
Actual gains or losses

20194 P [m] JET ) 1K &5 2R %
Ry AT B PR A
SR KSR 1 2 -

There was no actual loss exceeding the VaR for the Group in 2019 as shown in the
back-testing results.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

FlZ R

HZ R R BRI ZKT 38
7RI IR A5 4 A5 LR R R
AR H) M AT BE S B AT B AR R
a2 AN B K A0 R X
Wore ARSI 2 AR A SH 3
TR A SR G ST
A B 3 R R 250 )
AT R A e R K
HIBURE . A RAER BT Z R
W T VRN BERE, 1 Y55
REHHES.2,

RBNFE SRR E

LB B 4 X 4R AR AT A
A5 B A B I 3R 15 7 2 BE
& BEITEIIS RN . A
A A1 300 R Al 0 978 30 BE < X
Br i i, A DRAE T 6 1% D B
ARCE SR N AR K Y
E~ AR B I DA,
WM B e oK e
SR R BB DL e N IE
8, AT BARAERE AR AL A7 ] P FY
AR EHE A RAELR
3y 5% 4 KU B 2 VE 4 BE
Kl M SR R 4.3,

Bfe X E R

B XU 2 3R A 2 8 BlH
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Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions. The
Group'’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk
from structural positions are gap risk, basis risk and option risk. For details of the Group’s
Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to obtain sufficient and timely funding at a
reasonable cost to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a sound
liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity
needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios. For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk
Management, please refer to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal process, people

and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business
operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first parties
responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions of self
risk control in the process of business operation through self assessment and self
enhancement. The Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department
(“LCO”), together with certain specialist functional units in relation to operational risk
management within the Group, including the Human Resources Department, Information
Technology Department, Corporate Services Department, Financial Crime Compliance
Department, Financial Management Department, Treasury and General Accounting &
Accounting Policy Department (collectively known as “specialist functional units”), are the
second line of defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring the operational
risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance. The LCO, being
independent from the business units, is responsible for assisting the Management in
managing the Group’s operational risk, including the establishment and review of the
operational risk management policy and framework, designing the operational risk
management tools and reporting mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall
operational risk position to the Management and RMC. Specialist functional units are required
to carry out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some specific
aspects of operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking charge of operational risk
management in their own units, these units are also required to provide other units with
professional advice/training in respect of certain operational risk categories and to lead the
group-wide operational risk management. Group Audit is the third line of defence which
provides independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk
management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk
management activities of various departments or functional units within the Group regarding
their compliance and effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for remedial actions.
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RS ER (82
2. RSB (8 2. Risk management (continued)

BAERRAE T () Operational risk management (continued)

B SL T A R PN 4 ) The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires the
FRF, ST ERIESNT R establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The Group adheres
HR MG, BEESME to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and authorisation. The Group
Loy LREZAU AL B E 1 adopts various operational risk management tools or methodologies such as key risk
FAJEN, AR REX  indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify, assess,
(58 =L AN = E AR AN T L (SR monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and products, as well as purchase
FAHCIR A A SRR/ of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans are
UG B T R 37 R AU established to support business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster.
PPl I R EEEAE TS Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
TGN N AR, R iE

T e SR IS4 A R T P 41

N2 R (O s

AR Bl 5B 1 % RREL

SifEitRl, J4ERER R MG

2 Vit S e FAEAT I 2R

BT Reputation risk management

B R A Fe TR 5 A S Mk 45 Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
ZEARMATEIRS (RigE whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
WIESD), MRSk P &m4iE litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
N BAE B RASICNR ~ aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

N =3 P B

b R B ol 5B AR AT, I

KEMTZ.

RS E AR, ARGEH I E In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its
FMEEENREHESK.  Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk
BURR HM & SE2 XK FEM proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused
KA AER R R IRAH by various types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and
BRIE . $ST (58NS EE perception of the Group, all operational and key risks identified are assessed through the
AR AMITALER  established Key Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to
(BT Z AR ERAE JL Mg SR BT evaluate the severity of their impact on the Group, including the damage to reputation.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Reputation risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may disrupt
or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group. Compliance
risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the
Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations.
Legal and compliance risks are managed by the LCO, while the risks related to money
laundering, terrorist financing and financial crimes including bribery and corruption are
independently managed and monitored by the Financial Crime Compliance Department
(“FCC”). Both LCO and FCC report directly to the DCE. As part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework, the policies for the management of legal and compliance risks, and
money laundering, terrorist financing and financial crime compliance risks are approved by
the RMC as delegated by the Board.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future negative impacts on
the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of the Group because of poor
business decisions, improper implementation of strategies and inadequacies in the response
to the changing market condition. The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk
management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by
the senior management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
and developments.

Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA’s requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process”, the Group adopts the internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on the HKMA'’s guidelines on Pillar II,
ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not
captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also
been established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of
capital utilisation.
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FEJ300 Stress testing

AAE [ PLE 700335 B 4% T The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress testing. Stress
K TAE. Bkt —  testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures under stressed conditions
R E R TR, F LAY arising from extreme but plausible market or macroeconomic movements. These tests are
TR EMAFNEZ SR conducted on a regular basis by the Group’s various risk management units in accordance
AN AR A E SR BN with the principles stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
AT R B2 58 I . AR HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by the RMC. The
P95 XIS A B BN 45 45 SR Financial Management Department reports the combined stress test results of the Group to
EHOEFM [EHMR] A the Board and RMC regularly.
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Appendix

Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of subsidiaries are as follows:

M/ B
K H
Place and date of BERITRA FEWE
R incorporation/ Issued REMIEE Principal
Name operation share capital Interest held activities
HEREH R (EHER) AIRAF ik 565,000,000 # 7T 100.00% {5 M~ R%
BOC Credit Card (International) Limited 1980 429 H 9 H HK$565,000,000 Credit card
Hong Kong services
9 September 1980
HERAERGEIEANA R AR i 200,000,000 # 7T 66.00% (5B
BOC Group Trustee Company Limited 1997 12 H 1 H HK$200,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
1 December 1997
HH R g [ Rl A FE A PR ) ik 300,000,000 G 42.24%* {540IRST
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited 1999 410 H 11 H HK$300,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
11 October 1999
3k 7 7 Hp B ARAT =P iRl 760,518,480 100.00% 4RATMV%%
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad 200044 A 14 H LR e AR 7 Banking business
Malaysia RM760,518,480
14 April 2000
China Bridge (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. = N2 1,000,000 100.00% =23 rf [F2540F
2009 4 4 H 24 H LR e AR 7 China visa
Malaysia RM1,000,000 application
24 April 2009
PEET (BED ROAERAR ENE| 10,000,000,000 Z&%k 100.00% 4RATIL%S
Bank of China (Thai) Public Company 2014 4 H 1 H Baht10,000,000,000 Banking business
Limited Thailand
1 April 2014
HERAT (B REAFRAR i 27T 100.00% fXHLA RS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Nominees 1985410 H 1 H HK$2 Nominee services
Limited Hong Kong
1 October 1985
HERT (B EIEERA R ik 3,000,000 #7t 100.00% (5FE A ARER RS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Trustees 1987 %11 H 6 H HK$3,000,000 Trustee and
Limited Hong Kong agency
6 November 1987 services
HERERURS (BT ABRAF G| VEMBEA 100.00% &:fbEER S
BOC Financial Services (Nanning) 201942 H19 H 60,000,000 70 Financial
Company Limited** PRC Registered capital oper_ational
19 February 2019 HK$60,000,000 services
HRFE S (F8) HRAF 2R 50,000 %7t 100.00% RAT 451
BOCHK Financial Products (Cayman) Ltd. 2006 4= 11 H 10 H US$50,000 Issuing structured
Cayman Islands notes
10 November 2006
R SR GRIID ABRA T el VEMBEA 100.00% W74 K
BOCHK Information Technology 1990 44 H 16 H 70,000,000 7z LN &5 a7
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** PRC Registered capital Property holding

16 April 1990
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A/ Bk
MR H

Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

Place and date of BERITRA FEWE
B incorporation/ Issued AN Principal
Name operation share capital Interest held activities
HHYE BHORIRS GRYID BRRAE* i M A 100.00% {5 B HARNMRS
BOCHK Information Technology Services 1993 45 H 26 H 40,000,000 T Information
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** PRC Registered capital technology
26 May 1993 HK$40,000,000 services
WX (READ BIRAF HH 10,000 # 6 100.00% fXEA RS
Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited 1980 £ 4 H 23 H HK$10,000 Nominee services
Hong Kong
23 April 1980
FA AR T RS IR A T HH 335,000,000 #7t 100.00%  #§43KsE K
Po Sang Financial Investment Services 1980 £ 9 H 23 H HK$335,000,000 Eraieicd i e
Company Limited Hong Kong Gold trading and
23 September 1980 investment
holding
FAUEZR FIRTTEBR A ] HHE 335,000,000 # 7t 100.00% EZF K AT %%
Po Sang Securities and Futures Limited 1993410 H 19 H HK$335,000,000 Securities and
Hong Kong futures
19 October 1993 brokerage
B AL A R A i 3,000,000 #7T 100.00% W74 K
Sin Chiao Enterprises Corporation, Limited 1961 49 H 13 H HK$3,000,000 LN %5 8%
Hong Kong Property holding
13 September 1961 and investment
FrEERARAR HHE 3,000,000 # T 100.00% {FHEM%
Sin Hua Trustee Limited 1978 4610 H 27 H HK$3,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
27 October 1978
Billion Express Development Inc. R AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #x4=ix
201492 H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Billion Orient Holdings Ltd. PR R RN 1%£50 100.00% F% &M
201442 A 3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 February 2014
Elite Bond Investments Ltd. B Y R RS (E 100.00% &&=
201442 A7 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Express Capital Enterprise Inc. TR AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #4=ix
201442 H 3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 February 2014
Express Charm Holdings Corp. TR AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #4=ix
201492 HT7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding

7 February 2014
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RRITZMBAT (8  Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

M/ B
K H
Place and date of BERITRA FEWE

B incorporation/ Issued AN Principal

Name operation share capital Interest held activities

Express Shine Assets Holdings Corp. R IR RS 1%7T 100.00% #4=ix
201441 H 3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Express Talent Investment Ltd. FRAE R (E 100.00% @iz
2014 2 H 13 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Gold Medal Capital Inc. PR R RN (E 100.00% &k
201441 H3H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Gold Tap Enterprises Inc. R AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #x4=ix
2014 2 H 13 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Maxi Success Holdings Ltd. PR R RN 170 100.00% &%k
20144 2H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014

Smart Linkage Holdings Inc. R AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #x4=ix
2014 2 H 13 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Smart Union Capital Investments Ltd. TR AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #4=ix
201441 H3H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Success Trend Development Ltd. TR AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #4=ix
2014 2 H 18 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
18 February 2014

Wise Key Enterprises Corp. LR AR RS 1%7T 100.00% #4=ix
2014 2 H 18 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding

18 February 2014

* AR R [ AR S SR A R A A * BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank and,
HNARATIE T —KELTHE accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Bank’s control over it.
ATFIE AR, FE-ARTH
AT IR, AW
RERAT I B A 7]

o AE e EE M A IR AR ** |t is registered as limited liability company in the PRC.
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Definitions

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms Meanings

“ALCO” the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“AT1” Additional Tier 1

“ATM” Automated Teller Machine

“BOC” Bank of China Limited, a joint stock commercial bank with limited liability established
under the laws of the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively

“BOCHK (Holdings)” BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong

Kong

“BOCHK” or “the Bank”

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited

“BOCI-Prudential Manager”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which BOCI Asset Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BOC International Holdings Limited, and Prudential Corporation Holdings Limited
hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which BOC Group Trustee Company Limited and Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOC Malaysia”

Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“BOC Thailand”

Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“CE” Chief Executive

“CET1” Common Equity Tier 1

“‘CFO” Chief Financial Officer

“ClC” China Investment Corporation
“CRO” Chief Risk Officer

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
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Definitions (continued)

Terms

Meanings

“Central Huijin”

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

“DCE” Deputy Chief Executive

“‘DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment

“ECL” Expected Credit Loss

‘EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio

“FCC” the Financial Crime Compliance Department
“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based

“FvocCI” Fair value through other comprehensive income
“FVPL” Fair value through profit or loss

“HKAS” Hong Kong Accounting Standard

“HKFRS” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standard

“IMM” Internal Models

“am Information Technology

“LCO” the Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department

“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“mC” the Management Committee
“MCO” Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow
“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“N/A” Not applicable

“NII” Net Interest Income Sensitivity Ratio

“NSFR” Net Stable Funding Ratio

“ORSO schemes” the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘oTC” Over-the-counter

“PRC” the People’s Republic of China

“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“RMC” the Risk Committee

“RMD” the Risk Management Department
“RWA” Risk-weighted Assets

“SME” Small and Medium-sized Enterprise
“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)

“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)

“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Standard & Poor’s”

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group
“us” the United States of America
“VaR” Value at Risk
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